
AGENDA FOR

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Contact:: Julie Gallagher
Direct Line: 0161 2536640
E-mail: julie.Gallagher@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Health and Wellbeing Board

Councillors : Pat Jones-Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair), 
Dave Bevitt, Mark Carriline, Stuart North, Lesley Jones, 
R Walker, Jon Aspinall, S Briggs, T Holt (Chair) and 
R Shori, Dr Patel, Jo Marshall, Barbara Barlow, Katy 
Calvin-Thomas and Keith Walker

Dear Member/Colleague

Health and Wellbeing Board

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board which will be held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 9 March 2017

Place: Meeting Rooms A&B, Bury Town Hall, Knowsley Street 
Bury BL9 0SW

Time: 6.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda, and if 
so, to formally declare that interest.

3  MATTERS ARISING  

4  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 1 - 8)

Minutes for the meeting held on the 15th Decemeber 2016 are attached.

5  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
on any matters for which the Board is responsible.

Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time, if 
required. 

6  URGENT CARE REDESIGN CONSULTATION (15 MINUTES)  

Bury Clinical Commissioning Group representatives will report at the 
meeting. 

7  GROUNDWORK AMBITION FOR AGEING (10 MINUTES)  (Pages 9 - 
18)

Vicky Devonport, Groundwork Representative will report on the ambition 
for ageing, aligning Groundworks delivery and investments with local 
strategies and priorities.

8  LOCALITY PLAN UPDATE (10 MINUTES)  (Pages 19 - 22)

A verbal update will be given at the meeting. Report attached.

9  LOCAL TRANSFORMATION PLAN - CHILD ADOLESCENT MENTAL 
HEALTH SERVICE (CAMHS) (10 MINUTES)  (Pages 23 - 116)

A report will be sent to follow.

10  PENNINE CARE HEALTH AND WELLBEING COLLEGE (10 MINUTES)  
(Pages 117 - 162)

Katie Kay, Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust will present at that 
meeting.  Report attached.

11  HEALTHWATCH UPDATE (10 MINUTES)  (Pages 163 - 168)



Healthwatch Chair, Barbara Barlow and Chief Officer Joanne Horrocks will 
report at the meeting.  Reported attached.

12  HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY PRIORITY UPDATES (15 
MINUTES)  (Pages 169 - 182)

Priority Four, Ageing well – Executive Director Communities and Wellbeing 
will report at the meeting.
Priority Five, Healthy Places - Chris Horth and Sharon Hanbury will be in 
attendance.
Reports attached.

13  COMMUNICATION AND MARKETING UPDATE (5 MINUTES)  

The Social Development Manager will report at the meeting.

14  DEVOLUTION UPDATE (5 MINUTES)  

The Chief Operating Officer to report at the meeting.

15  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.

16  FOR INFORMATION - UPDATE ON THE FRIENDS TOGETHER 
SERVICE  (Pages 183 - 184)

Report Attached.

17  SUB GROUP MINUTES ***FOR INFORMATION  (Pages 185 - 212)

Minutes for the following are attached:
Children’s Trust Board 
Bury Safeguarding Adult’s Board 
Carbon Reduction Board 
Bury Health and Social Care Integration Board
Housing Strategy Programme Board 



This page is intentionally left blank



257

Minutes of: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Date of Meeting: 15 December 2016

Present: Cabinet Member Health and Wellbeing Trevor Holt 
(Chair); Leader of the Council, Councillor Rishi Shori; 
Councillor Roy Walker, Opposition Member, Health and 
Wellbeing; Executive Director Communities and 
Wellbeing, Pat Jones Greenhalgh; Dave Bevitt, 
Representing B3SDA; Dr K Patel, Chair Bury CCG; 
Councillor Sharon Briggs, Cabinet Member (Children and 
Families); Healthwatch, Barbara Barlow; Lesley Jones, 
Director of Public Health

Also in attendance: Heather Crozier – Health and Wellbeing Board Policy 
Lead.
Chloe McCann – Assistant Improvement Advisor, 
Corporate Policy Team
Leigh Webb – Democratic Services

Apologies: Chief Officer, CCG, Stuart North;
Executive Director Children, Young People and Culture, 
Mark Carriline;
Jon Aspinall (GMFRS).

Public attendance: No members of the public were in attendance

HWB.402 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made in respect of any items on the 
agenda to be considered at the meeting.
 

HWB.403 MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 22 September 2016 be 
approved as a correct record.

HWB.404   MATTERS ARISING

In respect of Minute HWB.297, Barbara Barlow expressed concerns about 
how damning statements were allowed to be made during public question 
at the last meeting. Mrs Barlow suggested that members of the public 
should not be permitted to make long statements and should ask direct 
questions about specific matters for which the Board has responsibility. The 
Chair and Leader of the Council acknowledged that Public Question Time 
was for questions and not statements but stressed the importance of 
encouraging public participation in an open and transparent manner.

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 4



258

HWB.405 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no members of the public present to ask questions under this 
item.

HWB.406 BURY CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT

Sharon Beattie, Independent Chair of Bury Safeguarding Children’s Board, 
presented the Annual report of the Board for 2015/16.  It was reported that 
this year the Board had benefited from external scrutiny. In the autumn of 
2015, the Board commissioned a Peer Review of its work, and in February, 
Ofsted conducted its review of the effectiveness of the Board, and judged it 
to be good. The detail of their findings was set out within report. 

The report detailed the activity of the Board, which is made up of the main 
Board, the Business Group, and the sub groups. The report set out details 
of the significant amount of highly effective work by partner agencies, who 
work tirelessly to keep children and young people as safe as possible in 
Bury. 

The report provided an analysis of how effective safeguarding is in Bury, 
the auditing activity and the performance data. It outlined performance 
against the Business Plan, and some key areas of activity, the continued 
implementation of findings from Serious Case Reviews, and the ongoing 
development of the Child Sexual Exploitation activity. 

It was explained how the Board continues to hear the voices of children and 
young people. It was reported that the Board was particularly pleased to 
see the Lilac Standards report. This was a report by a project run by a 
National Voice which draws on the experience of care experienced young 
people to carry out assessments of how well services involve and consult 
with children and young people. Bury Council was awarded seven "petals", 
the highest possible judgment. 

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

HWB.407 CARERS ACTION PLAN AND UNDERSTANDING ADVOCACY

Stephanie Boyd presented a report setting out information relating to 
independent advocacy for adults in line with priority 3 of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. The report included details of the Bury Adult Carers 
Strategy Action Plan along with a proposed Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU) for Young Carers and their families. 

In respect of the Adult Carers Strategy, it was reported that the priorities 
within the Plan were aligned with the following national priorities:

 Identification and recognition
 Realising and releasing potential
 A life outside caring
 Supporting carers to stay healthy

Document Pack Page 2



259

The action plan is an ever changing document and is monitored through the 
Bury Carer’s Strategy Group and regularly updated by key partners.

In respect of the proposed Memorandum of Understanding for Young Carers 
and their families, Andy Bradburn presented a report setting out the 
importance of joint working between Children’s Services and Adult’s 
Services to enable young carers and their families to receive personalised 
and joined up support from Bury Council and partner agencies.

A joint Action Plan relating to the MoU was appended to the report setting 
out a number of short and medium term goals.

During discussion of this item, Councillor Briggs expressed concern about 
the level of detail within the MoU action plan and made particular reference 
to the lack timescales and Departmental Leads.

Delegated decision:

That the Board agree in principle with the proposed Memorandum of 
Understanding as set out in the report and request a further report be 
submitted to the next meeting setting out a more detailed, populated 
Action Plan.

HWB.408 ADULT SAFEGUARDING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT

Amanda Symes, Adult Safeguarding Manager, submitted a copy of the 
Adult Safeguarding Board Annual Report for 2015-16.

The report set out information and statistics in relation to the following:

 Adult Safeguarding Cases 
 Deprivation of Liberty Cases 
 Applications 
 Court of Protection Cases 

The main achievements and forward plans of the following organisations 
was also included within the Annual Report: 

 Bury Safeguarding Adults Board 
 Bury Clinical Commissioning Group 
 Bury Council 
 Greater Manchester Fire an d Rescue Service 
 Greater Manchester Police 
 Pennine Acute NHS Trust 
 Pennine Care, Bury 
 Six Town Housing 

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted. 

Document Pack Page 3



260

HWB.409 BETTER CARE FUND MONITORING REPORT

Pat Jones-Greenhalgh, Executive Director Communities and Wellbeing 
provided a monitoring report in respect of the Better Care Fund.

The Executive Director reported the following key points at Quarter 2:

 As at Q2 the budget is forecasting a balanced position
 All of the national conditions continue to be met
 Funds have been pooled by a s75 pooled budget
 3 out of 6 of the metrics are on track to meet target at the end of the 

year (Delayed Transfers of Care, Falls and Reablement)
 1 metric out of the 6 – data is not available to assess progress (this 

relates to patient satisfaction - awaiting further survey results 
throughout the remainder of year which may impact on the average 
figure.

 No improvement in performance for NELs at Q2
 Improved performance but not on track to meet target for residential 

admissions.
 There is continued work on the NE Sector Integrated Care Record
 There are 16 PHBs in place at Q2

It was reported that information had been included within the report around 
new performance monitoring for the Better Care Fund which allows 
performance to be tracked monthly in relation to the metrics. 

Delegated decision:

   That the report be noted.

HWB.410 SUICIDE UPDATE

Lesley Jones, Director of Public Health, provided a briefing to Board 
Members to raise awareness of the scale of the issue of suicide in Bury.

Suicide is a significant cause of death in young adults, and is seen as an 
indicator of underlying rates of mental ill-health. The topic of suicide 
prevention cuts across a whole range of services and agencies. Until August 
2016 Bury didn’t have either a multi-agency group or a systematic 
approach to addressing suicide. In August 2016 Bury Public Health 
facilitated the first multi-agency suicide prevention meeting, which brought 
together a range of organisations including the Local Authority, Police, Fire, 
CCG, Pennine Acute, Pennine Care, 3rd Sector Organisations, Samaritans 
and lay members. Since August the group has met twice more and has 
audited current suicide prevention activities, reviewed and analysed the 
available data and started the process of developing a local action plan. 

It was reported that there has been a total of 104 suicides by residents of 
Bury between 2011 and 2016 - an average of 18 deaths per year. The Bury 
suicide rate between this period was 55 deaths per 100,000 residents.  

Document Pack Page 4



261

Of the registered deaths from Bury residents, over three quarters (76%) 
were male, while just one quarter (24%) were female. This is similar to the 
national average with the male suicide rate in 2013-2015 (17.6 deaths per 
100,000 population) being three times higher than the female rate (5.3 
deaths per 100,000 population). 

Almost half (43%) of all suicides were by residents aged 45-64 and just 
under one third (29%) were by 30-44 year olds. With regard to locality,
Bury East township (63.7 deaths per 100,000) had the highest rate of 
suicides in Bury between the same period.  In general more suicides 
happened in the more deprived areas compared to the less deprived areas.

In response to a question from the Leader of the Council, the Director of 
Public Health explained that only 25% of cases were previously known to 
Mental Health Services. The Director of Public Health referred to the suicide 
audit which would provide more detailed information and stressed the 
importance of identify potential cases in order to intervene at an early 
stage. Dr Patel highlighted the importance of promoting access to support 
services and preventing social isolation.

Dave Bevitt, Representing B3SDA highlighted the potential impact of 
actions by the Department for Work and Pensions on vulnerable people and 
requested involvement with the Suicide Prevention Group. 

Delegated Decision:

That the update be noted.

HWB.411 LEARNING DISABILITY STRATEGY AND MENTAL HEALTH UPDATE

Nicola Hine, Strategic Planning and Development Officer, submitted an 
update report in relation to the work streams of learning disability and 
mental health. 

With regard to Learning Disability, the report set out details of progress and 
developments in relation to the Strategy for Vulnerable People with a 
Learning Disability which was signed off by the Cabinet Member for Health 
and Wellbeing in September 2016.

In respect of Mental Health, information was provided on the ongoing 
review of supported housing provision and the Local Authority Mental 
Health Challenge which was signed up to by Full Council in April 2016. 

Delegated decision:

That the update be noted.

HWB.412 GREATER MANCHESTER SERVICE SPECIFICATION (AUTISM)

Richard Ward submitted a report outlining the role of the Greater 
Manchester Autism Consortium. The Consortium is partnership of 10 
Greater Manchester Local Authorities providing an autism service that 
covers the whole of Greater Manchester. With regard to future funding it 
was reported that the service will go out to tender in April 2017.

Document Pack Page 5



262

During discussion of this item, Barbara Barlow requested that information 
about the service be put on the Healthwatch website to signpost residents. 
Heather Crozier reported that details and links were available on the Bury 
Directory.

 
Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

HWB.413 CHILD DEATH OVERVIEW PANEL

Lesley Jones, Director of Public Health, provided an update to the Board on 
progress from the Bury, Oldham and Rochdale Death Overview Panel. A 
copy of the Annual report for 2015/16 was submitted.

The child death review functions are compulsory for Local Safeguarding 
Children Boards (LSCB). The areas of Bury, Oldham and Rochdale came 
together to establish a local multi-agency CDOP panel and a terms of 
reference was agreed. The aim of CDOP is to collate and analyse 
information about each child death with a view to identifying any matters of 
concern affecting the safety and welfare of children in the area and any 
wider public health or safety concerns arising from a particular death or 
pattern of deaths.

Each year a CDOP annual report is produced which provides a breakdown of 
all the information linked to the deaths along with a supportive narrative. 
This allows each Local children Safeguarding Board to reflect on the 
findings and ensure any required actions to help address relevant issues 
are taken forward.

In Bury, Oldham and Rochdale (BOR) in 2015/16, a total of 60 child deaths 
were notified and 74 cases were closed (17 of these closed cases were in 
Bury).  This is a slight reduction in the total number of cases closed in 
2014/15 (81) but numbers remain unchanged for Bury and Rochdale in 
isolation.  It was reported that at 3.28 per 10,000 population, Bury’s 
notification rate of child deaths was lower than BOR (3.95 per 10,000) and 
Greater Manchester (GM) as a whole (3.96 per 10,000). The report 
provided a breakdown of closed cases in respect of age, gender and 
ethnicity. 

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

HWB.414 LIVING WELL WITH A LONG TERM CONDITION

Pat Jones-Greenhalgh, Executive Director for Communities and Wellbeing 
Representatives submitted a report providing a summary of the work 
undertaken by the Bury Integrated health and Social Care Partnership who 
oversee the delivery of Priority 3 – Living Well with a Long Term Condition 
or as a carer. A high level info graphic was appended to the report outlining 
progress against actions and outcomes. 

Delegated decision: 

That the contents of the report be noted.

Document Pack Page 6



263

HWB.415 COMMUNICATION AND MARKETING UPDATE

Chloe McCann, Assistant Improvement Advisor, submitted report setting 
out details of a recently held  “Making the Strategy Come Alive” and 
informed Members of the upcoming away day training to be held on 6 
January 2017. The Chair, Councillor Holt, placed on record his thanks to all 
staff involved in the successful Strategy event.

HWB.416 SUB GROUP MINUTES FOR INFORMATION
 

Children’s Trust Board Minutes (30.6.2016)
Bury Integrated Health and Social Care Board Minutes (24.11.2016)
Housing Strategy Programme Board Minutes (02.11.2016) 

   Councillor Trevor Holt
Chair

(Note:  The meeting started at 6pm and ended at 8pm)

Document Pack Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page | 1 
 

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board 

Title of the Report 
 

Ambition for Ageing (Bury) – aligning Groundwork’s 
delivery and investments with local strategies and priorities 

Date 
 

9th March 2017 

Contact Officer 
 

Vicki Devonport – Executive Director (Groundwork) 

HWB Lead in this 
area 
 

Pat Jones- Greenhalgh 

 

1. Executive Summary 
 

 

Is this report for?  Informati

on 
 

Discussi

on 

Decisio

n 

Why is this report being brought to the Board?  
To update and discuss with 

board members on progress 
of the AfA programme in 
Bury; to discuss achievements 

and challenges; to determine 
how learning from the 

programme can be shared 
with strategic partners / 

budget holders 
 

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy priorities the report 
relates to. (See attached Strategy) 

www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeing
board 

Priority 4: Ageing Well  

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment priorities the report relates 
to. (See attached JSNA) 
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/ho

me.page 

 

 Provides a common 
view of health and care 
needs for the local 

community 
 Documents current 

service provision 
 Helps to identify gaps 

in health and care 
services, documenting 
unmet needs 

 Looks at the health of 
the population, with a 

focus on behaviours 
that affect health such 
as social activity.  

Document Pack Page 9 Agenda Item 7

http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page


Page | 2 
 

 Identifies health 

inequalities 
 Is concerned with wider 

social factors that have 

an impact on people’s 
health and wellbeing, 

such as housing, 
poverty and 
employment and social 

isolation.   

Key Actions for the Health and Wellbeing Board 

to address – what action is needed from the 
Board and its members? Please state 

recommendations for action. 

Key actions for the Board are:  

 to note the content of 
the report 

 to support up and 
coming events and the 
Bury AfA launch over 

the next few months 
 we understand that 

currently the HWB 
Board measure success 
in terms of reducing 

social isolation  via 
Public Health outcomes 

and the HUB scorecard, 
are we able to drill 
down to ward level to 

gain an understanding 
of the impact of AfA 

Bury?  
 to help us make a 

greater impact by 

nurturing links to 
services who also 

engage with some of 
the hidden 

communities.  
 to consider if there is 

any opportunity to 

share with us any 
mechanisms of 

identifying and 
engaging with Bury 
residents who are 

significantly isolated 
and to consider if the 

AfA Bury programme 
could add some value 
to the developing LCO 

Staying Well 
programme. 

What requirement is there for internal or 
external communication around this area? 

We would appreciate much 
wider communication about 

Document Pack Page 10



Page | 3 
 

the programme either via 

Council media, community 
events and meeting or via 
social media.  

Assurance and tracking process – Has the report 
been considered at any other committee 

meeting of the Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please provide 

details. 

None 

 

2. Introduction / Background 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board are committed to ensuring that older people are 

able to play an active role within their community and understand that for some 

tackling the impact of social isolation will be all the support they need to lead an 

independent life.  

Effective prevention, reablement, and support which promote independence and 

community resilience, and build on our community assets, are critical and reduce 

the need for hospital admission or long term care and support.  

The AfA Bury Programme brings both investment and opportunity to Bury 

partners and acts as a catalyst to drive forward the actions highlighted in the 

refreshed Bury Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2015-18: Living Well in Bury 

(Making it Happen Together) 

We have attached a briefing note giving some of the progress made to date on 

the AfA Bury Programme, which was circulated to a wide range of partners in 

December 2016 as we feel this gives an overview of progress to date.  

The AfA Programme in Bury helps deliver some of the actions set out in the 

strategy:  

 ensures older people play an active role within their community, tackling 

the impact of social isolation  

 reduces the likelihood of people experiencing a crisis and when they do 

reduces the impact of this.  

3. key issues for the Board to Consider 
 

 How can we share learning with Bury partners to impact on future service 

development? 

 Good progress is being made with the programme – but we could do more 

if we work with partners to reach those furthest away from social activity.  

 How do we make sure that the investments made across Bury lead to 

sustainable change?  

Document Pack Page 11



Page | 4 
 

 How will we know if we have been successful in Bury when the 

investments have been made? What does success look like for Bury 

partners? 

 How might Board members help champion the AfA Bury programme and 

the Ageing Well agenda? 

 The AfA Bury Team are aware of the data provided by the ‘Adult User 

Experience’ Survey – are we able to drill down to ward level in terms of 

analysing the data?  

4. Recommendations for action 

 

 

 Agree to support the programme, events and champion the programme  

 The Board to request an update on the programme in 6-9 months from 

Groundwork  

 The Board to receive a final report at the end of the programme which 

considers how Bury partners might embed and consider the impact of the 

AfA programme across Bury on health and wellbeing when making policy, 

planning decisions and service developments.  

5. Financial and legal implications (if any) 
If necessary please seek advice from the Council Monitoring 

Officer Jayne Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 
151 Officer Steve Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ). 

 

None 

6. Equality/Diversity Implications. Please attach the completed 

Equality and Analysis Form if required.  
 

 

None 

CONTACT DETAILS:  

Contact Officer:       Vicki Devonport, Executive Director 

        Groundwork - changing places and changing lives in  

       Bolton, Bury, Oldham & Rochdale 

Groundwork, Environment Centre, Shaw Road, Higginshaw, Oldham OL1 4AW 

Telephone number:  0161 785 7404 (DD)    

         0161 624 1444 (main switchboard)   

Document Pack Page 12

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


Page | 5 
 

         07867 354452 (mobile) 

 E-mail address:      vicki.devonport@groundwork.org.uk   

 Date: 13th February 2017 

Document Pack Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

                       

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

                                                
 
 
 
 
                                             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ambition for Ageing 

Bury 

Progress towards a more Age-Friendly Bury 

AfA Bury Team – Who we are    

Julie Bentley – Project Co-Ordinator - 0161 7857414 / 07867354440 
Julie.Bentley@groundwork.org.uk   

Kay Smith – Project Officer –  
0161 785 7414 kay.smith@groundwork.org.uk                                   
 
AfA Bury Partners – Who we are working with 

We have enjoyed meeting a wide range of Bury partners to discuss how we can 

align AfA Bury with local strategies and needs and also share the learning. We are 

making use of links with the partners to gain advice. We are also in the process of 

setting up a strategic partnership group. Partners include: Bury Council, Six Town 

Housing, The Lifestyle Service, Radcliffe GP Surgery, Making Space, Bury 

Diabetic Support Group, Libraries, NHS Physiotherapy Service and Best of Bury. 

AfA Bury Investments – Where we are investing 

Organisation Ward Brief 

Friendly Faces Radcliffe 
North 

IT equipment and tuition for their 
group to enable them to 
communicate with friends and family 
digitally 

Incredible Edible St Marys Raised flower beds to enable people 
with mobility issues to participate 
within the group 

Abbey Close Tenants 
and Residents 
Association 

Radcliffe 
North 

6 planters to help make a trail 
around the estate and tools for the 
gardening club to enable new 
members to join in and to keep the 
community looking attractive for all 
residents 

Friends of Chesham 
Woods 

Moorside Dry stone walling course so they 
can fix the wall within the woods and 
also a new notice board so they can 
encourage new members and let 
people know what is going on 

 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 15

mailto:Julie.Bentley@groundwork.org.uk
mailto:kay.smith@groundwork.org.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
 
  

AfA Bury Investments – Where we are investing(cont’d) 

 

 

Organisation Ward Brief 

Clarks Hill Retirement 
Living 

St Marys Meal for all residents to encourage 
new residents and residents who 
never join in with activities to create 
new friendships and also find out 
what they would like to form their 
activity programme for next year 

Our Lady of grace Over 
60’s Club 
 

       

St Marys Supported a meal for a group to 
encourage new members and 
retain current members. Also 
invested in a bingo caller so they 
can hear the caller and continue to 
play bingo. They are hoping this 
will bring back some members who 
have stopped attending and also 
encourage new members. 

 

AfA Bury Investments – Where we are looking to invest next 

Organisation Ward Brief 

Age UK Moorside Secure disability benches for 
outside the centre for members 
and non-members to use 

Indoor Bowling Group Moorside New equipment which will 
enable the group to continue 
and to recruit new members 

The Fed St Marys Activity programme for a group 
of Holocaust survivors who are 
residents at The Fed to increase 
their social activities 

Friendly Faces Radcliffe 
North 

Range of outings to encourage 
new friendships which can be 
built on outside of the group. 
Also to develop confidence of 
people in going out further than 
the local group 

Red Bank Tenants and 
Residents Association 
 

 

Radcliffe 
North 

Craft sessions for residents and 
other community members 
working with the local Pupil 
Referral Unit to show each other 
skills i.e. knitting and using a 
smartphone. Anything made at 
the sessions will be sold to fund 
further sessions. 

 

Document Pack Page 16



 
  

AfA Bury Investments – Where we are looking to invest next (cont’d) 

Organisation Ward Brief 

Incredible Edible St Marys Lock-up in the park for the storage 
of tools – they will also look to 
sharing this with other groups in 
the park 

 

AfA Bury – What we’re working on 

 Developing a calendar of events using volunteers to find information 

about groups, activities and events in the wards and a volunteer to design 

the calendar. 

 Working with 2 volunteers who have highlighted their struggle in going 

into groups without any idea of what the group is like. They will be visiting 

groups and doing reviews which will give people an insight into the group 

for the newsletter. 

 Monthly newsletter sent out to keep people in the loop of what’s going on 

within the project and also for us to shout out for any help. 

 Twitter and Facebook accounts are up and running to give people real 

time updates of what we are doing (have a look -  we have pictures too!)     

Please follow us: https://twitter.com/BuryA4A 

https://www.facebook.com/GroundworkAmbitionforAgeing/  
 
 

AfA Bury – What we’re proud of 

 Excellent working relationships built up with groups and 

organisations with a lot of support within Bury and the local 

communities, receiving invites to group events and also partners 

networking events. 

 Ensuring a happy and fun approach to the project which people 

respond really well to. 

 Volunteers – slowly but surely are developing and finding a role 

within the programme 

 Really good to have made investments and be finishing the calendar 

year on a positive note. 

 Good knowledge of what’s already going on in the wards to enable 

us to build on local strengths. 

 Positive and motivated staff committed to the project. 

 

Document Pack Page 17

https://twitter.com/BuryA4A
https://www.facebook.com/GroundworkAmbitionforAgeing/


 

 

AfA Bury – What we are planning to do next 

 Organising a launch event for the New Year 

 More local networking sessions have been arranged including attending 

the Health and Wellbeing board. 

 Getting more involved in the community – pop up events at local libraries, 

community cafes and supermarkets. 

 Organising more strategic meetings with volunteers to ensure they have a 

clear goal and what they can achieve which fits in with the time they have 

available for the project. 

 Attend the weekly GP surgery session at Radcliffe and develop working 

relationships with GP surgeries in the other wards. 

 Develop closer links with churches, TRA groups and carers groups to 

focus on reducing social isolation. 

AfA Bury – What do we need from you 

 Links to local organisations and groups 

 Championing the programme in local networks and via social media 

 Helping in the co-design of projects 

 Helping us recruit volunteers 

 FOLLOW US ON SOCIAL MEDIA 

 

 

 

 

 

         

Document Pack Page 18



Health & Wellbeing Board Report template

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Locality Plan Update

Date 9th March 2017

Contact Officer David Boulger (Programme Director – Devolution)

HWB Lead in this 
area

Stuart North / Dr Kiran Patel

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Information
x

Discussion
x

Decision
x

Why is this report being brought to the 
Board?

This report provides an update in 
relation to the emergent refresh of the 
Bury Locality Plan and the timeline for 
completion.

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

priorities the report relates to. (See 
attached Strategy)

Living_well_in_Bury_
Making_it_happen_together_Version_8-4.pdf

The system wide nature of this 
programme leads it to relate to the 
entirety of the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy.

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment priorities 
the report relates to. (See attached 

JSNA)

Bury JSNA - Final for 
HWBB 3.pdf

The system wide nature of this 
programme leads it to relate to the 
entirety of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment.

Key Actions for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to address – what 

action is needed from the Board and its 
members? Please state 

recommendations for action.

The Health and Wellbeing Board should 
note the content of this report.

The Health and Wellbeing Board should 
confirm the approach to be taken to 
approve the final refreshed Locality 
Plan.

What requirement is there for internal 
or external communication around this 

Not applicable

Document Pack Page 19 Agenda Item 8



area?
Assurance and tracking process – Has 

the report been considered at any 
other committee meeting of the 

Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please 

provide details.

This specific report has not been 
considered at any other meeting.

Updates a regularly provided in 
meetings with the Council, CCG and 
wider Partners.

2. Introduction / Background

2.1Health and Social Care partners are working collaboratively to undertake 
system wide transformational change.

2.2If not action is taken between now and 2020/21 a substantial system-
wide financial gap across the Bury Health and Social Care system will 
emerge. 

2.3The scale of the challenge requires ambition and transformational thinking 
which will be captured within a refresh of the Bury Locality Plan.

2.4Investment will be sought from the Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership Transformation Fund to enable some of the identified 
transformational activity.

3. key issues for the Board to Consider

3.1Extensive system-wide engagement and design work has taken place over 
the past 18 months which has identified the key transformational shifts 
that will be required:

Document Pack Page 20



3.2To deliver these ‘shifts’ and to maximise impact, there will be a focus on 4 
strategic priorities:

 Building New Relationships – Between Services (One Commissioning 
Organisation / Local Care Organisation); With the Public 

 Staying Well for Longer

 Reducing Failure Demand

 Tackling the Wider Determinants of Health

3.3Extensive activity is ongoing to design a series of Investable Propositions, 
some of which will be used as the basis of a submission to the Greater 
Manchester Health and Social Care Transformation Fund.  

3.4A refreshed version of the Bury Locality Plan is earmarked for completion 
by 31st March 2017, in readiness for discussion and approval at the 
Health and Wellbeing Board.

3.5The submission to the GM Transformation Fund is planned to take place 
on 31st March 2017.

4. Recommendations for action

4.1That Health and Wellbeing Board note the content of this update report.

4.2 That Health and Wellbeing Board confirm an approach to enable final 
approval of the refreshed Bury Locality Plan in April 2017.

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please see advice from the Council Monitoring Officer 
Jayne Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 151 
Officer Steve Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

5.1The final proposals within the Locality Plan will set out the projected 
system-wide financial gap will be closed.

Document Pack Page 21

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


5.2The final proposals will include a request for financial investment from the 
Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership Transformation 
Fund.

6. Equality/Diversity Implications

6.1The final version of the Locality Plan will set out an ambition to improve 
health outcomes and reduce health inequalities, within a financially 
sustainable system.

6.2Specific proposals will be subject to Equality and Quality Impact 
Assessments.

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer: David Boulger (Programme Director – Devolution)

Telephone number: 0161 2535422

 E-mail address: d.boulger@bury.gov.uk      

 Date: 1st March 2017

Document Pack Page 22



Health & Wellbeing Board Report template

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Bury Local Transformation Plan for Children and Young 
People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing – refresh of the 

original plan
Date 09th March 2017

Contact Officer Michael Hargreaves, Senior Commissioning Manager, Bury 
CCG

HWB Lead in this 
area

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Information Discussion Decision

Why is this report being brought to the 
Board? Discussion and decision

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

priorities the report relates to. (See 
attached Strategy)

Living_well_in_Bury_
Making_it_happen_together_Version_8-4.pdf

Priority 1 - Ensuring a positive start to life for 
children, young people and families.

Priority 3 - Helping to build strong 
communities, wellbeing and mental health.

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment priorities 
the report relates to. (See attached 

JSNA)

Bury JSNA - Final for 
HWBB 3.pdf

Children and Young People

Key Actions for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to address – what 

action is needed from the Board and its 
members? Please state 

recommendations for action.

Review and sign up to the principles 
outlined in Section 9 of the Bury 
2017/18 refreshed Children and Young 
People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing 
Local Transformation Plan. This section 
details the plan for 2017/18 and 
beyond. The plan is currently in draft 
form and is subject to further change, 
up to 31st March 2017. 

Document Pack Page 23 Agenda Item 9



Agree a delegation to consult with the 
Chair to sign off the report between 
22nd–31st March, once it has been 

through Bury CCG and the Children’s 
Trust Board governance proceedings.

What requirement is there for internal 
or external communication around this 

area?

There is a requirement to publish the 
approved plan on Bury CCG website 

and Bury Council website by 31st March 
2017.

Assurance and tracking process – Has 
the report been considered at any 
other committee meeting of the 

Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please 

provide details.

 Bury CCG Clinical Cabinet 01/03/17
 Will be signed off at Children’s Trust 

Board on 22/03/17

2. Introduction / Background

The document presents a refresh of the Children and Young People’s Mental 
Health and Wellbeing Local Transformation Plan for 2017/18. 

The Children and Young People’s Local Transformation Plan (LTP) is a five-
year strategic plan to deliver whole system change to children and young 
people’s emotional and mental health support and service provision in Bury. 

The plan was initiated in 2014/15 and incorporates priorities from primary 
prevention through to specialist provision and focuses on improving both 
children and young people’s experience and outcomes. The plan is a “live” 
document refreshed on an annual basis. The refreshed plan (17/18) will be 
published on Bury Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) website and Bury 
Council’s website to replace the current version.
In line with timescales proposed through the Greater Manchester Future in 
Mind Delivery Group and agreed by the Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Partnership, all GM CCGs are to publish a refreshed ‘Children 
and Young People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Local Transformation Plan’ 
for 17/18 (LTP) by 31st March 2017. 

Each CCG’s local plan is designed to complement an overarching GM plan – 
see ‘GM Level Plan’ within Section 9 of the refreshed LTP. 
The refreshed plan has been developed through the Bury LTP Multi- 
Stakeholder Steering Group and Local Implementation Group and will be 
approved as follows:
 

1. CCG Clinical Cabinet (1st March 2017)
2. Bury Local Authority Children’s Trust Board (22nd March 2017)
3. Bury Health and Wellbeing Board (9th March 2017)

The timing of the March Clinical Cabinet and Bury Health and Wellbeing 
Board leaves a number of weeks until publication deadline. As a result there 

Document Pack Page 24



are a small number of sections within the plan still outstanding final 
revision. These are:

 Investment Plan. Specific levels of investment are to be 
determined based on received proposals and funding available. 

 Baseline data and agreed improvement trajectories across some 
key indicators. Most notably, the nationally mandated target to 
achieve a Children and Young People’s Mental Health Service 
access rate of 30% against expected prevalence. Baseline data is 
expected from Pennine Care imminently.

3. Key issues for the Board to Consider

4. Recommendations for action

Review and validate the principles in Section 9 of the Bury 2017/18 refreshed 
Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Local Transformation 
Plan. This section details the actual plan for 2017/18 and beyond. (with the 
caveat that the finance allocation and the access trajectory is to follow).

Agree a delegation to Chair to sign off the report between 22nd–31st March, once 
finances and access trajectory are added and the report has been approved by 
the Children’s Trust Board on 22/03/17

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please see advice from the Council Monitoring Officer 
Jayne Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 151 
Officer Steve Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

The plan is financed via CYP Local Transformation Plan monies, allocated by NHS 
England.

6. Equality/Diversity Implications

None

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer:        Michael Hargreaves 

Telephone number:  0161 762 3188

 E-mail address:       michael.hargreaves@nhs.net 

 Date:                        02 March2017

Document Pack Page 25

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Bury Local Transformation Plan
for 

Children and Young People’s 
Mental Health and Wellbeing

2015-2020
(2016/17 refresh)

V0.7

DRAFT 

Document Pack Page 27



2

Bury Local Transformation Plan

Approved by: NHS Bury Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
(CCG)
Bury Council
Bury Health and Wellbeing Board 
NHS England

Assured by: Bury Health and Wellbeing Board 
NHS England

Date Published:

Available on: Bury CCG website 
Bury Council website
Pennine Care/ Bury CAMHS website

Contact: Catherine Tickle, 
Programme Manager,
Bury CCG
E: catherine.tickle@nhs.net

Karen Whitehead, 
Strategic Lead, Bury 
Council 
E: k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk

Kim Marshall, Operational 
Manager, HYM, Pennine 
Care NHS Foundation Trust
E: kim.marshall1@nhs.net

Document Pack Page 28

mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:catherine.tickle@nhs.net
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:k.whitehead@bury.gov.uk
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net
mailto:kim.marshall1@nhs.net


3

Version Control

Date Version Distributed to Details
14/02/17 V0.1 CCG Initial version for comments
17/02/17 V0.2 LTP Implementation Group For comments
17/02/17 V0.3 LTP Steering Group For comments
17/02/17 V0.4 CCG For comments
20/02/17 V0.5 CCG Incorporated comments
02/03/17 V0.6 Bury CCG Clinical Cabinet Additional finance information
02/03/17 V0.7 Health and Wellbeing Board Update on Bury Parents Forum 

and general formatting changes

Other Professional Stakeholder Groups Consulted

Date Stakeholder Group
Ongoing Greater Manchester Future in Mind group partners
Feb 2017 Services with a section in the plan for their current service
07/02/17 West Sector meeting
14/02/17 North Sector meeting
21/02/17 East Sector meeting
28/02/17 South Sector meeting
01/03/17 Bury CCG Clinical Cabinet
09/03/09 Health and Wellbeing Board

Document Pack Page 29



4

Table of Contents
1.0    Introduction ..................................................................................................................................5

2.0   Greater Manchester Strategic Mental Health Context...........................................................6

3.0   Bury Context ................................................................................................................................8

4.0   Bury’s Current Service Offer ...................................................................................................10

5.0    Activity, Resource and Finance .............................................................................................35

6.0    Bury Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) .................................................45

7.0    Bury Response to Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing..……..48 

8.0    Engagement, Partnerships and Multi-Agency Working......................................................51

9.0    Bury Local Transformation Plan 2017/18 and Beyond ..................................................…  53

10.0 Local Governance .....................................................................................................................76

11.0 Sharing our plan ........................................................................................................................77

12.0   Monitoring and Measurement ...............................................................................................78

13.0 Signatures ..................................................................................................................................80

14.0  Acknowledgements..................................................................................................................81

15.0 Definitions...................................................................................................................................82

Appendix: Bury Local Transformation Plan 2017/18 ....................................................................83

Document Pack Page 30



5

1.0 Introduction

1.1     The Children and Young People’s Local Transformation Plan (LTP) is a 
five-year strategic plan to deliver whole system change to children and 
young people’s emotional and mental health support and service 
provision in Bury. The plan was initiated in 2014/15 and incorporates 
priorities from primary prevention through to specialist provision and 
focuses on improving both children and young people’s experience and 
outcomes. The plan is a “live” document and will be refreshed on an 
annual basis. The plan will be published on Bury Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s (CCG) website and Bury Council’s website.

1.2     The Local Transformation Plan was developed in response to the report 
of the Children and Young People’s Mental Health taskforce, Future in 
Mind, which establishes a clear and powerful consensus about how to 
make it easier for children and young people to access high quality 
mental health care when they need it. This includes involving children 
and young people in the transformational change, working closely with 
the NHS, public health, voluntary and community sector, local authority 
children’s services, education and youth justice sectors to:

 build resilience, promote good mental health and wellbeing, 
and to focus on prevention and early intervention;

 develop a system built around the needs of children, young 
people and their families;

 improve access so that children and young people have easy 
access to the right support from the right service at the right 
time as close to home as possible;

 deliver a clear joined up approach;
 sustain a culture of continual evidence-based service 

improvement delivered by a workforce with the right mix of 
skills, competencies and experience;

 improve transparency and accountability across the whole 
system, including resource allocation and ensuring 
collaborative decision making.

1.3      The announcements of extra funding to transform mental health services 
contained within the autumn statement (December 2014) and Budget 
(March 2015) were designed to help areas build capacity and capability 
across the system so that, by 2020, they can make measurable progress 
towards closing the health and wellbeing gap and securing sustainable 
outcomes for children and young people’s mental health.

Document Pack Page 31



6

2.0   Greater Manchester Strategic Mental Health Context

2.1     Children and Young People’s mental health forms an integral part of the 
Greater Manchester (GM) wide Health and Social Care early 
implementation priorities. Devolution provides Greater Manchester with 
the opportunity to take advantage of its unique position and collectively 
respond to the challenges outlined within Future in Mind and in doing so 
make a step change in the provision of services for Children and Young 
People in Greater Manchester.

2.2     As part of devolution, Greater Manchester made a clear commitment to 
develop the current provision of mental health services, working towards 
parity of esteem. This includes taking collaborative action in making full 
use of the targeted Children and Young People’s mental health 
investment in localities, clusters and across Greater Manchester; 
supporting activity linked to refreshed Local Transformation Plans (LTPs) 
devised to deliver the ambition set out in Future in Mind. This guidance 
emphasises the need for joined-up commissioning and provision. To 
support this system alignment, a Greater Manchester Future In Minds 
Delivery Group has been instigated as a consortium of all 12 x Greater 
Manchester Clinical Commissioning Groups (and will include 10 Local 
Authorities), with representation from the Strategic Clinical Network, NHS 
England Specialised Commissioning and Public Health. The group is 
currently in its infancy and will develop over time to include wider 
partners, including Children and Young People and their families/ carers. 

2.3      There have been a number of Greater Manchester plans produced that will 
provide an umbrella for Bury’s work on children and young people’s mental 
health, via our Local Transformation Plan, and form part of Greater 
Manchester’s Strategic Transformation Plan. Greater Manchester has 
developed a Mental Health and Well-being Strategy that is now moving into 
implementation phase. The strategy restores the balance of services that 
are available, whilst increasing community based services and early 
intervention and reducing the need for higher level interventions. It will 
deliver efficiencies through a reduction of high cost, intensive, interventions 
and use of beds.

 The Greater Manchester strategy focuses on:

• Prevention – Place based and person centered life course approach 
improving outcomes, population health and health inequalities;

• Access – Responsive and clear arrangements connecting people 
to the support they need at the right time; 

• Integration – Parity of mental health and physical illness through 
collaborative and mature cross-sector working; 

• Sustainability – Ensure the best spend on the Greater Manchester 

Document Pack Page 32



7

funding through improving financial and clinical sustainability.  

2.4       As well as this, the Greater Manchester Combined Authority is producing a 
Children’s and Young People’s Mental Health Implementation Plan. This 
sets outs the actions that will take place across GM to support improvement 
in children’s mental health in a number of areas, including:

 Maternity Mental Health Provision;
 Schools  Promotion and Educational Programmes;
 Integrated Health for Youth Offending Services;
 Mental Health Provision for Those in Transition;
 Mental Health for Carers;
 Community Engagement and Provision.

2.5      Greater Manchester is also working on a strategy for integrated children's 
and young people's health and mental health commissioning. This will set 
Greater Manchester wide common standards of provision, and consistent 
target outcomes for all commissioners that promote early intervention and 
preventative action and reduce the variation across Greater Manchester 
boroughs.  

2.6     In September 2015, at the Bury Clinical Commissioning Group Annual 
General Meeting, it was announced that, as part of Greater Manchester 
devolution, health and social care will be commissioned through pooled 
funding arrangements between the Local Council and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group, from April 2016. This should be a key enabler of 
the Local Transformation Plan as it will encourage collaborative working 
and streamline services and support around the needs of the population. 
Services will be commissioned on the basis of priority needs and not 
around organisations. It should also make delivery for providers easier 
as there will be one set of jointly agreed outcomes data and contract 
monitoring.

Document Pack Page 33



8

3.0   Bury Context

3.1    Bury’s estimated resident population in 2015 was 187,900. This is an 
increase in 400 people from the 2014 estimate. Compared to the 
population distribution in England, Bury has more under 15s. 1By 2021, 
the under 15s population in Bury will increase by 15% to 39,800; under 
25s are expected to increase by 6% to 60,400. This means around 30% 
of Bury’s population will be under 25.2

3.2    Compared to the rest of England, Bury is ranked around the middle for 
deprivation at Local Authority and Clinical Commissioning Group level. 
Of the 120 Lower Layer Super Output Areas in Bury, 12 are within the 
most deprived 10% in the country. These are mostly found near the town 
centre, and in the Radcliffe and Besses areas. 3

3.3      After white British, the next largest ethnic group in Bury is Asian (7.1%). 
There is also a growing polish population within the borough. 

3.4     Educational results in Bury remain significantly higher than the England 
average. However, there are educational attainment gaps between 
ethnicities. Also, looked after children experience lower attainment levels 
than the wider population. Education has an impact on employment and 
wider wellbeing issues throughout life and is therefore seen as key in 
ensuring that CYP have the best start in life. 

3.5    From information provided by Bury’s Public Health team in 2017 we know:

CYP mental health disorders
 The estimated prevalence of mental health, emotional and conduct 

disorders in 5-16 year olds are slightly less than regionally and 
England (although not statistically significant);

 Estimates suggest we have just over 2500 16-24 year olds with an 
eating disorder and just over 2700 individuals with ADHD in Bury;

 Estimates suggest we have 785 individuals requiring tier 3 CAMHS 
support and 35 requiring tier 4 CAMHS support

CYP mental health related admissions
 Bury has a significantly higher rate of child admissions for mental 

health in 0-17 year olds compared to both national and regional 
levels (145.7 per 100,000 in Bury vs 87.4 per 100,000 in England), 
this rate has been increasing annually since 2011/2012;

1 Bury population statistics, The Bury JSNA, Bury Council website 
https://www.theburyjsna.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/service.page?id=NM36yP_mUd8
2 Bury Local Transformation Plan 15/16
3 https://search3.openobjects.com/mediamanager/bury/jsna/files/imd_2015_briefing.pdf

Document Pack Page 34



9

 Hospital admissions due to substance misuse in 15-24 year olds is 
significantly higher in Bury when compared to national rates (125.6 
per 100,000 vs 88.8 per 100,000), this has remained relatively stable 
over the last 3 years;

 Hospital admissions due to self-harm (in 10-24 year olds) and due to 
unintentional and deliberate injuries (in 15-24 year olds) are both 
lower in Bury than in England and at regional – however this 
difference is not statistically significant.

Proportion of CYP in risk groups
Areas where we are performing less well than the national figures 
include:

 Number of children in need (remained stable between 2012 and 
2015);

 Number of new cases of children in need (decreased slightly 
since 2012/2013);

 Number of children in need for more than 2 years (increased 
slightly since 2014);

 Number of children in need due to abuse and neglect (decreased 
slightly since 2014);

 Rate of children in need referrals (decreased since 13/14);
 Rate of Looked After Children (remained relatively stable over 

recent years);
 Emotional and behavioural health assessments of LAC (number 

of assessments remained stable since 2012/13)
NB: none of these differences from national rates/numbers are statistically 
significant.

Education risk factors for mental health issues in CYP
Areas where we perform worse than the national figures:
 Bury has a significantly higher number of children who are identified 

as SEN;
 Bury has a significantly higher proportion of pupils who are identified 

as having LD (this increased significantly from 2014 to 2015, in line 
with an increase in the national rates);

 Bury has a significantly higher secondary school fixed period 
exclusion due to drug and alcohol use (this has increased 
significantly from 13/14 to 14/15, in contrast to the national rate 
which remained stable).

Document Pack Page 35



10

4.0   Bury’s Current Service Offer 

Below is a summary of the current provision in Bury:

4.1    A resource directory is available on the Healthy Young Minds (Bury’s 
CAMHS service) website outlining the local resources available in the 
community that the wider Children and Young People’s workforce can 
access when considering support for emotional health and wellbeing. 
The website also offers a wide range of approved web based 
resources including the Department of Health (DoH) sponsored site 
minded.com offering advice, guidance and intervention for less 
complex, lower level presentations that universal service providers and 
families themselves can access.

4.2   The Bury directory is a one-stop information point, for the public and 
professionals,  that offers a wide range of services including advice, 
support, activities, and available services including those to support 
emotional health and wellbeing.  www.theburydirectory.co.uk

4.3    Pennine  Care HYM  has  a  website  for  Children and Young People  
that  covers  mental  health  issues  called  With  U  in  Mind.  
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/

4.4     Table of services:

Document Pack Page 36

http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/UserFiles/Docs/CAMHS%20Directories/Bury%20CAMHS%20resourse%20directory%20Sept%202013.pdf
https://www.minded.org.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/
http://www.withuinmind.nhs.uk/


11

Service Description Provider
Universal Services (Tier 1)– Commissioned by Bury CCG and Bury Local Authority (LA)  
GP’s, 
Health Visitors, 
School Nurses, 
Midwives, 
Teachers, 
Youth Workers

Early Intervention
General advice and treatment for less 
severe problems
Mental Health promotion 
Referral to specialist services

Bury GP’s across the 
Borough. Health 
Vis i tors, schoo l  
nurses, midwives, 
provided by Pennine 
Care.
Education

Community CAMHS (Tier 2)– Commissioned by LA
HYM Outreach
(Child in Need and
Safeguarding 
Team)

Dedicated mental health team 
comprising 2.0 WTE social care staff 
providing assessment, intervention and 
consultation to those C&YP subject to a 
High Level CIN or Child Protection plan. 
Social worker needed to access the 
service

LA provision based 
within Children’s 
services at Higher Lane, 
Whitefield

Integrated Youth 
Support Service

Youth Service Young Carers SAFE 
Project

IYSS

Targeted Provision (Tier 2) - Commissioned by LA
Bury Parents 
Forum

Information, advice training and support 
for parents of children with special 
educational needs

Bury Parents Forum

Early Break Children’s SMS service up to 18 years 
Abstinence programmes, education and 
psychosocial support

Early Break

Educational 
Psychology 
Service

Offering information, advice, training and 
support for schools working with pupils 
with social, emotional and mental health 
needs

Primary PRU – The Ark

Additional Needs 
Team

Offering information, advice, training and 
support for schools working with pupils 
with social, emotional and mental health 
needs

Primary PRU – The Ark

Behaviour  
Outreach Team

Primary PRU – The Ark

Pupil Referral Units Secondary PRU – Pupil 
Learning Centre (PLC)

Community CAMHS (Tier 2)– Commissioned by CCG

Document Pack Page 37



12

Children’s IAPT 
(Improving 
Access
to psychological 
therapies)

Mental health team working in primary 
care offering assessment and brief/early 
interventions for children and young 
people with                  mild to moderate 
mental health and emotional wellbeing 
issues. A further focus of the service is 
to support children and young people at 
risk of exclusion from school, ensuring 
educational opportunities are 
maximised

Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust based 
at  Humphrey House, 
Bury

NB: this service has 
now been integrated 
into core CAMHS

Children’s IAPT 
(Improving 
Access
to psychological 
therapies)

Service for young people aged between 
sixteen and twenty five with a diverse 
range of conditions from anxiety to 
severe mental illness

Streetwise (3rd sector) 
providers based at 
Humphrey House, Bury

NB: This service is run 
by Healthy Minds. 

Core CAMHS (Tier 2/3) – Commissioned by LA
HYM  Outreach  
CYPIC team 
(children and 
young people in 
care)

Dedicated mental health team 
comprising 2.0 WTE ‘LAC’ staff 
providing assessment, therapeutic 
interventions, consultation and training 
to C&YP, carers, adoptive parents and 
social care staff and 1.0 WTE clinical 
psychologist

LA and PCFT providers 
based at Higher lane, 
Whitefield.

Core CAMHS (Tier 3)– Commissioned by CCG
Core Healthy 
Young Minds team

Multidisciplinary Team providing 
specialist assessments and a range of 
evidenced based interventions for 
C&YP (age 5-18) with moderate to 
severe mental health needs. Also 
providing consultation, advice and 
training to other agencies

Pennine  Care  NHS  
Foundation Trust

Enhanced CAMHS (Tier 3/ 3.5)– Commissioned by CCG and LA
Inreach / 
Outreach team 
(shared resource 
across Pennine 
Care)

Supports C&YP up to age 16 with 
severe problems within local services 
and facilitates admission and discharge 
from T4 provision

Pennine  Care  NHS  
Foundation Trust

Inpatient and specialised services (Tier 4) - Commissioned by NHS England
Hope Unit Inpatient unit for short term acute 

assessment and treatment for 13 to 18 
year olds in Bury

Pennine  care  NHS  
Foundation Trust

Document Pack Page 38



13

Horizon Unit Inpatient unit for significant complex 
mental illness or disorder where longer 
term care is required for 13-18 year 
olds in Bury

Pennine  care  NHS  
Foundation Trust

Specialist Services (Tier 4) – commissioned by NHS England
FACT’s Forensic Adolescent Consultation and 

Assessment service
Greater Manchester 
West  NHS Foundation 
Trust

Core Service

Healthy Young Minds (formerly CAMHS)

4.5      Bury Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (now named Healthy 
Young Minds) offer specialist services to children and young people who 
are experiencing mental health difficulties. The service is delivered by 
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust. Healthy Young Minds (HYM) 
helps children and young people up to the age of 16 years (and up to 18 
years for neurodevelopment) and provides assessment and intervention 
and support to their families/ carers. Some of the problems that Healthy 
Young Minds help with include:

 Anxiety;
 Depression;
 Eating disorders;
 Psychosis – they jointly diagnose with the Early Intervention 

Team from age 14 years;
 Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD);
 Self-harm;
 Neurodevelopment  (ASD/ ADHD);
 More complex psychological difficulties

           Bury Healthy Young Minds also provides consultation, advice and training 
to other agencies and accept referrals from a wide range of 
professionals. The team is multi-disciplinary, which means clinicians 
come from a range of clinical and professional backgrounds. This may 
include psychiatrists, nurses, Healthy Young Minds practitioners and 
psychologists, social workers, amongst others.

           The Healthy Young Minds Service in Bury was redesigned back in 2013/ 
14. This redesign merged the Children and Young People’s Improving 
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) and Tier 3 CAMHS services. 
Healthy Young Minds operates a multi-disciplinary Single Point of Entry 
(SPoE) approach for 5 to 16 year olds presenting with emotional 
wellbeing and mental health needs. In addition there are two other joint 
SPoE arrangements for the neurodevelopmental pathway with Pennine 

Document Pack Page 39



14

Acute Hospitals NHS Trust pediatric services, and for the CAMHS to 
Adult Mental Health Services (AMHS) pathway.

            Referral into Healthy Young Minds is via a referral form which is 
completed by an appropriate professional. There is also a consultation 
model in place which offers advice and guidance, with potential referral 
into the service.

            There are no specific exclusion criteria within Bury in respect of who can 
and cannot refer into the service. Main referrers into the service are GPs 
and other health related professionals, school staff, Special Educational 
Needs Coordinators (SENCOs), educational psychologists, social care, 
Early Help team, additional needs team, paediatrics, accident and 
emergency (A&E), and third sector in relation to stepped care framework 
and some self-referrals from parents.

            Bury Healthy Young Minds works within a stepped care framework as 
per the diagram below. This concept offers some key principles around 
consultation and liaison, brief intervention and clear pathways for sentinel 
conditions (i.e. ASD, ADHD and long term conditions), which are flexible 
enough to be tailored to and meet the needs of different families, 
communities and neighbourhoods.

Document Pack Page 40



15

4.6     Healthy Young Minds provides an immediate response where a child or 
young person presents to A&E as suicidal or presents with an episode of 
acute psychosis. For those presenting without suicide ideation, Healthy 
Young Minds follows up within 24 hours or offers an urgent appointment 
within 7 days.

4.7     The In Reach/ Out Reach team (Enhanced Tier 3 service) supports young 
people in crisis 7 days per week in providing home treatment, and 
providing gatekeeping for Tier 4 beds and facilitation of early discharge.

4.8    Fairfield Hospital in Bury accommodates the Hope and Horizon Units 
which are part of Healthy Young Minds inpatient facilities. The Hope Unit 
is an acute unit which provides short term crisis intervention to young 
people aged 13 to 18 years, whose mental health needs cannot be 
managed in community. The typical length of stay on the Hope Unit is 6 
to 8 weeks. 

4.9   Bury Healthy Young Minds service is well regarded by people accessing 
the service and, in 2015, the Friends and Family test results were the 
highest across the Healthy Young Minds footprint, with 93% of 
respondents answering that they would be extremely likely to 
recommend the local service.

4.10  The SPoE approach to screening and triaging has led to referrals no 
longer being rejected by Healthy Young Minds. Since the implementation 
of the Local Transformation Plan in 2015 they are either accepted, if 
appropriate, or are signposted and re-directed to other services across 
Bury. Since introducing the SPoE, the Healthy Young Minds team actively 
promotes resilience and self-help through joint assessment with other 
professionals and supporting them with the family.

4.11    Bury Council have a fully operational Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub 
(MASH) and also an effective Early Help Team (EHT)

Document Pack Page 41



16

General Services

Forensic Adolescent Consultation and Treatment Service (FACTS)

4.12   The Forensic Adolescent Consultation and Treatment Service works across 
the North West, including Greater Manchester providing an assessment and 
treatment service for people aged 10 to 18 years. The local Bury Healthy 
Young Minds team contact FACTs if they have a person who is 
demonstrating complex, high risk behaviours which may be associated with 
forensic complexity and feel that an extensive assessment is necessary. The 
assessment covers mental state, diagnosis, risk, needs, psychological 
functioning, placement and treatment options. Since the introduction of the 
LTP in 2015,  the Healthy Young Minds team has actively worked to refer to 
the FACTS team as soon as they start to see complex, high risk behaviors so 
that support can be given before the young person is in need of the forensic 
pathway. 

            North East Sector (NES) Community Based Eating Disorders 
Service for CYP

 4.13  Prior to the mobilisation of the Local Transformation Plan, services for 
eating disorders were provided in a fragmented way across the north 
east sector. However, as a result of Local Transformation Plan monies, 
there is now a dedicated eating disorders service across the north east 
sector which focusses on prevention and early intervention, whole 
system, integrated and multi-agency working and is outcomes focussed. 
The service went live on 4th July 2016 and is progressing with a number 
of direct referrals and an increasing number of referrals for enhanced 
urgent home treatment, thus avoiding medical and Tier 4 admissions. 
The service is delivered through a hub and spoke model as well as within 
young people’s homes where appropriate. There was a phased 
implementation when the service began, as recruitment was ongoing. 
However, the service is now a fully up and running and is a NICE 
compliant service.

Document Pack Page 42



17

            In August 2016, the Community Eating Disorders team participated in 
the inaugural meeting of the Greater Manchester Eating Disorder 
Network, facilitated by the Strategic Clinical Network and have given 
commitment to participating fully in these events as an opportunity to 
share good practice and learning across Greater Manchester and work 
collaboratively with other organisations and Greater Manchester 
commissioners.

Perinatal Care 

  4.14  In Bury, there is a post-natal depression therapeutic group, provided by a 
Health Visitor and a CPN. This has run for many years on a 6 weekly 
cycle. It was our vision to give consideration to the expansion of this 
group, potentially through development of a Liaison post. Over 2016/17 
our vision was also to increase access to the Bury Exercise and Therapy 
Scheme (BEATS), give greater access to healthy lifestyle interventions, 
further workforce development in relation to CBT training, a more joined 
up pathway including a focus on bereavement, miscarriage and stillbirth 
and invest in third sector preventative and early intervention services and 
support. We wanted our focus to be around supporting women to self-
care and have awareness of perinatal issues and what they can do to 
start to improve/ maintain their mental health themselves. 

   4.15 In Nov 14 to Jun 15 Bury piloted a One-Stop Perinatal Mental Health 
Clinic. This was set up with the support of the Psychological Medicine 
Service and Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust. The pilot was very well 
received by both patients and by maternity staff who found it a helpful 
resource to help them deal with complex patients with mental health 
problems and deliver care in line with national guidance. 

Integrated Youth Support Service

4.16   The Integrated Youth Support Service consists of Connexions Bury, the 
Youth Service, Young Carers and the SAFE Project. 

 Connexions Bury
4.17    Connexions is an information, advice, guidance and support service for 

all 13-19 year olds in the Bury area. The service is available up to age 24 
for young people with special education needs and disabilities (SEND).

            Connexions provide a range of services designed to help young people 
to maximize their potential and achieve their goals. These services 
include:

Document Pack Page 43



18

 Universal information, advice, guidance and support on 
education, employment, training, careers and personal 
issues e.g. health, housing, benefits etc.;

 Targeted support for the most vulnerable e.g. young 
offenders, teenage parents, Special Education Needs and 
Disabilities, those not in education, employment or training 
(NEET), young carers, children and young people in care/ 
care leavers etc.

           The Connexions Service is provided by professionally qualified Personal 
Advisers (PAs) working in 3 Knowsley Place,  schools, colleges, training 
provider premises and local partner agency and voluntary sector bases. 
There are currently 14.7 Full Time Equivalent Personal Advisors 
employed by Connexions with 13.2 Full Time Equivalents split equally 
between the universal and targeted parts of the service and 1.5 Full Time 
Equivalents identified for Special Education Needs and Disabilities work.

            The targeted support services highlighted are delivered by a Transition 
Team. These services cover targeted transition work, duty cover and 
support for Not in Education Employment or Training (NEET) young 
people up to their 20th birthday. Targeted transition work begins in 
schools during Year 11 for those at risk of not participating in post 16 
learning. Enhanced support is provided for this cohort until December to 
ensure post 16 participation is sustained and risk of ‘drop out’ reduced. 

  4.18  In Bury we have recognised that Connexions may come into contact with 
a number of young people with low level mental health needs who are not 
meeting the threshold of any services. If no support/ signposting is 
provided at this early point, these are the individuals who could potentially 
end up long term unemployed with more severe and enduring mental 
health problems. The numbers of young people with low level mental 
health needs is not routinely captured systematically anywhere. 
However, we know from population estimates that the likelihood is that 
there are high numbers falling into this category. Therefore, in 2017/18 
Bury intend to look at:

 Training and supporting Connexions staff to identify key factors 
which may indicate low level mental health needs and record 
this;

 Identify the support/ interventions available that this cohort of 
young people could be referred to/ signposted to by 
Connexions staff

This will be included in our plan for 17/18 as part of our local workforce 
development.

      

Document Pack Page 44



19

 Youth Service
4.19   Bury Youth Service works with targeted young people at Tier 2 in a variety 

of settings, including: schools, Pupil Referral Units, Cloughside College, 
Streetwise and youth settings. They work with groups including:  Care 
leavers, Young Carers, LGBTQ, Special Education Needs and Disabilities 
(SEND) and Child Sexual Exploitation. The Youth Service also offers a 
mentoring service, working one to one with young people. 

           The work that the Youth Service is involved in aims to build the resilience, 
self-esteem and emotional intelligence of young people, improving their 
mental health and wellbeing and making the transition into adulthood a 
more positive process. Staffing consists of: 1 x Manager, 4 FTE, Youth 
Workers and 1 x Outdoor Instructor. 

            In 2015/16 there were 308 participants in youth work activities. The 
Youth Service will continue to deliver programmes of work alongside 
partners to improve the mental health and wellbeing of children and 
young people. New projects starting in January 2017 include a Young 
Carers Group at Parrenthorn, resilience project in Park House and a Care 
Leavers Drop in

 Young Carers
4.20   Bury Young Carers service provides statutory assessment and support to 

young people who have a caring responsibility within the home. This is 
delivered from the New Kershaw Community Centre or at the homes of 
young people. 

            Following the assessment, an action plan is agreed which informs the 
level of service required, this includes: one to one support for young 
people, support for parents, group activities and ‘residentials’ delivered 
by the Youth Service. 

            The service is staffed by 1.25 Full Time Equivalents (FTEs). In 2015/16 
there were 70 referrals to the service and 58 of these were accepted. 
The service is currently meeting the statutory requirement of assessment 
for those children and young people who are referred into the service. 
However, the service is aware that there are an unknown number of 
young people who have not been identified or identified themselves as 
having caring responsibilities.

           The number of referrals decreased in 2016/17 with 36 referrals from April 
2016 to end January 2017. 30 of these referrals were accepted, the 
remaining 6 did not want to engage with young carers. The reason for the 
decrease was because staff were training so assessing young carers took 
longer. There was also less time to engage with schools, with most 
referrals coming from social care. We expect that as we move into 
2017/18 the engagement with schools will increase again and referrals 
will increase as a result.

Document Pack Page 45



20

 SAFE project
4.21     The SAFE project is a preventative project delivered in schools to increase 

resilience in young people and decrease risk taking behaviour, 
particularly with respect to Child Sexual Exploitation, alcohol, substance 
use, E-safety and delaying early sex. It is delivered in all Bury high 
schools to year 8 or 9 pupils in small targeted groups. 

            The project is staffed by 0.75 Full Time Equivalents.  In 2015/16, 91 
young people from 10 schools took part in the project.  73% experienced 
an increase in self-esteem (Warwick Edingurgh Mental Well Being Scale), 
76% reported improvements in their own behaviour and safety in the use 
of social media and 83% identified improvements in their relationships 
with friends and family.

Early Break

4.22  Early Break is a charity that works with children, young people and 
families. Historically their main area of work has been to offer free 
advice, information and support to young people and families to help 
reduce the risks associated with drug and alcohol use. Over recent years 
they have expanded their offer to also include emotional health and 
wellbeing work, working with child sexual exploitation, holistic therapies, 
work with asylum seekers and workforce development. Their website 
gives wider information www.earlybreak.co.uk

            Their substance misuse work in Bury and Rochdale Early Break 
includes counselling, treatment, information and support about drug and 
alcohol abuse for young people aged 18 years and under.

          The Early Break “Holding Families” programme supports children and 
families affected by parental substance misuse. Children and adult needs 
are dealt with and responded to at the same time. The model offers a 
range of individual support sessions, group work and family meetings. 
Early Break’s “Holding Families” programme is unique in that it:

 supports children of any age, including pre-birth;
 has a bespoke family database so qualitative and quantitative 

outcomes can be evidenced;
  is a person-centred model and the child is the focus;
 works with parents at any stage of recovery from substance 

misuse;
 works individually with each family member as well as the 

whole family and offers support for carers and concerned 
others;

 develops, reviews and evaluates the service with service users 
and academic researchers;

 provides ongoing support and follow up for families;

Document Pack Page 46

http://www.earlybreak.co.uk/


21

 supports the work of existing services such as treatment 
services and children’s services.

           Early Break also offers holistic therapies to benefit general health and 
wellbeing, to complement existing treatments or interventions, to reduce 
stress and anxiety, to improve concentration and alertness and to aid 
quality of sleep. The therapies are provided within schools, alternative 
education providers, care homes, in-patient child mental health units and 
supported accommodation (or could be provided in other settings as 
required). The holistic therapies provided include: aromatherapy, 
reflexology, auricular acupuncture and Indian head massage.

              Early Break has a wellbeing fund which is available to all of their clients. 
The fund was set up to help young people in times of extreme hardship 
and crisis and also to support young people in developing skills and 
engaging in extracurricular activities. The fund has helped young people 
in a number of ways, for example by helping purchase college books, 
providing gym and swimming passes, home essentials such as bedding 
and cooking utensils and affording clothes in times of crisis. The fund has 
also been awarded to young people to fund start up equipment for new 
hobbies and activities.

           Early Break is very active on social media through EarlybreakUK on 
Facebook and EarlybreakUk on twitter and also has a strong voice in 
both local and national media. In the last year they have reached over 1 
million people via their digital work.

Home-Start Bury

4.23  Home-Start Bury is a voluntary organisation that recruits and trains 
volunteers who then support families with at least one child under the 
age of 5, that are experiencing difficulties in their lives. The scheme had 
around 40 active volunteers each year and has 4 paid members of staff 
when the Local Transformation Plan was first submitted in 2015. They 
now have 45 active volunteers and 3 paid members of staff. Home-Start 
Bury works under the guidance of Home-Start UK who provides training, 
quality assurance standards, legal and human resource support. In 14/15 
the service supported 67 families and 167 children. In 15/16 the service 
supported 76 families 183 children, an increase from 14/15. The 16/17 
figures not available until 1/4/1. However they have already seen a 22% 
increase on referrals compared to this time last year.

            The families that are supported by Home-Start Bury are affected by any 
number of factors, including: mental health issues, lack of confidence, 
post-natal depression, disability, bereavement, social isolation, physical 
illness, poor parenting skills, coping with the demands of multiple young 
children and also an increasing number of families affected by 
substantial poverty and debt. The service offered is delivered in families’ 

Document Pack Page 47



22

own homes, through volunteers and through a support package tailored 
to the each family; often this can be small, cost effective interventions 
which prevent deterioration into family members requiring statutory social 
care and health services.

            Although Home-Start Bury does not specifically work within the remit of 
children and young people’s mental health issues, it is recognised that 
the state parent carer emotional wellbeing can have a detrimental impact 
on the child’s development. This can, if not addressed, shape a child’s 
future and widen the gap.

            Home-Start Bury works with many families who have mental health 
needs. Sometimes recognised mental h e a l t h  conditions are highlighted 
at the time of the referral and at other times they do not become apparent 
until Home-Start support has begun and the trusting relationship with the 
volunteer has been established. In the last 12 months we have seen a 
rise in referrals from health professionals for reasons which include: 
compulsive obsessive disorders, psychiatric problems, depression, 
agoraphobia, mental health problems including post- natal depression, 
isolation, end of life as well as physical disabilities and chronic illness.

            The aim of the service is to empower families to take control of their lives 
and give them encouragement to seek out the best solutions at a pace 
that suits them and gives them the right support at the right time.

              Home-Start works in an inclusive way, providing support from volunteers 
who have experienced similar issues. On average over 35% of our 
volunteer workforce have experience of both the CAHMS service and 
adult mental health services. This helps to reduce the stigma associated 
with mental health and the services there to help. 

Streetwise 2000

4.24   Streetwise 2000 help, support and educate young people aged between 
14 and 25 using psychological interventions, group work and one-to-one 
support. Using a variety of evidenced-based approaches, Streetwise aim 
to provide young people with the opportunities, peer-support and tool-kits 
to enable them to develop their physical, emotional and social 
capabilities. It also aims to support young people who are often seen as 
“hard to engage” and are generally excluded from mainstream services, 
to improve the quality of their lives.

           Streetwise 2000:

 Has an interface with 350 Bury young people (per year)
 Receive an average of 250 new referrals (per year)
 Offer 3120 face-to-face interventions (per year)

Document Pack Page 48



23

            Overall, Streetwise aim to support young people to achieve independent 
living and empower them to understand their conditions or difficulty, 
develop self-care skills, foster resilience & use peer-support networks. 
Around 85% of young people move on to independent living, free from 
services, when they complete their support with Streetwise.

            Young people are encouraged to participate within Streetwise Young 
Persons’ Forum take a lead in all aspects of service delivery, including 
planning, consultation, project delivery, evaluation and monitoring. All 
work underpins a recovery and self-care model; and young people are at 
the centre of supporting their peers to achieve independence. Voluntary 
roles within Streetwise ensure continuity of offer, safe practice & ensure 
the culture of re-enablement, resilience and recovery is infiltrated through 
the service offer. Alongside the core staff team, 10 volunteers attend on 
a weekly basis, and around 30 volunteers support as and when 
required. Young people volunteer to become peer-mentors, peer-leaders, 
befrienders or group work facilitators in partnership with the staff team.

            During 2016, Streetwise received the highest number of referrals in the 
history of the service (+14% from 2015). Of this, 15% were self-referrals, 
and these were mostly received through the 'contact us' form on the 
website. Streetwise aim to prioritise the effective use of social media, as 
a means to reach as many young people in need before it reaches crisis 
point or the need for a statutory intervention. Every young person who 
engaged in more than 6 sessions during 2016 saw an increase in skills in 
various functional areas, a decrease in symptoms and a broader self-
care skill base.

4 Feedback from Streetwise Feb 2017

Young people say:

       “This place has provided the support and the environment 
needed to overcome my poor social skills, feel better about 
myself and make new friends.”

            “When I first came here I used to flip out and kick off but 
then not remember what I’d said or done. Since coming here 
it’s helped me gain control over my anger so at least when 
I’ve kicked off, I can remember why and apologise and put 
things right. I’ve still got a way to go but coming here is the 
highlight of my week”

            “I owe so much to the people here and the services they’ve 
provided that it’s difficult to put into words. After years of 
being passed around professionals and various services I’d 
almost given up at ever feeling better again but after coming 
here I can finally see a better outcome. Streetwise isn’t just 
another counselling service; it’s a place to make friends and 
be yourself, with my only regret not coming here sooner.” 4

Document Pack Page 49



24

            Streetwise had substantial involvement in the engagement of children 
and young people in the initial stages of the Local Transformation Plan. 
This involvement will be ongoing through 2017/18.

 

First Point Family Support Services (formerly Bury Parents Forum)

4.25  Through the Local Transformation Plan, First Point Family Support 
Services (Formally Bury Parents Forum) offer personalised individual 
support to families in a unique person centred way. Their personable 
approach and extensive local knowledge of what is available ensures the 
families they support make better informed choices about their childs’ 
and their own well-being and support. Empowering families and 
upskilling them to be confident and knowledgeable ensures they take 
control and make positive choices. 

            Their individual support to parents/ families is through individual case 
management tailored to each family’s individual circumstances and 
needs. It includes brokering additional support that they may otherwise 
be unaware of or may be having difficulty accessing. 

            They are commissioned by Children’s Services in Bury Local Authority 
(Social Care) to support families who have children with additional needs 
or disabilities. They hold a caseload of families, providing them with 
guidance, advice and practical support, whilst also empowering families 
to upscale their own skills set and knowledge. They do this in various 
ways and on average they undertake eleven interventions per family

           They also currently hold contracts with the School Nursing team offering 
one to one direct support to the families.

           They are also commissioned by Healthy Young Minds through Bury NHS 
Clinical Commissioning Group to carry out post diagnostic work for 
parents who have children/ young people newly diagnosed with Autism 
or Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder. They access a 5 week training 
programme and also receive individual one to one support. 

Relax Kids Bury

4.26    Relax Kids Bury is a new franchise in Bury which has developed as a part of 
Relax Kids, an NHS Programme which won the 2011 Nursing Standards 

Document Pack Page 50



25

Award (Mental health category). Relax kids teaches children and their 
families basic relaxation and emotional regulation techniques. The 
programme has helped support children with special needs, Autism, 
Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder, Attention Deficit Disorder, Tourette’s, 
selective mutism, anger and anxiety issues, low self-esteem, vulnerable, 
gifted and talented and behavioural problems.

            Relax Kids Bury runs a 6 week course for up to 10 children. Each course 
costs approximately £300. Relax Kids Bury is a new service in the Bury 
area, and is not commissioned by health or social care.

Early Years and Early Help

4.27    The Early Years’  Team support the provision of the Bury Directory for children 
and their families, ensuring information about childcare, services and 
activities  are accurate and up to date. 

            Support, advice and training is offered to early years providers regarding the 
Early Years Foundation Stage , including welfare requirements, safeguarding, 
and supporting children with additional needs and disabilities.  

            There are 5 Children Centre Hubs across the borough, three have linked 
spokes offering a broad range of services to families with children under the 
age of five, both in terms of activities, courses and centre based sessions 
and an Outreach Service

           
Drop-in support for Bury young people

4.28    Young people in Bury can now benefit from new drop-in health sessions twice 
a month at Townside Primary Care Centre. 

           Bury School Nursing Service, run by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust, is 
providing the sessions for 16 to 19 year olds to go along without an 
appointment for support. The sessions are held at Townside Primary Care 
Centre on the second and fourth Monday of each month.

           Trained nurses are available to give confidential advice on long term health 
conditions, emotional health, sleep support, healthy eating, exercise and 
weight management, sexual health, drugs and alcohol, stopping smoking and 
more.

            They will also be able to make a referral or signpost to other support services 
as appropriate.

           Amelia Brummit, School Nurse, said: “The drop-ins offer an informal and non-
judgmental environment for young people to come and chat to us about any 
concerns they might have. This will hopefully mean we can address any 

Document Pack Page 51



26

issues early, before they become a bigger or more serious problem. We also 
hope the service will reassure young people that there is always somewhere 
they can go for support, to help them reach their full potential.”

            More information about Bury School Nursing Service is available at: 
www.penninecare.nhs.uk/buryschoolnursing

            People can also keep up to date by liking the team’s Facebook page by 
searching for ‘Bury School Nurses.’

Document Pack Page 52

http://www.penninecare.nhs.uk/buryschoolnursing


27

Services Focussing on Prevention

Health visitors/ school nurses/ family nurse partnership (FNP)/ 
Infant feeding Co-ordinator

4.29   Health Visitors and School Nurses are public health nurses who lead and 
co-ordinate local delivery of the Healthy Child Programme, which has a 
focus on delivering health improvement and public health interventions to 
children aged 0-19 and their families.

           Health Visiting, the Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) and School Nursing 
services work in collaboration with wider health and social care partners, 
work with families, individuals and the wider community to deliver the 
research based Healthy Child Programme and improve health and 
wellbeing outcomes for children aged 0-19 years, based on a 
proportionate universalism approach to reduce health inequalities.

           Health visitors take the lead for those children aged 0-4 years and school 
nurses take the lead for those aged 5-19 years, with effective smooth 
transition of care upon school entry inextricably linking the services.

           The four tier model of provision is detailed below, showing work 
undertaken at community, universal, universal plus and universal 
partnership plus tiers:

            Additional support is available to parents through services such as the 
Family Nurse Partnership and the Infant Feeding Co-ordinator.

Document Pack Page 53



28

            The Family Nurse Partnership is a relatively new service in Bury that 
commenced late 2014. It is a nationally implemented evidence based 
programme that is available to eligible first time mums aged under 20 
years of age; providing intensive support in the antenatal period up to 
the time when the child turns two years old.

            Bury’s Infant Feeding Co-ordinator leads on helping mothers make 
informed feeding choices and where breastfeeding is their choice; 
encourages breastfeeding to at least 6 months of age (optimal period) or 
longer by providing expert advice and support across the Health and 
Early Years workforce and also providing direct specialist support where 
required.  The Infant Feeding Co-ordinator has a lead role in achieving/ 
maintaining full UNICEF Breastfeeding Initiative accreditation 
(community award).

            Currently in Bury, the Health Visiting Service, Infant Feeding Co-
ordinator, School Nursing Service and the newly established FNP 
service are provided by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust.

Document Pack Page 54



29

Services Focussing on Early Intervention/ Emerging Mental 
Health Problems

Counselling

4.30    It is difficult to obtain a full picture of current school counselling services 
across Bury. This is because there is no standardisation or mandated 
requirements in this area for schools. Schools often commission their own 
services through private arrangements. However, as a result of the Local 
Transformation Plan funding, links have now been made with schools 
through Healthy Young Minds link workers, which were recruited in 
2016/17, and through other services, such as Educational Psychology. At 
a local level the Local Transformation Plan Steering Group continues to 
work together throughout 2017/18 to further develop services to Children 
and Young People in schools.

Educational Psychology

4.31    The Educational Psychology service in Bury advise parents, schools and 
the Authority on children's Special Educational Needs through 
consultation, identification and assessment. The team work closely with 
the SEN Team and the Child Development Centre at Fairfield Hospital. 
In addition the service also provides intervention training and project 
work. The service is available Monday to Friday 9am to 5pm. 

Document Pack Page 55



30

           Services Focussing on Existing Mental Health Problems 
and Crisis Care

S136 Suites

4.32    In Bury the S136 suite is located at Fairfield hospital. Any child or young 
person picked up by the police, who require an s136 suite will be taken to 
that unit. Any s136 presentations are handled through the mental health 
and liaison and diversion services. 

 Crisis Care Concordat

4.33   Bury are signed up to the Greater Manchester Crisis Care Concordat. The 
Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat is a national agreement between 
services and agencies involved in the care and support of people in 
crisis. It sets out how organisations will work together better to make sure 
that people get the help they need when they are having a mental health 
crisis.

           The local Bury Crisis Concordat Action Plan is being taken forward by the 
Bury Mental Health Multi-Disciplinary Group. It covers the following 
themes:

 Commissioning to allow earlier intervention and responsive 
crisis intervention;

 Access to support before crisis point – 16 to 18 year olds with 
eating disorders are seen and assessed by Rapid Assessment 
Interface and Discharge team (RAID). NICE guidance says 
they should be seen by specialist services and we are working 
on this through our refreshed Local Transformation Plan.5 
Also, in the refresh of our 2017/18 Local Transformation Plan, 
Bury are committed to significantly enhancing our offer by 
increasing the age of our Healthy Young Minds services to 
beyond 16 years. We will also improve the interfaces with 
services such as street triage and others outlined in the Bury 
Crisis Care Concordat Action Plan;

 Urgent and emergency access to crisis care - Healthy Young 
Minds referrals are triaged daily and are assessed for risk and 
allocated on an urgent, priority routine basis.  There is a 
protocol in place with the local A&E department to respond to 
children who present during the day in crisis.  Children and 
young people who are admitted in crisis or following acts of 
deliberate self-harm (DSH) are offered a 7 day follow up. 
Healthy Young Minds support children and young people 
known to the service prior to discharge to support discharge 
planning.  Out of hours there is access to on call Healthy 

5 Bury Mental Health Crisis care Concordat Action Plan v0.11, 23/11/16

Document Pack Page 56



31

Young Minds managers, including psychiatry up to the age of 
16.  Where a young person presents at any out of area 
hospital they will typically be assessed by the local CAMHS 
team and followed up by Bury services. 

 The Healthy Young Minds service works with the wider 
children’s workforce, especially primary care to enable them to 
provide early intervention/ support by educating staff on the 
roles and functions of CAMHS and offering clinical support. 
The Rapid Assessment Interface and Discharge (RAID) team 
has been trained to work with children and young people and 
Healthy Young Minds and they have developed a shared 
interface to move this work forward. One to two workers are 
required to work with and across teams to ensure the current 
gap in transition is closed, whilst we work up our transition 
team. This is included in our Local Transformation Plan 
workforce development for 2017/18;

 Quality of treatment and care when in crisis – there is currently 
no children’s 136 suite in Bury and we recognize this as a gap, 
this is being moved forward under the Bury Crisis Care 
Concordat Action Plan;

 Local benchmarking has highlighted the need to look at the 
Early Help offer in respect of Emotional Mental Health and 
Wellbeing. There is noted evidence that there are service and 
training/ development needs in the current workforce. Partner 
agencies are promoting a local response to highlighted gaps, 
as noted in the Bury Crisis Care Concordat Action Plan;

 Recovery and staying well and preventing further crisis.
 

Self-harm and suicide prevention

4.34   In June 2015, a local multi-agency guidance was produced “Self-Harm 
and Suicide in Children and Young People.” This guidance describes 
Bury’s response to presentations of self-harm.

            The Children’s Safeguarding Board have commissioned a number of 
courses around lower level self-harm (3 courses) and resilience (2 
courses). The courses were funded by the Children’s Trust and have 
approx. 25 places. Moving into 2017/ 18 we intend to work closely with 
the Children’s Safeguarding Board to ensure no overlap in training 
courses and to ensure any commissioned training is complimentary.

Inpatient care

4.35  In-patient care is provided as a last resort when there is no suitable 
alternative service that will meet the young person’s particular needs, 
and it is appropriate to admit as an in-patient due to acuity. Work is 
ongoing with all partners to explore alternatives to admission, including 
home based treatment, therapeutic foster care or care homes.

Document Pack Page 57



32

            Work will continue to develop Tier 3.5 services, in order to lessen the 
need for out of area placements and support people remaining near their 
families and existing carers in as many cases as possible. Home based 
treatment will continue to be considered as an alternative to admission 
through the In-Reach, Outreach team.

Transitions

4.36   The HYM team, along with partners, is currently working through an 
interface meeting to ensure these CYP are triaged to the most 
appropriate service for support. 

            Transition is a major focus for Bury via the Local Transformation Plan in 
2017/18. We are working to increase capacity in this area. In 2016/17 the 
recruitment of a dedicated transition worker formed part of the actions for 
the LTP. For the 2017/18 refresh of the Local Transformation Plan, 
Healthy Young Minds has developed a proposal for a full transition team, 
including a transition pathway, governance processes and a staffing 
model. A staffing model (including staffing costs and on costs) will be 
funded through the 2017/18 LTP monies, to enable Healthy Young Minds 
to provide a service to Children and Young People, which is flexible 
around age boundaries, in which transition is based on individual 
circumstances rather than absolute age, with joint working and shared 
practice between services to promote continuity of care, as per the 
recommendation from Future in Mind. 

Improving access to psychological therapies (IAPT)

4.37  The Children and Young People’s Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies programme (CYP IAPT) is a service transformation 
programme delivered by NHS England that aims to improve existing 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) working in the 
community.

            The programme does not create standalone services, but works to 
embed a set of principles into existing services providing mental health 
care to children and young people. 

            The programme began in 2011 with a target to work with CAMHS that 
cover 60% of the 0-19 population by March 2015. This target was 
exceeded, achieving 68%. NHS England is now working to achieve 
100% coverage by 2018.

            Via the Local Transformation Plan in 2017/18, Bury will ensuring 
services are working within the CYP IAPT programme by 2018, leading 
to more staff being trained by 2020/21, as stipulated in the Five Year 
Forward View for Mental Health. In 2017/18 we are identifying which 

Document Pack Page 58



33

services could be IAPT trained and ensuring the supervisory element can 
be undertaken. 

Psychological wellbeing practitioners

4.38  The NW Collaborative IAPT Team have been invited to submit 
expressions of interest to access a Health Education England pilot to 
establish low intensity practitioners within mental health services for 
children and young people (e.g. providing support about Cognitive 
Behaviour Therapy for anxiety and depression and parental support). 

            The practitioners will be recruited in 2 cohorts, with the 1st cohort 
beginning training in April 2017.  It is proposed that the practitioners will 
be based in an early help preventative setting, e.g. in third sector 
provision, with close links to Healthy Young Minds.

            Pennine Care has led on a bid through the IAPT Partnership for 30 
posts across the North West, to be hosted by participating boroughs. The 
posts are funded in Year 1 by NHS England and that this enables 
schools to assess impact before making funding decisions.  The post fits 
well with other developments in schools, especially around early help 
and schools groupings,

            Bury have expressed an interest for 2 or 3 practitioners, under this 
scheme. This will be an instrumental aspect of developing our workforce, 
under the Local Transformation Plan in 2017/18, if we are successful.

  
          

Document Pack Page 59



34

           Other Initiatives (not part of but linked to the Local 
Transformation Plan)

 Child sexual exploitation
4.39   Bury Clinical Commissioning Group are participating in the work being 

developed across Greater Manchester in relation to Child Sexual 
Exploitation and have supported the “It’s not okay” campaign, since it 
began in 2014. Greater Manchester’s political leaders came together in 
September 2015 to demonstrate their continued commitment to tackling 
child sexual exploitation and bringing abusers to justice.

4.40   All ten local authority leaders  joined Greater Manchester Mayor and 
Police and Crime Commissioner, Tony Lloyd, and incoming Greater 
Manchester Chief Constable, Ian Hopkins, to sign a charter that describes 
how they will work together to deal with child sexual exploitation and 
protect children and young people. Entitled Protecting Our Children, the 
charter further reinforces the work being done by Project Phoenix – 
Greater Manchester’s unique multi-agency response to tackling child 
sexual exploitation. It describes the Phoenix partnership’s promise to put 
young people and their families at the heart of its work. Thanks to the 
work of Project Phoenix and the “It’s Not Okay” campaign, public 
awareness of sexual exploitation has increased, and more people are 
coming forward to get help and support.

St Mary’s sexual assault referral centre (SARC)

4.41    Anyone in Bury who experiences rape or sexual assault is able to access 
SARC in Manchester. St Mary’s Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC) 
provides a comprehensive and co-ordinated forensic, counselling and 
aftercare service to men, women and children living in the Greater 
Manchester and Cheshire area who have experienced rape or sexual 
assault, whether this has happened recently or in the past. The St Mary’s 
Centre comprises a team of experts with a wealth of knowledge and 
experience in advising, supporting and treating anyone who has been 
raped or sexually assaulted.

 Autism spectrum conditions/ attention deficit hyperactivity disorder 
(ASD/ ADHD)

4.42   A Children and Young People’s ASC/ ADHD integrated pathway has been 
developed jointly with Pennine Acute Hospital and Pennine Care. This 
service will continue to be supported via local transformation plan monies 
in 17/18, with a financial allocation of circa £35K.

Document Pack Page 60



35

Liaison mental health services

4.43  Bury and Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning 
Groups jointly commission a Rapid Assessment Interface and Discharge 
(RAID) liaison psychiatry service from Pennine Care.  The service has 
four key aims:

1. to undertake timely mental health assessments of patients 
in A&E;

2. to reduce A&E attendances and re-attendances;
3. to provide effective interventions to people with alcohol 

misuse problems;
            
            Through the RAID service, Pennine Care provides access and crisis 

teams who conduct mental health assessments of patients at A&E and 
co-ordinate packages of care. These teams have been strengthened by 
new additional A&E liaison practitioners, who were in situ as of 30th 
November 2016. This allows the teams to provide 24/ 7 cover to local 
A&E departments, conducting mental health assessments within two 
hours of a patient being admitted.  The team also ensures patients are 
safely discharged from A&E into suitable mental health services within 
four hours, as well as providing follow-up clinic appointments or home 
visits to patients who have self-harmed the next day.

            With extra funding in October 2015, co-location of out of hours GP 
support to ensure that people with mental health issues are treated 
outside of A&E wherever possible and bring a more direct crisis response 
for patients of all ages, led by primary rather than secondary care was 
introduced. 

Document Pack Page 61



36

5.0    Activity, Resource and Finance

5.1      This section provides a summary of current activity, service resource and 
funding in respect of Healthy Young Minds (CAMHS). 

5.2  Bury CCG are currently working with providers to establish a 
comprehensive dataset to inform further commissioning, with the 
intention of working towards outcome based commissioning. 

Referrals

5.3     In 2015/16 Healthy Young Minds received 1722 referrals, an increase of 
472 from 2014/15. However, there was a large variation in referrals 
towards the end of 2014. This was believed to be due to how referrals 
were being processed, which may have resulted in some double 
counting as referrals were passed between IAPT, core team and 
consultants. The process was streamlined in 2015 and any issues with 
double counting has now been eradicated.  However, there remains 
some difficulty with comparing year on year, prior to 2015.

Referrals over time 

Year April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016 152 154 165 106 48 134 140 152 169 176 173 153
2016/2017 127 153 151 138 105 104 130 152 129    
2017/2018 
Trajectory             

          
 

Community eating disorders service – referrals over time

 5.4    As this is a new service, data collection only started in July 2016

Year April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016  n/a  n/a  n/a n/a  n/a n/a  n/a n/a  n/a  n/a n/a  n/a
2016/2017  n/a n/a  n/a 9 2 2 1 1 0    
2017/2018 
Trajectory

  
Aiming for 19 referrals for the whole of 17/18

            Data capture for CEDS is via the CAMHS minimum dataset. By 2020/21 Bury 
aims to ensure that 95% of children in need receive treatment within one 
week for urgent cases, and four weeks for routine cases.

Document Pack Page 62



37

Number of CYP in treatment

5.5   The number of CYP in treatment increased in 2015/16. However the same 
caveat as above applies.

Year CYP in treatment
14/15 839
15/16 1012
16/17 (Apr – Aug) 568

First appointments and follow ups

5.6    Data available is limited to Healthy Young Minds. The following table 
shows waiting times to first contact (12 weeks) and progress toward the 
nationally mandated target of 95%. 

Waiting times

5.7    Our Plan is to support a Greater Manchester approach, supporting the  
Greater Manchester Mental Health Strategy plans, to pump-prime crisis 
care and liaison pathways suitable for under 18s, with the goal of 
minimising inappropriate admissions to in-patient, paediatric or adult 
mental health wards,  reducing demand and thus waiting times.  Through 
the Greater Manchester Future In Mind Delivery Group we will continue 
to work with Tier 4 providers from across the sectors and the North NHS 
England specialised commissioning team to develop integrated 
pathways. In addition we are seeking to support a Greater Manchester 
approach for the immediate stabilisation of the ability to deliver continued 
access across Greater Manchester to 24/7 specialist CAMHS on-call 
psychiatric advice and support. The existing out-of-hours Greater 
Manchester junior CAMHS doctors rota, managed by Central 
Manchester Foundation Trust for Greater Manchester CAMHS Trusts 
(excluding Wigan), is no longer adequate in terms of being able to secure 
sufficient Junior Doctors to cover the existing  arrangements. This will 
require considering options using:

 Trainee numbers allocated to Greater Manchester CAMHS 
Trust providers;

 Population sizes;
 Actual variations in demand  

            At a Greater Manchester level, as per national guidance on the funding, 
we are seeking to support sustainability. We will be investing in Greater 
Manchester to minimise the barriers to training existing staff through the 
children and young people’s IAPT training programme, including sending 
new staff through the IAPT training courses. The additional funds not 

Document Pack Page 63



38

allocated to the Greater Manchester approaches/ programmes will be 
utilised at locality level to reduce waiting times.   

           Waiting times to 1st contact – 12 weeks

           
Significant improvement towards the 95% target was seen in 2016/17 
and since October 2016 Bury have exceeded this target, hitting 98.3% in 
December 2016. We will maintain, at least, the 95% target.

5.8     The following table shows waiting times to treatment (18 weeks) and 
progress towards the nationally mandated target of 98%)

           Waiting times to treatment – 18 weeks

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016 61.1% 53.1% 61.3% 59.3% 47.8% 45.2% 67.6% 50.0% 71.1% 75.5% 76.7% 77.8%

2016/2017 92.5% 91.8% 90.7% 92.4% 96.8% 91.8% 98.9% 97.0% 100.0%    
2017/2018
Target 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0% 98.0%

            Significant improvement towards the 98% target was seen in 2016/17 
and in December 2016 hit 100%. We will maintain, at least, the 98% 
target.

            Throughout 2016/17, Healthy Young Minds have been actively working 
to improve and sustain performance. In November 2016 they 
implemented an Outcome Performance Improvement steering group to 
support achievement of required outcomes.

Access 

5.9   The objective set out in, ‘Implementing the Five Year Forward View 
for Mental Health’ is that at least 35% of children and young people 
with a diagnosable mental health condition receive treatment from 
an NHS funded community mental health service. The table below 
sets out the indicative trajectory for increased access. This is based 
on existing data on prevalence of mental health problems in 
children and young people. This is being reviewed in 2018 following 
publication of a new national prevalence study, and may be revised6

6 Implementing the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health, NHS England, 2016.

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016 82.6% 78.4% 74.2% 76.3% 73.8% 82.4% 75.4% 83.5% 89.4% 87.6% 92.9% 93.8%

2016/2017 79.6% 88.2% 89.9% 91.6% 91.9% 88.8% 97.9% 96.0% 98.3%    
2017/2018 
Target 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0% 95.0%

Document Pack Page 64



39

Objective 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
At least 35% of children and young 
people with a diagnosable mental 
health condition receiving treatment 
from an NHS funded community 
mental health service

TBC 30% 32% 34% 35%

Improvement trajectory to be agreed 
following availability of baseline data at 
the end of February

Did Not Attend (DNA) rates

5.10   The following table shows Did Not Attend rates, which has a local target 
of 5%

Year April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016 4.3% 3.9% 3.2% 6.5% 6.5% 4.7% 4.8% 5.2% 6.6% 3.5% 4.8% 4.2%
2016/2017 4.0% 5.4% 6.9% 6.6% 7.1% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 4.50%    
2017/2018 
Target 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

We will maintain the longer term trend at 5% or below.

Discharges over time

5.11    The following table shows discharges over time

Year April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016 109 111 122 141 84 92 123 101 162 164 235 155
2016/2017 138 163 140 177 120 127 143 151 90    
2017/2018 
Trajectory To be defined

Cancellation rates (by provider)

5.12   The following table shows cancellation rates (by provider), which has a 
local target of 1%. 

Year April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
2015/2016    0.8% 0.4% 0.0% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.9% 0.5% 1.3%
2016/2017 2.2% 0.1% 0.4% 0.5% 0.8% 0.4% 0.7% 0.2% 0%    
2017/2018 
Target 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

           We will maintain the longer term trend at 1% or below

Document Pack Page 65



40

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

5.13   The following Key Performance Indicators were identified in our initial 
Local Transformation Plan and we are working closely with our Business 
Intelligence colleagues to review and refine these and consider 
appropriate KPIs and effective monitoring systems for 2017/18 and 
beyond:

 % of children and young people affected by identifiable mental 
health issues;

 Numbers of self-referrals;
 % of children leaving school with  A-C GCSEs;
 Goal setting by children and young people and achievement of 2 

or more goals?
 Referrals to Healthy Young Minds;
 Numbers of CYP accessing in-patient beds;
 Numbers of CYP accessing Community Eating Disorder service;
 Numbers accessing perinatal therapeutic group;
 Parental Health and Wellbeing measures;
 Numbers of child protection plans;
 Numbers of children in care;
 Increases in breastfeeding initiation and maintenance at 6-8 weeks 

after birth;
 Improvements in the differences in levels of educational attainment 

across the borough and between groups;
 Numbers accessing the children and young people’s hub and 

utilising the Single Point of Access;
 Outcomes of third sector commissioning;
 Training records for children and young people’s mental health and 

wellbeing workforce;
 Completion of the MHSMDS dataset and outputs used to inform 

future commissioning.

Document Pack Page 66



41

Workforce information

5.14  In 14/15 the number of CAMHS staff (pre Local Transformation 
Plan) was 18.5. The 16/17 figure for CAMHS staff was 20.5. To 
support the implementation of the Local Transformation Plan, two 
link workers were recruited to the CAMHS team and are currently 
working closely with local schools to identify named links and build 
relationships and improve access to their services. 

           Below is some feedback about the Healthy Young Minds link worker, 
received November 2016:

To whom it may concern,

I am writing to say how well I think the new system is working. As a 
school we have found the Healthy Young Minds staff to be easily 
contactable and able to offer advice and intervene, particularly in a 
recent case. HYM were able to liaise with school and the hospital to 
ensure that a young person being taken to A and E had an admission 
to hospital and timely access to HYM services. This has then continued 
as HYM and school work together on a joint package of care for this 
young person, as well as another pupil. 
We look forward to continuing the good work! 

Mrs G.Walker, Deputy Head Teacher, St Monica’s R.C. High School 
and Sixth Form Centre 

         The current numbers of staff and skill mix in the Healthy Young Minds 
team is shown below:

 4 x administration staff ( 3 x substantive posts; 1 x 3 days 
a week)

 4 x Band 7 senior practitioners
 1 x Band 8A Operational Manager
 1 x Band 8A Clinical Psychologist
 2 x Consultants (4 x days per week)
 1 x locum Consultant (2 days per week)
 6 x Band 6 practitioners (full time)
 1 x Band 5 Psychological Wellbeing Practitioner (full time)
 1 x Band 4 Practitioner

5.15  In addition, a number of staff have been recruited to the new North 
east Sector Eating Disorders Service. The staffing establishment as 
of 1st November 2016 for Bury was 1.59 Whole Time Equivalents. 

Document Pack Page 67



42

An additional admin member of staff was recruited in August 16, as 
well as a clinical post. The staffing levels (from Nov 2016) for Bury 
are shown below

Job Title Banding Bury
Operational Manager                  8a 0.17
Clinical Lead                             8a 0.24
Consultant Psychiatrist  0.13
Senior MHP 7 0.15
Family Therapist 7 0
Dietician 7 0.03
MHP 6 0.27
Clinical Support Worker 4 0.33
Administrator 4 0.27
  

TOTAL WTE 1.59

5.16   Recruitment to next year’s children and young people’s IAPT has been 
challenging for Pennine Care. Bury Clinical Commissioning Group is 
working with the provider around finances for backfill. However, there are 
still some challenges around recruitment. At present, Pennine Care is 
unsure that they will fill their allocated places for 2017/18 but 
commissioner and provider are working closely to resolve the situation.

  5.17 We will work with Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
partnership's workforce development team to develop a Greater 
Manchester strategy for the whole of children and young people’s 
emotional wellbeing and mental health workforce. Discussions are 
currently at an early stage, but it is recognised that a Greater Manchester 
strategic approach is required to develop the workforce that Future in 
Mind transformation requires.   We will do further work to engage with the 
Local Workforce Action Board (LWAB) to identify future requirements.

            Greater Manchester has been successful in negotiating to become an 
IThrive hub and in partnership with the Strategic Clinical Network, other 
Clinical Commissioning Groups and other leads, will develop workforce 
reforms that reflect this new model.

            Greater Manchester is also promoting the MindEd e-learning platform as 
a training resource for the whole workforce. The core components, which 
will be deemed mandatory, will be agreed at a Greater Manchester level.

Document Pack Page 68



43

Inpatient bed usage

5.18 Data provided by specialist commissioners from NHS England 
regarding inpatient bed occupancy for 2015/16 is provided below:

2015/16 CAMHS Admissions - Greater Manchester – All NW Units

CCG General Emergency 
Department

Paediatric Intensive 
Care Unit

No
.

OBD Cost (£) No. OBD Cost (£) No. OB
D

Cost 
(£)

Bury CCG 21 1541 842,927 1 14 8,750

Document Pack Page 69



44

Finance

5.19    The CCG’s annual declaration of baseline spend for 2014/15 was £1.8m 
which included block contract baseline agreements with Pennine Care 
Foundation Trust. 

5.20    In subsequent years local transformation funds have also been made 
available nationally for both Children’s and Young People’s MH services 
(CYP) and Eating Disorders (ED) commencing in 2015/16 of £278k and 
£111k respectively. Given the priority and focus on these services, these 
allocations have been further increased and are included within the 
NHSE national allocations up to 2021 and detailed within the Mental 
Health Five Year Forward View (5YFV) planning document. 

5.21    The Local Transformation Plan was published in November 2015 for 
Bury CCG with an annual transformation spend of £389k. Spend against 
this amount included: Community Eating Disorder Service, Link working 
with schools and wider system, local workforce development training, 
and voluntary sector grant agreements for local 3rd sector organisations, 
which supplemented the baseline spend for the core Healthy Young 
Minds service. For the current year, the CCG is forecasting that it will 
spend its available resources fully in respect of Children and Young 
People services by the end of the year. 

5.22    The CCG plans to build on these investments - high level priorities and 
areas for investment for 2017/18 and beyond have been identified and a 
number of initiatives and proposals are currently being developed. See 
Section 9 and Appendix 1

5.23    As detailed in the 5YFV, the level of resources can be seen in the 
following table: 

Document Pack Page 70



45

2017/18

£000

2018/19

£000

Sources of Funds

CYP allocation

ED 110 110

CYP MH 510 619

Total allocation - at CCG level 620 729

National or GM funds for CYP transformation

Perinatal Mental Health 55 146

Workforce development (HEE) 138 80

Workforce development (other) 66 44

Specialist IP/outreach 40 15

Vulnerable groups 87 91

Other programmes 15 7

Total  other 401 383

Some of the notified allocations are to be held at either national or local GM 
level and clarification needs to be obtained as to how the CCG will be able to 
access these resources.

Document Pack Page 71



46

6.0    Bury Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)

2016/17 CQUIN 

6.1    For 2016/17 local commissioning groups have collaborated across the  
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust (PCFT) footprint to set a joint 
CQUIN for PCFT Healthy Young Minds (HYM) services. 

            The footprint includes Bury, Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale (HMR), 
Oldham, Tameside and Glossop (T&G), and Stockport.

           The CQUIN focus is on Future in Mind (FIM) and new ways of working, 
with the indicator description being to deliver added value to the CAMHS 
transformation agenda.

          Self-assessment

6.2     A self-assessment tool has been developed by Associate Development 
Solutions, with support from the East Midlands Strategic Clinical 
Network, to enable local areas to assess their readiness to meet the 
recommendations of Future in Mind. Bury have actively engaged with 
this tool and identified areas of progress and areas requiring further 
attention. The outcomes of the self-assessment have been used to 
inform the refreshed LTP. 

Care pathways

6.3    Three priority care pathways were to be in place in Bury during Q3 of 
2016/ 17: 

 Urgent care;
 Autistic spectrum disorder (ASD);
 Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD)

           The Q3 CQUIN report indicates that significant progress has been made 
towards ensuring that the CAMHS elements of the pathways have been 
implemented. This has been supported by a programme of training, by 
the Healthy Young Minds team, across multiple stakeholders.

            Urgent care – pathway documentation and patient leaflets have been 
developed, training has been delivered to Healthy Young Minds staff on 
the pathway and discussions are ongoing regarding the in reach/ 
outreach and tier 4 inpatient interface.

            ASD – a clear dataset for referrers has been developed and 
disseminated via Special Educational Needs Co-ordinators (SENCO) 
training during November and December 2016 and a weekly multi-
disciplinary panel meeting is now in place within Healthy Young Minds.

Document Pack Page 72



47

            ADHD – as with ASD, a clear dataset for referrers has been developed 
and was disseminated via Special Educational Needs Co-ordinators 
(SENCO) training during November and December 2016. Accessibility of 
the Healthy Young Minds elements of the pathway for vulnerable groups 
such as children with LD and challenging behaviour, and children who 
are home educated have been incorporated into pathway documentation. 
A standard reporting template has also been devised and is incorporated 
in the pathway documentation.

Vulnerable group’s dataset

6.4    The government’s aspiration is that, by 2020, a better offer for the most 
vulnerable children and young people will be made, making it easier for 
them to access the support that they need when, and where they need it. 
It was agreed that Healthy Young Minds would produce a dataset to 
provide information about vulnerable groups. A dataset was agreed in Q1 
and has since been reviewed and additional fields added to enhance the 
current information. We intend to use this information to support the 
ongoing redesign and provision of services in Bury.

Quality assurance framework for schools

6.5   In Q2 2016/17 Healthy Young Minds developed a quality assurance 
framework to help schools commission safe and effective emotional 
health and wellbeing services. In December 2016, HYM attended a 
school inclusion meeting to share the framework. It has also been 
disseminated to multiple stakeholders via email and local networks and 
the framework is also available via the Healthy Young Minds website. 

2017/18 CQUIN

6.6  The CQUIN for 2017/18 aims to incentivise improvements to the 
experience and outcomes for young people as they transition out of 
Children and Young People’s Mental Health Services. There are three 
components of the CQUIN: 

1. a case note audit in order to assess the extent of Joint-Agency 
Transition Planning;

2. a survey of young people’s transition experiences ahead of the 
point of transition (Pre-Transition / Discharge Readiness);

3. a survey of young people’s transition experiences after the 
point of transition (Post-Transition Experience). 

            This CQUIN follows from published NICE guidelines on children and 
young people’s transition, which recommends:

 ensuring transition support;
 ensuring health and social care service managers in children 

and young people's and adults' services should work together 

Document Pack Page 73

https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng43/chapter/Recommendations
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng43/chapter/Recommendations


48

in an integrated way to ensure a smooth and gradual transition 
for young people;

 Involving young people and their carers in service design.

            Ensuring that service managers, in both adults' and children and young 
people's services, across health, social care and education proactively 
identify and plan for young people in their locality with transition support 
needs will incentivise providers to collaborate in order to improve 
transition planning between sending and receiving services, drawing 
together disparate elements of the care pathway, and to involve young 
people and (where appropriate) their families/carers in the process in 
order to improve young people’s transition.

Document Pack Page 74



49

7.0    Bury Response to Children and Young People’s Mental 
Health and Wellbeing Transformation – Our Vision

Local level

7.1    At the introduction of Local Transformation Plans, the transformation of 
services and support in Bury for children and young people’s mental 
health and wellbeing was based on the following principles:

 Children and young people and their families are central and 
services and support will be wrapped around their individual 
needs, rather than by ‘tiers’ of service;

 There will be an emphasis on prevention and early intervention 
and further development of universal services;

 Children and young people will be supported to self-care and will 
be empowered to manage their own conditions, fostering an ethos 
of enablement.

7.2    The plan was expected to be achieved through:

 Personalized, person-centered planning with children and young 
people and their families;

 Collaborative commissioning arrangements;
 Greater commissioning from third sector organisations who can 

support prevention and early intervention;
 Moving and expanding the Single Point of Access (SPA) from 

CAMHS into the newly emerging neighbourhood hubs and 
expanding the existing provision into a wider and more diverse 
team;

 Establishing self-referral routes for children and young people and 
patient orientated self-help materials;

 Development of link worker roles between schools, GPs and 
CAMHS;

 Generally enhancing capacity between general and specialist 
services to ensure that children and young people do not 
experience “gaps” in available services and support;

 Development of the workforce;
 Creation of a Bury Transition Team;
 Integrated I.T. solutions to support information sharing across 

providers.

This was expressed by children and young people during a main stakeholder 
event, held in November 2015, and is shown in the diagram below, developed 
by children and young people, as a visual vision for Children and Young 
People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing in 2020.

Document Pack Page 75



50

                             

                      

Building capacity and capability across the system

7.3    Moving forward, it is the Bury vision to continue to work on increasing 
capacity and capability across the whole system. In 15/16 and 16/17 our 
vision was to:

 Increase the number of volunteers involved in delivering services 
and support;

 Increase commissioning from the third sector, to support 
prevention and early intervention and to minimise numbers of 
people requiring more specialised support;

 From 2014 to 2016, local surveys indicated that children and 
young people have a preference to be seen in schools rather than 
a hospital setting. Therefore, our vision was to provide enhanced 
tier 2 Link worker support and see impacts in the following areas:

o the number of instances of schools asking families to take 
child to see their GP;

o referrals to pediatricians;
o numbers of crisis/ emergency interventions;
o reductions in the numbers of A&E attendances for children 

and young people;
o increase in school attendance;
o increase in school attainment and future employment;
o increase young people’s enjoyment/ ability to sustain 

friendships learn skills;
o greater awareness of emotional health and wellbeing;
o further promotion of self-care.

 Develop link workers to also work across primary care, children’s 
centres, early years settings and colleges with the Healthy Young 

Document Pack Page 76



51

Minds service to promote seamless step up and step down of 
children and young people that require support;

 Develop a community based multi-disciplinary Single Point of 
Access (SPA) as a referral point to information, advice, services 
and support, which will be in the neighbourhood hub where there 
is a local knowledge base available regarding CYP services and 
support;

 Develop transition workers to be key workers to identify potential 
young people that, from their Year 9 review, may require mental 
health and social care support into adulthood, and to work directly 
with young people age 16-18;

 Roll out the children and young people’s IAPT programme;
 Develop a community eating disorders service;
 Improve perinatal care;
 Enhance the Bury Children’s Bereavement service.

We have implemented this vision throughout 16/17 and it will continue to be an 
area of focus, along with other defined priorities for 17/18 and beyond.  

           

Document Pack Page 77



52

8.0    Engagement, Partnerships and Multi-Agency Working

   Engagement

8.1     Since the publication of Future in Mind, consultation began with CYP and 
their families to ensure that what they wanted for the future of local 
services fitted the national vision. The results showed that people 
wanted easily accessible services and support, as close to home as 
possible. It also informed commissioners that young peoples’ preference 
was for face to face support rather than online services.

8.2    An engagement day was held in September 2015, the information from 
which shaped the initial LTP. Over 50 local stakeholders attended the 
event, which focussed on giving attendees a greater understanding of 
what local services were available. 

8.3    A series of survey monkey surveys were also carried out in 2015 with 
CYP, families, schools and professionals. The key message that came 
from CYP told us that they wanted face to face services, although they 
were also happy to access lower level information and advice online.

8.4   Engagement was also carried out with parents, who told us that they 
wanted:

 Involvement in developing services;
 Good outcomes for their children;
 Services to be more joined up;
 Improved access;
 Early advice and strategies.

8.5   The engagement events were followed by an emotional health and 
wellbeing event in November 2015, with over 150 attendees. The key 
note speech at this event communicated the contents of and distributed 
the initial LTP to the local community. The LTP was subsequently made 
publically available on Bury CCG’s website and Bury Council’s website.

8.6    A series of targeted engagement events were held throughout January 
2016, aimed at anyone working in the health and social care system, 
including the voluntary sector. Events were held on 16th, 17th and 25th 
January at Bury Town Hall and were designed to give the opportunity to 
shape a future model of delivery.

8.7     On 29th June 2016, young people from across Bury came together to 
meet with local decision makers and contribute to future change at the 
annual Bury Circles of Influence conference. 44 young people, aged from 
13 to 18 years attended from 11 secondary schools and colleges, 
including 6 young people from Bury’s Youth Cabinet. There were 28 
adult decision makers, including the Executive Director of Children, 

Document Pack Page 78



53

Young People and Culture and other senior officers from the local 
authority, councillors, representatives from local health services, schools, 
the police and the third sector. The event was organised by young 
people from Bury Youth Cabinet, who also facilitated activities throughout 
the day. 

8.8     A wide range of issues and ideas were identified at the event, which have 
been considered in the refresh of our LTP. For example, young people 
wanted opportunities for face to face support, ideally in a drop-in 
environment and one physical place to go to get advice on all health 
related issues. In 2016/17 we integrated the Healthy Young Minds team, 
via the link workers, into the neighbourhood hubs, which provides drop-in 
facilities, access to self-help materials, advice and a place for face to 
face consultations for CYP in Bury. 

8.9      Many of the issues/ ideas were related to publicising services, promoting 
good news stories and consulting young people about how supported 
they feel. This information will contribute to shaping our communications 
and engagement activities throughout 2017/18 and beyond. The Bury 
LTP Steering Group will have communications and engagement as one 
of their areas of focus on an ongoing basis.

  Review of emotional health and wellbeing services

8.10  In Summer 2015, local Bury organisations benchmarked themselves 
against the key requirements of Future in Mind. An LTP Steering Group 
was established to work collaboratively to develop the plan. A 
mapping exercise was undertaken where providers defined their 
current offer and stated how they could develop their services to 
contribute to a whole system offer for CYP.

The local priority areas emerging from the benchmarking exercise were:

 Services and support during transition from CYP services to 
adult services;

 Support within schools;
 Prevention and early help;
 Workforce development, including team roles and 

responsibilities, skill sets and training;
 Integration of services, support and commissioning 

arrangements.

Document Pack Page 79



54

9.0   Bury Local Transformation Plan – 2017/ 18 and Beyond

2017/18 Local Transformation Plan refresh - planning workshop
   
9.1      In 2016/17, Bury held a multi-agency workshop to discuss and decide the 

children and young people’s transformation priorities for 2017/18 for the 
local Bury area. Actions from the workshop have been added to the 
‘Action Plans’ section of this report. The group identified the following key 
areas where we will focus transformation funds in 2017/18: 

 Resilience, prevention and early intervention;
o Continuing with work on the single point of access and 

neighborhood hub working
 Improving access to effective support;

o Implementation of a transition team
o Enhancing the bereavement service

 Workforce development
o Development of the link worker role and children and 

young people’s IAPT training and linking with 
colleagues to form a Greater Manchester response to 
the Future in Mind requirements for workforce 
development

Resilience, prevention and early intervention

9.2     The Local Transformation Plan Steering Group decided to undertake more 
visioning to further define the resilience, prevention and early intervention 
vision for Bury to 2020/21. We will carry out this visioning work at the 
beginning of 2017/18.

            In 2016/17 we made significant progress by integrating the Healthy 
Young Minds Single Point of Access into newly developed neighborhood 
hubs and bolstering the workforce by recruiting link workers to work 
between the single point of access and local schools and across primary 
care. This significantly enhanced our early resilience, prevention and 
early intervention offer in 2016/17.

            In 2017/18, we will continue to use the findings of our Bury Circles of 
Influence conference report from June 2016, where young people across 
Bury came together to contribute to future changes to develop our Local 
Transformation Plan over time, to further our developments in the areas 
of resilience, prevention and early intervention.

Document Pack Page 80



55

Improving access to effective support

9.3     In 2017/18 and beyond we will focus on a service that goes beyond 16 
years, with the development of a strong transition team, including 
transition workers and which links in any intelligence from substance 
misuse data. Utilising this data will allow us to address, amongst other 
things, issues such as hospital admissions due to substance misuse in 
15-24 year olds being significantly higher in Bury when compared to 
national rates.

            Healthy Young Minds has developed a proposal for a transition team, 
which will significantly improve our access to effective support in 2017/18.

            This, along with an enhanced bereavement service and further 
enhancements to the link worker function/ staffing numbers will provide 
an enhanced service across the whole pathway in Bury.

Workforce development

9.4     At a local level we have already enhanced our workforce by recruiting link 
workers in 2016/17.  In 2017/18 we will continue to develop this link 
worker role. We will also ensure access to IAPT training and if our 
expression of interest for psychological wellbeing practitioners is 
successful this will further develop our workforce.

           Workforce development is an area of risk for all Greater Manchester 
areas and we will pursue workforce development at a Greater 
Manchester level.

9.5     It is important to the stakeholders in Bury that local transformation plans fit 
with the Bury Locality Plan and the System Leadership work which is 
ongoing across the Borough. We will ensure that our transformation work 
links appropriately and develops strong whole system working.

          

  Greater Manchester level work streams

9.6     As we progressed through 2016/17 and the Greater Manchester Health 
and Social Care Partnership became more established it has become 
clear that a considerable amount of Future in Mind transformation 
planning and commissioning is best done to scale across the Greater 
Manchester footprint, rather than only at a single Local Authority / Clinical 
Commissioning Group footprint.

            Some aspects of service planning and delivery will only support 
improved outcomes when commissioned and delivered more at scale.  
Therefore, the partnership has agreed that a Greater Manchester 
transformation plan will be developed by the end of March 2017.  This 

Document Pack Page 81



56

plan will incorporate objectives outlined in local plans and in turn local 
plans will need to reflect where planning and implementation will be at a 
Greater Manchester or local level.

            An overview of where Greater Manchester planning and service 
development could be best achieved at a Greater Manchester level is 
outlined below.

Document Pack Page 82



57

 Greater Manchester Level
          

Collaborative commissioning 

9.7   Across Greater Manchester, a number of strategic groups, including 
Greater Manchester Children’s and Maternity Commissioning 
Consortium, the Greater Manchester Future In Mind Group, the Greater 
Manchester Mental Health Strategy - Children and Young People’s 
Mental Health Group, Association of Directors of Children’s Services 
(Greater Manchester Children’s Services Review), have identified key 
areas of mental health and emotional well-being for children and young 
people as transformation priorities.  

            A collaborative approach across the 10 Local Authority footprints is 
enabling the sharing and implementation of good practice and 
development of consistent care pathways and quality standards, leading 
to improved quality and equitable services across Greater Manchester. 

            Collaborative projects will deliver more efficient use of resources by 
enabling commissioning and delivery of some services at scale. The 
costs of Specialist CAMHS Services are unlikely to be reduced, but 
efficiency will improved as a result of the implementation of THRIVE 
informed service delivery, which will result in increased throughput.  

            Additional efficiencies will be delivered by reducing the numbers of 
professionals involved in complex families for whom managing risk is the 
primary support/ intervention.

Transparency and governance

9.8     Transparency and governance supporting the refresh of the ten Greater 
Manchester Local Transformation Plans has been strengthened as a 
result of the developing alignment of the Greater Manchester Mental 
Health Strategy. A Future in Mind Delivery Group has been put in place, 
which is a consortium of all twelve Greater Manchester Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and will include ten Local Authorities with 
representation, also, from the Strategic Clinical Network, NHS England’s 
Specialised Commissioning and Public Health and has regular input from 
NHS England’s Greater Manchester Assurance and Delivery Manager. 

            All Clinical Commissioning Groups have provided additional funding to 
enable the chair to be seconded into the Greater Manchester Strategic 
Clinical Network to provide commissioning subject matter expertise and 
to provide expert advice within the context of an “honest broker” role.

            From April 2017 membership of the Greater Manchester Future in Mind 
Implementation will include:

 CCG, Public Health, and Local Authority children and young 

Document Pack Page 83



58

people commissioning leads;
 NHS and independent sector providers – children and young 

people and adult mental health services;
 Voluntary Faith and Community Groups representation;
 Local Authority Children’s Services Lead;
  Children and young people;
  Parents/ Carers;
 Schools and Colleges;
 Youth Justice Lead for GM;
 Mental health of Looked After Children Clinical Lead;
 A Local Authority SEND Lead, acting on behalf of all 10 LAs/ 

CCGs;
 NHS England Specialised Commissioning and GM Assurance 

and Delivery Manager;
 Strategic Clinical Network Clinical Leads for CAMHS/ AMHS, 

Commissioning Advisor, Network Manager and Quality 
Improvement Lead.

Future governance arrangements 

9.9    Greater Manchester’s Health and Social Care Partnership will by, April 
2017, establish a Children and Young Persons Board that will oversee a 
whole system transformation of Greater Manchester’s children and 
young persons’ services. This board will be chaired by a senior officer 
from the partnership and will provide the governance for the Greater 
Manchester Future in Mind Transformation Plan.

Outcomes

9.10     We will collaborate with Greater Manchester’s other local transformation 
partnerships to develop and implement a single performance and 
outcomes framework. The planned Greater Manchester framework will 
draw from good practice already developed by local transformation 
partnerships, and will be informed and shaped by the voices of children 
and young people. (Patient reported outcome measures)

            The Greater Manchester outcomes framework and dashboard will also 
be informed by learning from the children and young persons’ IAPT 
programme.

            We will continue to work with local transformation partnerships to peer 
review and challenge implementation progress, spending and impact of 
transformation ambitions.

Data

9.11   The availability of whole system accurate and timely information relating 
to commissioned and provided services remains a challenge.  Under the 
umbrella of the Greater Manchester Health & Social Care Partnership we 

Document Pack Page 84



59

will contribute to the development of Greater Manchester data systems 
that will improve both the quality and timeliness of available information.

The voice of children and young people and their carers 

9.12     Developing an effective voice for children and young people is a priority 
for our partnership and we continue to use the learning from our 
engagement work to date to improve our local processes. With other 
Greater Manchester Local Transformation Partnerships, we will 
implement the recommendations of a report that was prepared by Youth 
Access. The report was commissioned by Greater Manchester’s 
Strategic Clinical Network. We will also establish a Greater Manchester 
Future in Mind reference group for children and young people.

            Drawing upon effective children and young persons’ participation work 
developed across Greater Manchester’s ten Local Authorities, we will 
work with colleagues from the third sector to enable children and young 
people to have a strong voice in developing and implementing the 
Greater Manchester Transformation Plan.  

            We will work with parents and carers to develop a Greater Manchester 
parent/ carer reference group to ensure that they become effective 
stakeholders in helping shape the development, review and delivery of 
services for children and young people.

GM iTHRIVE hub

9.13  Along with Greater Manchester’s other local transformation partnerships 
were are committed to the continued rollout and embedding of the Thrive 
Model to inform the whole system approach to improving access to 
information, guidance, advice and high quality treatment. 

            In 2017, the Thrive model (i-Thrive) will start being applied to the whole 
Greater Manchester children and young persons’ system to help deliver 
improved access, reduced waiting times and help deliver clinical  
efficiencies (more people seen within the resource envelope).

           The development of a partnership with the Anna Freud Centre, to 
develop a Greater Manchester I-THRIVE Hub (hosted by the Greater 
Manchester Strategic Clinical Network), will enable us to provide 
additional capacity to lead a whole system approach to transforming 
services for children and young people.

Out of Hours and Crisis Liaison Service

9.14  One of the central tenants of the Greater Manchester Mental Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy is to improve access which is responsive and holds clear 
arrangements that connect people to the support they need at the right time. 

Document Pack Page 85



60

As a consequence, a priority has been established to introduce access to 24/ 
7 Mental Health provision and 7 Day Community Provision for children and 
young people. 

            To deliver this priority, a whole system approach is required that includes 
bringing together commissioning, simplifies the provider system, includes 
involvement from the independent and third sector and holds children and 
young people and those who care for them at the heart of change. This whole 
system change has already started and will continue into 2017/18. Work is 
ongoing to develop a strategic document outlining the framework for the crisis 
pathway and an extended community offer. The approach being taken is to 
develop a framework of standards to improve consistency and equity of 
access across Greater Manchester. 

            We will continue to support the development of a Greater Manchester Out-of-
hours and Crisis Liaison Service (including extension of RAID to under 16’s) 
that will be accessible to all children and young people in crisis (not just those 
with a perceived mental health crisis.) We will work with Greater Manchester’s 
Local Authorities and mental health services providers to develop a Greater 
Manchester wide multi-agency offer that is informed by single Greater 
Manchester standards and Greater Manchester wide trusted processes and 
tools.

Improved access to advice and support

9.15   We will support the implementation of the iTHRIVE framework at a Greater 
Manchester level and support an iTHRIVE informed co-production of a 
Greater Manchester e-platform that will provide advice information and access 
to on line counselling or support for children young people and their carers.

            We will be advised by children and young people so that any offer is both 
credible and acceptable to them.

            Utilising best practice from Greater Manchester’s ten local transformation 
partnerships we will collaborate with the other partnerships to develop the 
capacity of Greater Manchester’s third sector and independent sector to 
develop standards and pathways for children and young people to quickly 
access evidence based interventions in non-clinical settings. Efficiencies will 
be achieved by commissioning to scale and monitoring done at a larger than 
single Local Authority footprint

Age and developmentally appropriate mental health services for young 
people

9.16   This is a service delivery priority for the Greater Manchester partnership. With 
our CAMHS and adult mental health provider services, and other key 
stakeholders, including young people, we will begin to co-design age and 
developmentally appropriate mental health services for our 0-25 year old 
population.

Document Pack Page 86



61

            In the short term we will, across Greater Manchester, support the 
implementation of agreed transition arrangements between CAMHS and 
AMHS and work with adult mental health commissioners to develop ADHD 
and Community Eating Disorder Services for adults.

Community Eating Disorders Service

9.17    We will continue to support the development of a Greater Manchester 
community eating disorders offer that is delivered via an alliance of 
clinical providers that enables staffing skills and expertise to be shared 
across the 3 Greater Manchester “cluster teams.”

 ADHD

9.18  We will continue to support the implementation of the agreed Greater 
Manchester standards underpinning the delivery of ADHD services for 
children and young people and we will work with the service providers to 
ensure that the best practice developed at a local level is delivered at 
scale across Greater Manchester.

In-patient (T4) offer for GM - place based commissioning

9.19   The provision of mental health inpatient beds for Greater Manchester’s 
children and young people is a priority for Greater Manchester’s 
partnership. A Greater Manchester wide task and finish group, including 
the specialised commissioning team, has been established and has 
drawn together an alliance of NHS and independent sector providers 
who are collaborating to develop a Greater Manchester offer.  We will 
continue to support the principle of one CCG providing commissioning 
expertise on behalf of Greater Manchester.

Vulnerable groups

9.20  We will collaborate with Greater Manchester’s CCGs and Local Authorities 
to scope where a GM wide response to the needs of the following 
vulnerable groups will improve outcomes/ quality and provide system 
wide efficiencies:

 Mental health services for Looked After Children, those who 
are adopted and care leavers;

 Young people involved with the youth justice system;
 Children and young people who have Learning Disabilities – 

cognitive impairment and/ or developmental disorders;
 Children and young people who have Adverse Childhood 

Experiences;
 Children and young people originating from minority 

communities;

Document Pack Page 87



62

 Transgender children and young people.

Schools and colleges

9.21   We will work with other local transformation partnerships to identify the 
best current practice in supporting schools and colleges to identify and 
help students who have challenged emotional well-being and mental 
health and develop an offer for Greater Manchester schools/ colleges.

            Early evidence from pilot sites across Greater Manchester suggests a 
shift in referrals to CAMHS, with GP referrals reducing and schools direct 
referrals increasing and the overall number of inappropriate referrals 
declining. There is still further work to be undertaken with schools to 
incorporate self-care for non-service users as part of a whole school 
approach to mental health and expanding the CAMHS school link to 
more schools.

Workforce development

9.22  The importance of ensuring that organisations have the right workforce 
with the right skills and knowledge to deliver effective services is 
recognised by all. It is a key ingredient in creating system transformation 
through building an effective workforce. With other local transformation 
partnerships, and the Greater Manchester workforce development team, 
we will collaborate to develop a whole system skills audit that maps onto 
the iTHRIVE framework. To achieve this, we will utilise workforce audit 
and development tools, developed by some partnerships, and use the 
Self Assessed Skills Audit Tool (SASAT) to facilitate whole work force 
planning (not just services providing what have historically been 
regarded as CAMHS T2 and T3 services).

Parent infant mental health pathway

9.23  Parent infant mental health is a key issue that has been raised in a 
number of areas of work across Greater Manchester. For example: 
Greater Manchester Mental health and Well-being Strategy, Greater 
Manchester Early Years Strategy, Children’s Services Review and the 
Strategic Clinical Networks (SCN). 

            Therefore, a proposal has been put forward for a single Greater 
Manchester wide approach which draws together all the current work 
streams into a single programme of activity. Having a single programme 
of activity will allow Greater Manchester to work collaboratively across 
localities, align existing services through a single governance process, 
ensure development of service and improvement plans, support 
transition of the current commissioner and provider landscape to give 
better outcomes and strengthen and embed engagement with service 
users and their families across all the Greater Manchester programmes. 

Document Pack Page 88



63

Summary

9.24  Work has commenced through the Greater Manchester Children and 
Young Peoples Mental Health Board to: review current provision from a 
range of perspectives,  scope good practice across the region and 
beyond, consult widely with all stakeholders and to connect with 
associated transformational processes  e.g. Greater Manchester Crisis 
Concordat, Mental health Liaison Strategy, Local Transformation Plans, 
Childrens Services review, Youth Justice Review and NHSE CAMHS 
Tier 4 redesign review, and the Greater Manchester Transformation Plan 
will reflect this range of interdependent work streams

Document Pack Page 89



64

Local Level

  9.25  At a local level, the Bury Local Transformation Plan is one of the key 
transformation plans that sit beneath the Bury Locality Plan. The Bury 
Locality Plan sets out the vision for the transformation of Bury’s public 
services under the Greater Manchester Devolution Programme, to 
achieve improved public health outcomes and sustainability of services. 
Partners in Bury have developed a shared vision for health and social 
care, which is, 

‘Our vision is to ensure our population is as healthy, happy and 
independent as possible, living with minimal intervention in their 
lives. 

 
This will be achieved through targeted strategies of self-help, prevention 

and early intervention, reablement and rehabilitation.

When needed, formal care and support will be designed to create a co-
ordinated and seamless health and care system.

All services will be person-centred and will build on and develop local 
community assets.’7

9.26   The main objective of the Local Transformation Plan is to ensure that 
children and young people are happy, healthy and can live with as 
minimum intervention as possible in their lives. This will be achieved 
through self-help, prevention and early intervention. When needed, 
formal care and support will be designed around individual needs and will 
be delivered in a coordinated and seamless way, wrapped around the 
young person.

9.27     For 15/16 and 16/17 the main elements of the local offer were:

1. Creation of a Single Point of Access for Children and Young 
People in Bury, located within a Neighbourhood Hub;

2. Enhance the workforce through development of a team of Link 
Workers, Transition workers, Children and Young People’s 
Bereavement service, and enhancement to Young Carers and 
Counselling services;

3. Develop a Community Eating Disorder Service;
4. Develop updated Self Help materials;
5. Invest in workforce development;
6. Commission preventative and early help services from the 

third sector to offer accessible help in local communities;
7. Invest in IT and infrastructure to support a whole system 

approach.

7 Refreshing the Bury Locality Plan, Food for Thought, 22nd Dec 2016

Document Pack Page 90



65

9.28    We will continue to develop these elements throughout 17/18 and in 
addition we aim to further prioritise the areas of:

 Resilience, prevention and early intervention;
 Improving access to effective support;
 Workforce development;
 Engagement and communication;
 Transparency and accountability;
 Qualitative and quantitative data gathering and monitoring.

            

Document Pack Page 91



66

Action Plans

 9.29  The actions we undertook as part of the Bury Local Transfomation Plan in 
2016/17 and the actions we will take as we refresh our Local 
Transformation Plan for 2017/18 are outlined in the following tables. 
They follow the categories of the three national priorities:

 community eating disorders
 CYP IAPT
 perinatal mental health

and the five categories in the Future in Mind document:

 Resilience, prevention and early intervention
 Improving access to effective support
 Care of the most vulnerable
 Accountability and transparency
 Developing the workforce

Document Pack Page 92



67

National priorities
9.30   The table below outlines what we did in 16/17 and what we will do in 

2017/18 in regard to the three national priorities: community eating 
disorders service, children and young people’s IAPT and perinatal mental 
health:

National priorities
16/17 what we did 1. Community eating disorders service

 Established a North East Sector (NES) eating disorder 
service (CEDs);

 Started to baseline current performance for the service 
against access and waiting time standards, ahead of 
measurement beginning in 17/18

2. CYP IAPT
 Commissioned and actively promoted the Big White 

Wall;
 Actively promoted self-referral for age 16+

3. Perinatal mental health
 Delivered perinatal mental health screening and 

services via the health visiting service within;
 Increased access to the Bury Exercise and Therapy 

Scheme (BEATS)
17/18 onwards - what 
we will do

1. Community eating disorders service
 GM level - link with GM colleagues to establish a GM 

wide eating disorders service;
 GM and local level - work with providers so that we can 

demonstrate progress towards compliance with the 
standards for delivering CEDS, in line with guidance;

 GM level -  improve data collection and monitoring;
 GM and local level - demonstrate, through data, the 

impact of CEDS on the use of inpatient CYP beds;
 Local level - review how referrals are being made 

through GP practices to the service and make any 
necessary improvements/ enhancements.

2. CYP IAPT
 By 2018 we will be working towards ensuring all 

services are working within the CYP IAPT programme, 
leading to more staff being trained by 2020/21

o Scope who/ which services could be IAPT 
trained and how the supervisory element might 
be undertaken;

 Continue to promote the use of virtual media for 
accessing psychological therapies.

3. Perinatal mental health
 Capture referral information to inform future 

developments;
 Review local pathways to ensure referrals to BEATS is 

included;
 Review what services are in place for stillbirth and 

miscarriage support, with a view to development, based 
on findings.

Document Pack Page 93



68

FIM Theme 1: resilience, prevention and early intervention
9.31   The recruitment of Healthy Young Minds link workers in 2016/17 and their 

integration into neighbourhood hubs is already reducing fragmentation of 
service provision across providers. Our ambitious plan to integrate the 
link workers into the neighbourhood hubs brings a number of 
organisations together to consider children and young people holistically. 
The Healthy Young Minds team has been involved in the neighbourhood 
hubs since their early stages of development and as such are ensuring 
that the needs of children and young people are considered right from 
the start of moving towards a new way of working. Developing a 
neighbourhood way of working and moving towards a holistic and co-
ordinated approach to meeting the needs of children and young people in 
Bury formed the main element of our plan in 2016/17. The Healthy Young 
Minds team link with other hub services to raise awareness of early 
intervention and prevention and because Healthy Young Minds workers 
are located in the hub part time, there is a direct link (via the link worker) 
to their services. 

            Below is feedback from a police officer who has been working closely 
with the Healthy Young Minds team, in the neighbourhood hub 
throughout 16/17:

         
‘Since the creation of the new Multi-Agency Hub in East Bury where we 
found out about Healthy Young Minds we have made numerous referrals 
and have had nothing but success stories from all of the cases. The staff  
welcome all referrals with an eagerness to start working with a new person 
as they cannot wait to start helping people and families to improve the 
quality of their lives and even when speaking with staff about a new 
referral you can see the willingness in the staff to start making a change to 
people’s lives. 

Since making referrals the amount of repeat calls to the Police regarding 
the same people has dropped dramatically, and this just goes to show how 
much of a success Healthy Young Minds has been at improving the quality 
of lives not only for the child but also for the whole family which is 
important at bringing families and communities back together.’

Regards

PCSO 63299 Andrew Bigland     

           
            Moving forward, it is the intention that the neighbourhood hub team will 

also link closely to the hospital and therefore links to inpatient services 
will also be strengthened. This means that Healthy Young Minds 
provision will not be organised in isolation from the wider community, 
health and hospital services.

Document Pack Page 94



69

Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention
16/17 what we did  Developed a Single Point of Access (SPA) to all 

children and young people’s information, advice, 
services and support. This SPA is through the Bury 
Healthy Young Minds service and is co-located within 
the newly formed neighbourhood hubs. This allows 
HYM to link closely with other stakeholders and raise 
awareness of service provision at a very early stage, 
prior to when children and young people may need 
services;

 Worked with other agencies in the neighbourhood hubs 
to establish an information and advice point, and 
started to work towards offering a space for young 
people to socialise with peers. The neighbourhood hub 
also has private room spaces, where therapy, 
counselling, assessment and other services can be 
delivered from, for example CYP IAPT.

 Commissioned  a 3rd sector organisation (Early Break) 
to undertake a self-help materials audit to inform future 
planning. The audit has highlighted any gaps in 
provision and we are using that information in 2017/18 
to inform future work;

 Recruited link workers into the Bury CAMHS team to be 
the named links for schools, GPs and other health 
professionals and to work as part of the single point of 
access in the neighbourhood hubs. This link worker has 
substantially increased relationships with other 
stakeholder groups, allowing holistic assessments to 
take place;

 Awarded grants to a number of  3rd sector organisations 
to support the resilience, prevention and early 
intervention agenda and to minimise numbers of people 
requiring more specialised support:

o Early Break and Bury Parents Forum (joint bid) 
including five elements:

 Holistics and mindfulness;
 Parenting course;
 CRAFT training;
 Micro-site development;
 Mindfulness packs.

o Homestart – enabling parents and carers to 
parent more effectively, socially, physically and 
emotionally

 Referred the IT  infrastructure work to the Heads of 
Commissioning at a GM level, so that a potential GM 
solution could be considered.

17/18 onwards - what 
we will do

 GM level - pursue an IT infrastructure solution;
 Local level – further develop the SPA/ neighborhood 

hub model;
 Local level - expand the link worker role offer; 
 Local level – arrange a visioning event to strengthen 

the resilience, prevention and early intervention vision 

Document Pack Page 95



70

to 2020/21;
 Local level - link school leaders into the ongoing 

development of the Local Transformation Plans;
 Local level - develop a local children and young 

people’s mental health and wellbeing dashboard, to 
enable effective baselining of services and monitoring 
of Local Transformation Plan initiatives;

 Local level - develop a standard referral form and an 
agreed definition of a mental health assessment.

Document Pack Page 96



71

 FIM Theme 2: improving access to effective support
9.32    Our aim in Bury is to change how care is delivered and build it around 

the needs of children and young people and families. We will continue to 
move away from a systems of care defined in terms of service 
organisations to ensure children and young people have access to the 
right support from the right service at the right time. Again, our single 
point of access, implemented since the beginning of the Local 
Transformation Plan, is key to our local offer. 

            We are also extending the use of peer support networks by 
commissioning a local organisation in 2017/18 to develop a CYP peer 
support network. 

            In 2017/18, as a main priority, we will commission a transition service 
with flexibility around age boundaries, in which transition is based on 
individual circumstances rather than absolute age. Our current service is 
to 16 years only, so this will be a significant improvement to the offer in 
Bury.

Improving access to effective support
16/17 what we did  Worked towards implementation of the Thrive model;

 Implemented risk assessment to ensure that CYP at 
high risk are now seen as a priority;

 Started working on enhancing Bury’s child bereavement 
service so that we are working towards a service 
covering bereavement and loss;

17/18 onwards - what 
we will do

 GM level – implement the THRIVE model and develop 
the GM I-THRIVE hub;

 GM level –develop a GM out of hours and crisis liaison 
service (including extension of RAID to under 16s);

 GM level –implement agreed GM standards 
underpinning delivery of ADHD services and ensure 
good practice is developed at a local level;

 Local level - commission a service with flexibility around 
age boundaries, in which transition is based on 
individual circumstances rather than absolute age;

 Local level – implement a transition team;
 Local level - collect data on substance misuse, to link 

any intelligence it gives to the work on the transition 
pathway;

 Local level - review recent utilisation management data 
to identify themes that could feed into the ongoing 
development of the LTP;

 Local level - extend the provision of a CAMHS post 
diagnostic service for children with ASD/ ADSD;

 Local level – enhance the local bereavement service to 
a full time service that that covers bereavement AND 
loss and has closer links to other teams such as 
palliative care teams and the early intervention and 
prevention service.

Document Pack Page 97



72

FIM Theme 3: care of the most vulnerable
9.33   We will dismantle barriers and reach out to children and young people in 

need. In 2016/17 we worked to ensure that those who did not attend for 
appointments were not discharged from services but actively followed up 
and offered further support to help them engage. In December 2016 our 
‘Did Not Attend’ rates dropped to 4.5%, which is below our local target of 
5%. This was a significant reduction on previous months.

Care of the most vulnerable
16/17 what we did  Ensured DNAs were not discharged from CAMHS 

services but reason for DNA followed  up;
 Included sensitive inquiry into CAMHS assessments 

about neglect, violence and abuse;
 The Youth Service, offered an additional group for 

young carers in the Prestwich area. This was 
accomplished by working closely with Parranthorn 
School, who offered a venue and member of staff to 
support the group. The group is open to all young 
carers in the area and will offer a mix of activities, 
learning sessions and opportunities for discussion and 
support. This is an additional group to the other three 
groups offered for young carers – two at New 
Kershaw and one in Bury town centre;

 The Youth Service set up a drop-in at the New 
Kershaw Centre for Extra Mile clients, especially 
those who are NEET. The Youth Service are working 
with Extra Mile officers as well as Connexions to 
promote the drop in service, which offers a safe space 
for young people to have informal chats and engage 
with services. Once the service is fully established it 
will be led by young people to ensure that discussions 
and/ or activities meet their needs;

 The Youth Service started working with the Phoenix 
team and now offer a drop-in for those at risk of CSE 
but not at the threshold for the Phoenix team. The 
group is open for males and females and is a mix of 
activities and learning sessions;

 Delivered, through the Youth Service, a six week 
programme on resilience, responding to identified 
need. This was set up in response to a request from 
Park House.

17/18 onwards - what 
we will do

 GM level – develop a GM wide response to the needs 
of children and young people in vulnerable groups;

 Local level - commission a 3rd sector organisation to 
undertake a vulnerable and hard to reach groups 
needs assessment to inform the local transformation  
work in Bury 

Document Pack Page 98



73

FIM Theme 4: accountability and transparency
9.34  Accountability and transparency is a priority for Bury in 2017/18 and 

beyond. In January 2017, following a local workshop to identify future 
priorities, a task and finish group was established to identify Bury’s 
baseline and to start developing a CAMHS local dashboard. This 
dashboard will be used by the Local Transformation Plan Steering Group 
to closely monitor the progress of our Local Transformation Plan 
interventions, identify any new trends and give visibility of our progress.

            Overseeing the Local Transformation Plan work was embedded into 
local governance processes in 2014/15. A Steering Group was 
established, feeding up to the Childrens Trust Operational Group, then to 
the Childrens Trust Board and to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Progress is closely monitored and progressed by Bury CCG, who also 
report on the Local Transformation Plan through their internal 
governance processes and then to NHS England.

            Bury continue to collect data as per national requirements and are 
scoping if any other data/ information is required and what methods of 
collection may need to be implemented. This work will continue 
throughout 2017/18. It is our intention that we develop and implement a 
detailed and transparent set of measures covering access, waiting times 
and outcomes to allow benchmarking of local services at national level, 
in line with the vision set out in Achieving Better Access to Mental Health 
Services by 2010.8

8 Future in Mind, Department of Health, 2015

Document Pack Page 99



74

Accountability and transparency
16/17 what we did  Collected data as per national requirements;

 Embedded the responsibility of overseeing  the 
operationalisation of the LTP into the children’s trust 
board partnership group governance structure;

 Agreed governance processes – up to the H&WB 
board and the CCG SMT/ Clinical Cabinet;

 Implemented a multi-agency local steering group to 
drive the implementation of the plan (including regular 
steering group meetings);

 Returned the mental health service data set to NHS 
England;

 Captured patient feedback via use of individual 
Routine Outcome Measures pre, during and post 
treatment, these are currently embedded into practice 
using IAPT principles;

 Used young people in the recruitment of staff for the 
CEDS service.

17/18 onwards - what 
we will do

 GM level – develop GM data systems to improve 
quality and timeliness of available information;

 Local level - establish a task and finish group to 
identify what local measures are needed to develop 
the required baselines and then monitor 
improvements. The group will identify if the required 
information is currently collected electronically or 
whether any manual data collection mechanisms need 
putting in place. Trajectories will also be set, in line 
with the requirements of the 5YFV. 

 Local level - establish methods of continual data 
collection and monitoring and a feedback mechanism 
to bring the information into the Local Transformation 
Plan Steering Group to inform our ongoing plans.

Document Pack Page 100



75

FIM Theme 5: developing the workforce
9.35   There are plans to work with Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 

partnership's workforce development team to develop a Greater 
Manchester strategy for the whole of the children and young people’s 
emotional wellbeing and mental health workforce. Discussions are at an 
early stage - a Greater Manchester strategic approach is required to 
develop the workforce that Future in Mind transformation requires.  

9.36   Greater Manchester has been successful in negotiating to become an 
IThrive hub and in partnership with the Strategic Clinical Network, other 
CCGs and other leads will develop workforce reform that reflects this 
new model. 

9.37  Greater Manchester is promoting the MindEd e-learning platform as a 
training resource for the whole workforce. At a Greater Manchester level, 
it is planned to agree what will be the core components for the 
programme that should be recommended as being mandatory.  
Negotiations are ongoing at a Greater Manchester level to see if MindEd 
could provide a report of the categories of staff and from which locality 
has access the training.  Building on learning from other Local 
Transformation Plans we will also explore if such reports could be 
provided via local safeguarding boards if MindEd is included into the 
approved training programmes

9.38    It is our aspiration to do further work to engage with the Local Workforce 
Action Board [LWAB] to identify future requirements.

9.39   Locally, Healthy Young Minds is looking at the development of new non-
traditional roles and strengthening links with training providers. The team 
have made links with training providers to offer a placement for students 
to start to grow the workforce for the future. They are also working on a 
programme to upskill staff to further develop their offer to schools. 

9.40   An assessment of training requirements across Bury is currently being 
undertaken, led by the Children’s Trust Operational Group.  

Document Pack Page 101



76

Developing the workforce
16/17 what we did  Reviewed the current training offer for children and 

young people in Bury (led by Children’s Trust 
Operational  Group);

 The Healthy Young Minds service developed an 
awareness raising programme, including Lunch and 
Learn, which was delivered Oct 16 – Jan 17;

 Half-day training was also delivered by Healthy Young 
Minds to Special Educational Needs Co-ordinators 
(SENCOs) on 29th November 2016 and 7th December 
2016 on both ADHD and ASD;

 Training was provided by Healthy Young Minds, in 
relation to pre-assessment / preventative / early 
intervention aspects of the urgent care pathway,  to 
the A&E doctors on 26th October 2016 and will 
continue to be delivered on a six-monthly basis;

 Commissioned Papyrus;
 Ran 2 x self-harm workshops in  Nov 16 and Dec 16 

and 2 at the beginning of 2017;
 Implemented Assist training;
 Recruited link workers to work within the Healthy 

Young Minds service and develop the links with 
schools, primary care and other services.

17/18 onwards - what 
we will do

 Local/ Greater Manchester level - develop joint 
agency plans for Continuing Professional 
Development of existing staff via Greater 
Manchester’s workforce development team;

 Local level - share learning and develop training from 
serious case reviews;

 Local level - commission suicide prevention training;
 Local level - train and support Connexions staff to 

identify key factors which may indicate low level 
mental health needs and record this;

o Identify the support/ interventions available 
that this cohort of young people could be 
referred to/ signposted to by Connexions staff

 Local level - identify the wider community who could 
receive training in children and young people’s mental 
health and wellbeing.

 9.41  Our trajectory for increasing the workforce is currently being worked up 
by the LTP Steering Group. A family therapist has been recruited into the 
core Healthy Young Minds team and we are currently exploring 
psychological wellbeing practitioner posts.

Workforce 
type

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Therapists Increase increase decrease decrease
Supervisors increase increase decrease decrease

Document Pack Page 102



77

9.42  Our Local Transformation Plan is a ‘live’ document and as such 
represents a point in time and will change as we progress throughout the 
year. It is our intention that our actions/ activities will be iteratively 
reviewed and changed/ added to as appropriate.

Document Pack Page 103



78

10.0 Local Governance

10.1  Taking a whole system approach, the Local Transformation Plan was 
developed through a multi-agency Local Transformation Plan Steering 
Group. This group is a sub-group of the Children’s Trust Operational 
Group and is responsible for the operationalisation and mobilisation of the 
Local Transformation Plan. 

10.2   The Children’s Trust Operational Group is the local delivery driver for the 
plan, dealing with issues and risks and resolving these at an operational 
level. They are a sub-group of the Children’s Trust Board, who report into 
the Health and Wellbeing Board.

10.3  The plan is led by Bury CCG on behalf of all partners and a project 
manager has been put in place to oversee and mobilise progress. NHS 
England ultimately holds the CCG accountable for the Local 
Transformation Plan and therefore, progress of the plan is also reported 
through internal Bury CCG governance processes (i.e. to Senior 
Management Team and Clinical Cabinet) and through NHS England 
assurance processes.

10.4 Time limited task and finish groups will be used throughout the 
development and implementation of the LTP. The lifespan of each group 
will depend upon what is required. Some may exist on an ongoing basis. 
Groups to date include:

 Data collection and monitoring group;
 Link worker evaluation group.

Future groups may include (not exclusively):
 Comms and engagement;

Document Pack Page 104



79

11.0  Sharing our plan

11.1  Our refreshed plan will be made available on the Bury CCG website 
http://www.buryccg.nhs.uk/ It will also be made available on the Bury 
Council website http://www.bury.gov.uk/ 

           The plan has been circulated to all stakeholders involved in its 
production and to the wider Bury health and social care community.

Document Pack Page 105

http://www.buryccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.bury.gov.uk/


80

12.0   Monitoring and Measurement

12.1  Throughout the course of the Bury Transformation Plan we aim to ensure 
delivery against identified actions. Work is still to be done in developing our 
key performance indicators (KPIs) and methods of measurement. In some 
cases, new baselines may need to be established to ensure meaningful 
comparisons. The outcome measures will evolve over the course of the plan. 
The following table identifies KPIs and baselines that will be discussed and 
agreed/ rejected by our Steering Group throughout 2017/18. 

            Between 01/04/16 and 31/08/16 there were 258 referrals accepted into the 
CAMHS service. The average waiting time to first assessment (12 weeks) in 
August 2016 was 3 weeks and the average waiting time to treatment (18 
weeks) in August 2016 was 3.3 weeks.

Document Pack Page 106



81

KPI Baseline Target Method of 
Measuring

Increase in % of CYP 
with a diagnosable MH 
condition receiving 
treatment from an NHS 
funded community MH 
service

258 referrals 
between 01/01/16 

and 31/08/16

17/18 – 30%
18/19 – 32%
19/20  - 34%
20/21 – 35%

Quarterly monitoring 
return from provider

Number of CYP 
commencing treatment 
in NHS funded 
community services (No. 
treated over 2014/15 
baseline)

To be determined To be determined

Reduced CYP inpatient 
admissions

21 To be determined NHSE Specialist 
Commissioners

Reduced average length 
of stay in inpatient 
provision

Baseline to be 
established

To be determined NHSE Specialist 
Commissioners

Reduced unplanned 
admissions

Baseline to be 
established

To be determined NHSE Specialist 
Commissioners

Reduced waiting times 
to first contact – 12 
weeks

3 weeks 95% (to be seen 
within 12 weeks)

Quarterly monitoring 
return from provider

Reduced waiting times 
to treatment – 18 weeks

3.3 weeks 98% (to be seen 
within 18 weeks)

Quarterly monitoring 
return from provider

Reduced DNAs Baseline to be 
established

5% Quarterly monitoring 
return from provider

Cancellation rates Baseline to be 
established

1% Quarterly monitoring 
return from provider

No. of CYP accessing 
community eating 
disorder service

1 19
(for whole 
2017/18)

Quarterly monitoring 
return from provider

Proportion of CYP with 
an eating disorder 
receiving treatment 
within 4 weeks (routine) 
and 1 week (urgent)

To be determined To be determined To be determined

Proportion of CYP 
showing reliable 
improvement in 
outcomes following 
treatment

To be determined To be determined To be determined

Improved educational 
attainment (CAMHS 
users)

Baseline to be 
established

To be determined Individual case 
studies

Total bed days in 
CAMHS tier 4 per CYP 
population; total CYP in 
adult in-patient wards/ 
paediatric wards

To be determined To be determined To be determined

Numbers accessing the 
neighbourhood hub and 
accessing SPA

Baseline to be 
established

To be determined Quarterly manual 
collection by 
provider

Document Pack Page 107



82

13.0 Signatures
Name TBC
Signed

Position Cabinet Member for Children, Families and Culture

On Behalf of Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Date

Name Margaret O’Dwyer

Signed

Position Deputy Chief Officer/ Director of Commissioning
On Behalf of NHS Bury CCG
Date

Name Mark Carriline
Signed

Position Executive Director of Children, Young People and Culture
On Behalf Of Bury Council
Date

Name
Signature

Position

On Behalf Of NHS England Specialised Commissioning
Date

Document Pack Page 108



83

14.0  Acknowledgements
            Thanks are given to all organisations who have contributed to the 

development of the Bury Local Transformation Plan. Bury Council, Bury 
CCG and the Pennine Care Trust look forward to continuing to work in 
partnership with all our stakeholders, including children, young people 
and their families, in the redesign of mental health and wellbeing 
services in Bury.

Document Pack Page 109



84

15.0 Definitions

ADHD Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder
AMHS Adult mental health services
ASD Autism spectrum disorder
CAMHS Child and adolescent mental health services
CCG Clinical commissioning group
Child in need Defined under the Children Act 1989 as a child 

who is unlikely to reach or maintain a satisfactory 
level of health or development, or their health or 
development will be significantly impaired, without 
the provision of services, or the child is disabled.

CSE Child sexual exploitation
CYP Children and young people
DoH Department of health
DSH Deliberate self-harm
EHT Early help team
EMHWB Emotional mental health and wellbeing
GM Greater Manchester
GP General Practitioner
HYM Healthy young minds
IAPT Improving access to psychological therapies
LA Local Authority
LGBTQ Lesbian. Gay, bisexual, trans and questioning
LSOA Lower level super output area
LTP Local transformation plan
MASH Multi-agency safeguarding hub
NEET Not in education, employment or training
NHS National health service
NICE National institute of clinical excellence
PRU Pupil referral unit
RAID Rapid assessment, interface and discharge
SEND Special education needs and disabilities
SPoE Single point of entry
SENCOS Special education needs co-ordinators

Document Pack Page 110



85

Appendix: Bury Local Transformation Plan 2017/18 
Theme 1: Resilience, prevention and early intervention

Activity area Action Timescale Led by
(lead agency)

Expected 
outcomes

Outcome 
measures

Financial 
allocation

Visioning (local) Continue to establish, the 
resilience, early intervention 
and prevention vision for 
Bury to 2020/21

2017/18 LTP Steering 
Group, led by CCG

Clear vision 
established

Inclusion of the 
vision in the next 

revision of the LTP

Single point of 
access (local)

Continue to integrate HYM 
link workers into 
neighbourhood hubs and 
support neighbourhood 
working

2017/18 PCFT Better/ closer links 
with other services 

and more integrated 
service for children 
and young people

Proportion of 
positive feedback 
about the service

Number of CYP 
using the hubs

Link workers (local)

Further develop link working 2017/18 PCFT Better links with 
schools, primary 
care and other 
stakeholders

Increase in children 
and young people 
managed by link 

workers

Increased quality of 
referrals

Schools (local) Link school leaders into the 
ongoing development of the 
LTP

2017/18 LA/ PCFT Greater integrated 
working

Increased level of 
training delivered in 

schools
Transparency 
(local)

Develop a local CYP mental 
health and wellbeing 
dashboard

2017/18 CCG Greater 
transparency

Local access and 
activity figures 

published in the 
LTP

Assessment (local) Develop a standard referral 
form and an agreed 
definition of a mental health 
assessment

2017/18 PCFT Referral form in 
place

Referral form in 
place

I.T. Infrastructure 
(GM)

Continue to pursue an I.T. 
solution at a GM level

2017/18
& beyond

CCG Increased data 
sharing

To be determined

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 111



86

Theme 2: Improving access to effective support
Activity area Action Timescale Led by

(lead agency)
Expected 
outcomes

Outcome 
measures

Financial 
allocation

Transition (local) Implement transition team with 
flexibility around age boundaries, 
in which transition is based on 
individual circumstances rather 
than absolute age

Collect data on substance 
misuse and link intelligence to 
the work on transitions

2017/18 PCFT Transition team in 
place for Bury

Service in place that 
goes above 16 years

All young people 
to age 18 years 
are eligible for a 

service

Reduction of 
CYP in crisis

ASD/ADHD (local) Extend the provision of a 
CAMHS post diagnostic service 
for children with ASD/ ADSD

2017/18 PCFT Ongoing ASD/ADHD 
provision in Bury

To be 
determined

Bereavement (local) Consider proposals for an 
enhanced bereavement service

2017/18 CCG Enhanced 
bereavement service 

in place in Bury

Service in place

Thrive (GM) Application of THRIVE model 
and development of the GM I-
THRIVE hub

2017/18 and 
beyond

PCFT Consistent way of 
working across GM

To be 
determined

OOH and crisis 
liaison (GM)

Support the development of GM 
OOH and crisis liaison service 

2017/18 and 
beyond

CCG Consistent service 
across GM

To be 
determined

ADHD (GM)
Support implementation of 
agreed GM standards 
underpinning delivery of ADHD 
servs. and ensure good practice 
is developed at local level

2017/18 and 
beyond

PCFT/ CCG Consistent way of 
working across GM

To be 
determined

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 112



87

Theme 3: Care of the most vulnerable
Activity area Action Timescale Led by

(lead agency)
Expected 
outcomes

Outcome 
measures

Financial 
allocation

Needs assessment 
(local)

Commission a 3rd sector 
organisation to undertake 
a vulnerable and hard to 
reach groups needs 
assessment to inform the 
LTP work

2017/18 CCG LTP meets needs of 
vulnerable/ hard to 

reach groups

Production of a 
report identifying 

needs of vulnerable 
and hard to reach 

groups in Bury
(other actions to be 
determined based 
on the findings in 

the report)

Improving 
outcomes/ quality 
(GM)

Collaborate with GM 
colleagues to scope 
where a GM wide 
response to the needs of 
CYP in vulnerable 
groups will improve 
outcomes/ quality and 
provide systems wide 
efficiencies

2017/18 CCG Improved 
outcomes/ 

consistent quality 
and systems wide 

efficiencies

To be determined

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 113



88

Theme 4: Accountability and transparency
Activity area Action Timescale Led by

(lead agency)
Expected 
outcomes

Outcome 
measures

Financial 
allocation

Baselines and 
monitoring (local)

Establish a task and finish 
group to identify what 
measures are needed to 
develop the required 
baselines and then monitor 
improvements.

Identify if the required 
information is currently 
collected electronically or 
whether any manual data 
collection mechanisms 
need putting in place.

2017/18 CCG

Trajectories (local) Set trajectories, in line with 
the requirements of the 
5YFV. 

2017/18 CCG

Monitoring (local) Establish methods of 
continual data collection 
and monitoring and a 
feedback mechanism for 
the information into the 
LTP Steering Group.

2017/18 CCG

GM data systems 
(GM)

Contribute to the 
development of a GM data 
system to improve quality 
and timeliness of available 
information.

2017/18 CCG

Baselines, 
measures, 

trajectories and 
targets and 
methods of 
measuring 

identified. Greater 
transparency.

To be determined

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 114



89

Theme 5: Developing the workforce
Activity area Action Timescale Led by

(lead agency)
Expected 
outcomes

Outcome 
measures

Financial 
allocation

CPD of existing 
staff (GM and local)

Develop joint agency 
plans for CPD of existing 
staff via GM workforce 
development team

2017/18 CCG Development of 
local workforce

Level of training for 
practitioners

Learning (local) Share learning/ 
developing training from 
serious case reviews

2017/18 PCFT Development of 
local workforce

To be determined

Suicide prevention 
training (local)

Commissioning suicide 
prevention training

2017/18 CCG Development of 
local workforce

To be determined

Training of the 
wider workforce 
(local)

Train and support 
Connexions staff to 
identify key factors which 
may indicate low level 
mental health needs and 
record this

Identify the wider 
community who could 
receive training in CYP 
mental health and 
wellbeing

2017/18 PCFT Development of 
local workforce

Development of 
local workforce

To be determined

To be determined

Links between 
RAID and CYP & 
HYM (local)

As noted under the Bury 
crisis care concordat 
action plan, explore 
training for the RAID 
team to work with CYP 
and HYM and explore 
the 1-2 staff workers 
required to work with and 
across teams to ensure 
the current gap in 
transition is closed, whilst 
we work up our transition 
team offer

2017/18 CCG/ PCFT Development of 
local workforce

To be determined

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 115



90

National priorities
Activity area Action Timescale Led by

(lead agency)
Expected 
outcomes

Outcome 
measures

Financial 
allocation

Community eating 
disorders service 
(GM)

Work with GM colleagues 
towards a GM wide service

2017/18 
and beyond

CCG CYP able to access 
a consistent CED 
service across GM

Full implementation 
of GM wide service

CYP IAPT  (local) Scope who/ which services 
could be IAPT trained and 
how the supervisory element 
might be undertaken

Continue to promote BWW 
through primary care and 
social media

2017/18 PCFT Services working 
within IAPT 

programme by 2018

Increased usage of 
BWW

Number of services 
working within IAPT 

programme

Number of young 
people using BWW

Perinatal mental 
health (local)

Review local pathways to 
ensure referrals to BEATS is 
included

Review what services are in 
place for stillbirth and 
miscarriage support, with a 
view to development, based 
on findings.

2017/18 CCG To be determined

To be determined

To be determined

To be determined

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 116



Page | 1

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Health & Wellbeing College

Date 16th March 2017

Contact Officer Katie Kay / George Edgley

HWB Lead in this 
area

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Information
*

Discussion
*

Decision

Why is this report being brought to the Board?
To share information about the new 
Health and Wellbeing College and 

discuss how it fits within Bury 
councils priorities / pathways

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy priorities the report 

relates to. (See attached Strategy)
www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeing

board

2, 3 & 4

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment priorities the report relates 

to. (See attached JSNA)
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/ho

me.page

Health & Wellbeing

Key Actions for the Health and Wellbeing Board 
to address – what action is needed from the 

Board and its members? Please state 
recommendations for action.

Support from the council to develop 
a partnership approach alongside 

Pennine Care NHS Foundation 
Trust.

What requirement is there for internal or 
external communication around this area?

Opportunities for joint working / 
smooth pathways between NHS 

/council services – opportunity to 
link up with Bury Directory?

Assurance and tracking process – Has the report 
been considered at any other committee 

meeting of the Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please provide 

details.

As this is currently a CQUIN funded 
project mental health 

commissioners from the CCGs have 
been involved.

Document Pack Page 117 Agenda Item 10

http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page


Page | 2

2. Introduction / Background

See attached Autumn and Winter prospectuses for detail

3. key issues for the Board to Consider

How we can link in with the council to develop smooth pathways / ensure we are 
not duplicating and are providing joined up approaches to promote health and 
wellbeing amongst the Bury population. 

4. Recommendations for action

To be discussed.

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please seek advice from the Council Monitoring Officer 
Jayne Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 151 Officer 
Steve Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

N/A

6. Equality/Diversity Implications. Please attach the completed Equality 
and Analysis Form if required. 

N/A

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer:       Katie Kay / George Edgley

Telephone number:  0161 716 2666

 E-mail address:      katiekay@nhs.net 

 Date:     12/12/2016

Document Pack Page 118

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


1

HEALTH AND  
WELLBEING  
COLLEGE
Transforming lives through hope,  
control and opportunity

Autumn term prospectus
September to December 2016

Document Pack Page 119



2

Contents

Special thanks...  
A big thank you to everyone who has been involved in the development of the college and 
helped us to get where we are today. In particular, we send a heartfelt thank you to our experts 
by experience, who have very kindly volunteered their time to be involved in the co-production 
process and shared their lived experiences. You can find out more about our experts by 
experience on page 7.

Welcome ...........................................  3

About the College.............................  4

How do I get started .........................  6

In my Own Words .............................  7

What next for the college .................  8

Volunteer and paid employment  
opportunities ....................................  8

Further information ..........................  8
 

Course information ..........................  9

 Believe and Achieve ......................10

 Curtains To Sleepless Nights .........11

 Out Of The Blues ...........................12

 This Is My Moment .........................13 

 I Am In Control ...............................13

 Cool It! ............................................14

 Writing Our Stories ........................15

 Getting Social ................................15

 

Document Pack Page 120



Welcome  
 

Hello,
 
We are delighted to welcome you to our new 
and exciting Health and Wellbeing College. 

We offer a range of recovery-focused 
educational courses, aimed at supporting 
you to recognise your potential and make 
the most of your talents and resources, 
through self-management. This will help you 
to deal with any health challenges you may 
experience and to achieve the things you 
want in life. 
 
We have a range of interesting courses on 
offer and these will continue to expand as  
the college grows. 
 
At first there will be a focus on supporting 
people to overcome mental health-related 
challenges. However, in the future we will  
also be offering courses around physical 
health and general wellbeing.  
 
This joined up approach to supporting 
both your mental and physical health and 
wellbeing supports Pennine Care’s goal of 
providing high quality whole person care. 

The courses aim to be fun and interactive  
and will vary in length and duration. We will 
offer a number of different learning styles, to 
ensure there is something for everyone. 

 
 
Every single course is fully co-produced. 
This means that it is jointly developed 
by experts by profession (someone with 
professional skills or knowledge) and 
experts by experience (someone with skills 
or knowledge gained through living with a 
particular condition or health challenge). 
 
We are really excited to be part of this new 
and exciting project that involves working in a 
different way. We want to move away from a 
clinical focus to an educational approach and 
empower people to take control and learn 
new skills, while making new friends and 
connecting with others. 
 
We welcome feedback about how we can 
expand and improve the college. If you have 
any ideas, or work in a local organisation that 
is interested in working with us, then please 
get in touch at the details provided on page 8. 

We look forward to welcoming you.

Katie George

3

Document Pack Page 121



4

Who is the college for?

All of our friendly and welcoming courses are 
available to people aged over 18 years who live 
in the following areas: Heywood, Middleton, 
Rochdale, Bury, Oldham, Stockport, Tameside 
or Glossop. 
 
You are welcome regardless of whether you 
have lived experience of a health condition or 
challenge, or you simply want to improve your 
health and wellbeing.  

We also welcome those who care for someone 
– including friends, family and loved ones, as 
well as any staff working for Pennine Care. 
 
Where is the college?

The current college campus site is Maple 
House, Whitney Court, Southlink Business 
Park, Hamilton Street, Oldham, OL4 1DB. 

All courses during the first semester will be 
delivered here and free parking is available. 

There is a bus stop and metro station located 
at Oldham Mumps, which is a short walk away. 
 
We are hoping to move to a bigger venue in the 
future and to deliver some courses at a range 
of local borough-based campus sites. Watch 
this space! 

When is the college open?

Initially, the college will be open to students 
between 10am and 4pm, Monday to Friday. 
 
As part of our plans to expand the college, in 
the future we are aiming to offer courses in 
the evening and at weekends. This depends 
on demand, so please do let us know if this is 
something you would be interested in. 

How often would I need to attend?

The amount of time that you will attend the 
college will depend on which courses you sign 
up for.  
 
To make sure you get the absolute most out 
of your time at the college, we advise that you 
attend 100 per cent of the courses you have 
chosen. You must attend a minimum of 75 per 
cent of your courses to receive your certificate.
 
We understand that there may be times when 
you can’t attend for a number of reasons. We 
simply ask that you let us know if you are not 
able to attend. 

If attendance becomes a real struggle, there 
is always the option for you to defer until the 
next term – just come and talk to a member of 
college staff.

About the college  
 

Document Pack Page 122



5

How long can I be a student for?

The college runs over a full academic year, 
which is broken down into three terms – 
autumn (September to December), spring 
(January to April) and summer (April to July). 
 
You can choose to attend the college for one 
full academic year (three terms) or just for one 
or two terms. 

What can I expect from the college?

To make the most of your time at the college, 
you will develop an individual learning plan 
that sets our specific goals and aspirations. 
This will help to identify which courses will be 
most beneficial to you (full course details are 
provided on pages 9 to 15). 

Don’t worry if you’re not sure what you want to 
achieve at this point, we will work with you on 
this. 

Towards the end of each term, we will talk 
to you about what you want to do next and 
provide any advice and support you need. 
You could decide to stay on for another term 
(up to a maximum of three), move on to adult 
education or paid employment, or take up a 
volunteering opportunity. 
 
At the end of each term we will hold a 
graduation ceremony to celebrate the 
achievements and successes of those moving 
on from the college.  

What if I need extra support?

We operate an open door policy to students. 
Maple House offers full disabled access and 
we will do everything we can to support you to 
be able to achieve success during your time 
with the college. When you enrol, please speak 
to us and we will do whatever we can to provide 
the support you need. 

We encourage you to attend the college 
independently where possible; however 
a supportive friend, family member or 
professional may come with you initially. 
 
We can offer you the support of a study buddy, 
who can meet with you before you start at the 
college and attend some sessions with you, if 
you wish.

You are more than welcome to call in to the 
college for an informal visit; to have a look 
around and ask any questions you have. 

And remember, if you currently receive support 
from a healthcare professional, or service, they 
will still be around to support you in the normal 
way outside of the college. 

Document Pack Page 123



6

Enrolment

Firstly you’ll need to enrol with the college. 
Enrolment for the first term (Monday 5 
September to Friday 16 December 2016) will 
begin on Monday 4 July and run until the 
courses begin on 5 September. 

You can enrol either over the telephone, by 
email, or you can call in to the college (all 
contact details are provided on page 8). 

Enrolment simply involves us collecting some 
basic information from you, such as your 
name, address and contact details. 
 
Once you have enrolled, you will get 
confirmation from us that you have become a 
registered student. 

Attending an initial mandatory workshop

Once you have enrolled, you will need to book 
on to a mandatory workshop titled: ‘Making 
The Most Of Your Study And Developing Your 
Individual Learning Plan’. 

The first part of the session will provide you 
with an introduction to the college. During 
the second part, you will have an opportunity 
to think about your goals and aspirations, 
which courses you might like to choose and to 
complete your individual learning plan. 

When you have decided what courses you 
want to do, you will need to complete a course 
choices form. You can either do this during the 
workshop, or go away to think things over and 
pop in with your form at a later date. 

The dates and times for the workshop are as 
follows and all will be held at Maple House 
Oldham (full address on page 4): 

Date Time

Tuesday 16 August 10am to 12pm

Wednesday 17 August 1.30pm to 3.30pm

Thursday 18 August 10am to 12pm

Friday 19 August 1.30pm to 3.30pm

Tuesday 23 August 10am to 12pm

Wednesday 24 August 1.30pm to 3.30pm

Thursday 25 August 10am to 12pm

Friday 26 August 1.30pm to 3.30pm

Tuesday 30 August 10am to 12pm

Wednesday 31 August 1.30pm to 3.30pm

Thursday 1 September 1.30pm to 3.30pm

Friday 2 September 10am to 12pm

How do I get started? 
 

Document Pack Page 124



7

Tanya Headley, 52, from Radcliffe, said: “I’ve 
gone through a personal journey, so it’s good 
to have the opportunity to help others. This is 
my chance to give back.” 

Katheryn Whittaker, 53, from Denton, said: 
“I’ve found helping to produce the courses 
really interesting. It’s about different people 
sharing their experiences and it lets people 
know they’re not on their own and others 
have been through similar things.”

 
Jake Goulding, 31, from Heywood, said: “It’s 
about people understanding other people’s 
experiences and hopefully changing the 
stigma around mental health problems.”

 
Luke Dawson-Schofield, 25, from Stockport, 
said: “I want people to get started with the 
college to see how this can change their life 
in a positive way.” 

In my own words
As we have mentioned previously, all of  
our courses have been fully co-produced 
(jointly developed) with a range of experts  
by experience – in other words, people  
who have real life experience of a particular 
health condition or challenge.

Here you can find out a bit more about  
them, why they wanted to get involved  
and their thoughts about the college.

Document Pack Page 125



8

In the coming weeks and months we will be 
offering enrichment activities. You will be able 
to book on to these, in addition to your chosen 
courses.
 
The activities will be offered throughout the 
academic year and will give you the opportunity 
to try something new and different.

Where possible we will link the activities into 
relevant local and national health and wellbeing 
campaigns, such as Self-Care Week, or into 
seasonal themes, such as Christmas or Eid.
 
We are currently working to develop the 
activities that will be offered and they will be 
advertised within the college.
 
If you have any ideas about the types of 
activities we could offer, who we could link in 
with, or if you would like to work with us, please 
contact us at the details on this page.

 
There will be various volunteering and paid job 
opportunities available within the college for 
students and those who have graduated. 
These will be advertised within the college, but 
please do speak to a member of the college 
team if you are interested in finding out more.

If you would like to know more about the 
college, please get in touch or visit our website 
or Facebook page:

Richmond Fellowship
To find out more about the mental health 
charity, Richmond Fellowship, which has 
helped to co-produce the Writing Our  
Stories course (detailed on page 15),  
visit www.richmondfellowship.org.uk 

What next for  
the college? 
 

Further 
information

Volunteer and 
paid employment 
opportunities

hwcollege.penninecare@nhs.net
www.mhmc.penninecare.nhs.uk/HWCollege 

@PennineCareNHS

0161 716 2666

Health and Wellbeing College

Document Pack Page 126



9

The following pages provide details about 
the courses we will be offering during the first 
term (September to December 2016). We will 
discuss these with you in more details during 
the initial workshop (explained on page 6). 

Some courses will run more than once during 
the term – but all are exactly the same. You 
can choose to book on to any of the courses, 
but you must attend all dates within that 
course (i.e. you can’t swap between courses). 

You should aim to arrive a few minutes before 
the start time of your session. Pens, paper 
and other course materials will be provided. 

Hot and cold drinks will be provided. However, 
if you are attending a morning and afternoon 
session, you will need to bring your own 
lunch. Should you wish to buy your lunch, a 
sandwich shop is located a short walk from 
Maple House.

Course information

Document Pack Page 127



10

Believe and Achieve 

This course aims to celebrate your everyday and long-term achievements, step towards believing 
in yourself and achieving your journey. The possibilities are endless if you believe.

Course length: Four sessions

Number of courses available: Two 

Number of places available per course: 15

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 6 September 1pm to 3pm

Session 2 13 September 1pm to 3pm

Session 3 20 September 1pm to 3pm

Session 4 27 September 1pm to 3pm

Course 2

Session 1 20 October 10am to 12pm

Session 2 27 October 10am to 12pm

Session 3 3 November 10am to 12pm

Session 4 10 November 10am to 12pm

Document Pack Page 128



11

Curtains To Sleepless Nights 

This course looks at the importance of getting a good night’s sleep, how we can improve  
sleep and our sleeping habits. It will equip you with tools to try and end the struggle with 
sleepless nights.

Course length: Two sessions

Number of courses available: Three 

Number of places available per course: 15
 
Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 4 October 1pm to 3pm

Session 2 11 October 1pm to 3pm

Course 2

Session 1 17 November 10am to 12pm

Session 2 24 November 10am to 12pm

Course 3

Session 1 29 November 10am to 12pm

Session 2 6 December 10am to 12pm
  

Document Pack Page 129



12

Out Of The Blues 

The course aims to develop an understanding of how depression affects people and aims to help 
you deal with low mood. It looks at the impact of lifestyle on depression and how to build positive 
thinking and activity in to our lives.

Course length: Six sessions

Number of courses available: Two 

Number of places available per course: 15

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 6 September 10am to 12pm

Session 2 13 September 10am to 12pm

Session 3 20 September 10am to 12pm

Session 4 27 September 10am to 12pm

Session 5 4 October 10am to 12pm

Session 6 11 October 10am to 12pm

Course 2

Session 1 6 October 1pm to 3pm

Session 2 13 October 1pm to 3pm

Session 3 20 October 1pm to 3pm

Session 4 27 October 1pm to 3pm

Session 5 3 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 6 10 November 1pm to 3pm

Document Pack Page 130



13

I Am In Control
The course aims to help you manage and overcome anxieties. You will learn tools and techniques to 
recognise and deal effectively with different types of anxiety and explore how you can feel in control.

Course length: Six sessions 

Number of courses available: Two 

Number of places available per course: 15 

Dates and times: 
Course 1

Session 1 8 September 10am to 12pm

Session 2 15 September 10am to 12pm

Session 3 22 September 10am to 12pm

Session 4 29 September 10am to 12pm

Session 5 6 October 10am to 12pm

Session 6 13 October 10am to 12pm

Course 2

Session 1 25 October 1pm to 3pm

Session 2 1 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 3 8 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 4 15 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 5 22 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 6 29 November 1pm to 3pm

This Is My Moment
Come and learn how to be aware of your feelings, acknowledge and accept your thoughts and 
gain an understanding of how to use your senses to allow yourself to be in the moment and 
appreciate your life. 

Course length: One workshop

Number of workshops available: Three

Number of places available per workshop: 15

18 October 10am to 12pm

1 December 10am to 12pm

13 December 10am to 12pm

Document Pack Page 131



14

Cool It! 
This course may interest you if you wish to develop your understanding of anger and look at ways 
to manage it. The course will help you to think about how your thinking, lifestyle and choices can 
make you feel angry and cause aggressive behaviour.

Course length: Six sessions

Number of courses available: Two

Number of places available per course: 15

Dates and times: 

Course 1

Session 1 9 September 10am to 12pm

Session 2 16 September 10am to 12pm

Session 3 23 September 10am to 12pm

Session 4 30 September 10am to 12pm

Session 5 7 October 10am to 12pm

Session 6 14 October 10am to 12pm

Course 2

Session 1 18 October 10am to 12pm

Session 2 25 October 10am to 12pm

Session 3 1 November 10am to 12pm

Session 4 8 November 10am to 12pm

Session 5 15 November 10am to 12pm

Session 6 22 November 10am to 12pm

Document Pack Page 132



15

Writing Our Stories
Co-produced with Richmond Fellowship

Are you interested in unlocking the creative potential of storytelling? This course will look at 
storytelling as a form of escapism – looking at things in a different way and reflecting on your own 
experiences. 
 
The session will involve reading stories (fictional or real life) and talking about them. We will look at 
simple techniques that have shaped these stories. Following this, there will be activities that will ease 
you in to the art of writing and there will be a chance to share your writing with others, if you wish. 

Course length: Eight sessions 

Number of courses available: One 

Number of places available: 15 

Dates and times: 

Session 1 2 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 2 9 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 3 16 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 4 23 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 5 30 November 1pm to 3pm

Session 6 7 December 1pm to 3pm

Session 7 14 December 1pm to 3pm

Session 8 21 December 1pm to 3pm

Have you ever wondered why people use Facebook, Twitter and YouTube, how to get started, or 
how it might benefit you? 
 
This course is a basic introduction to social media including: understanding what Facebook, 
Twitter and YouTube are, getting set up on the platforms, how you can use them to improve your 
health and wellbeing or to develop your social networks, and tips on using social media safely. 

Course length: One workshop 

Number of workshops available: Three 

Number of places available per workshop: 15 

Dates and times:

16 September 10am to 12.30pm

28 October 1pm to 3.30pm

9 December 10am to 12.30pm

Getting Social

Document Pack Page 133



16

hwcollege.penninecare@nhs.net
www.mhmc.penninecare.nhs.uk/HWCollege 

@PennineCareNHS

0161 716 2666

Health and Wellbeing College

Find out more:

Date of publication: June 2016 | Reference: 4596 | © Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust

Patient Advice and Liaison Service
The Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) acts on behalf of service users, families and 
carers to negotiate prompt solutions and help bring about changes in the way that services 
are developed. As well as providing a confidential advice and support service, PALS will help 
guide you through the different services available from the NHS.  
Tel: 0161 716 3178

Comments and complaints
We want to learn from comments and complaints about our services. If you have any, 
please speak with a member of staff. Every effort will be made to resolve any concerns and 
complaining will not cause any difficulties in your care with us. You can also contact the Trust’s 
Complaints Department via post at Trust Headquarters, 225 Old Street, Ashton-under-Lyne, 
OL6 7SR.  
Tel: 0161 716 3083  
Email: complaints.penninecare@nhs.net

Become a member of our Trust
You can be the voice of your community by electing or becoming a governor, find out more 
about your local mental health and community services, and receive updates, comment on our 
plans and get invitations to health events.  
Tel: 0161 716 3960   
Email: ftmembership.penninecare@nhs.net

Alternative formats
If you need help to understand this information, require it in another format such as large print, 
spoken (on CD) or Braille, or require it in a different language, speak to a member of staff.

Document Pack Page 134



1

HEALTH AND  
WELLBEING  
COLLEGE
Transforming lives through hope,  
control and opportunity

Winter semester
January to April 2017

Document Pack Page 135



2

Contents
Welcome ...........................................  3

About the College.............................  4

What is the aim of the college? ............ 4

Where is the college? .......................... 4

Who is the college for? ........................ 4

When is the college open? .................. 6

How often would I need to attend? ...... 6

How long can I be a student for? ........ 6

What can I expect from the college? ... 6

What if I need extra support? ............... 7

How do I get started .........................  8

New students ....................................... 8

Oldham campus workshop details ...... 9

Stockport campus workshop details ... 9

Current students .................................. 9

In my Own Words ............................. 10

Staff profile ...........................................10

Student profile ......................................12

 

 

What else is available  
at the college? .................................. 13

Activities and events ............................13

College Bake Off ..................................13

Volunteer and paid employment  
opportunities ........................................14

Contact us ........................................ 14

Course information .......................... 15

About the courses ................................15

A little note about co-production .........15

Our Courses

Believe and Achieve .................................. 16

Curtains To Sleepless Nights ................... 17

Out Of The Blues ....................................... 18

I am In Control ........................................... 19 

Cool It! ........................................................ 20

Get Social Media Savvy ............................ 21

This Is My Moment .................................... 22

Writing Our Stories .................................... 23

Healthy Relationships *NEW* .................. 24

Coping With Change *NEW* ................... 25

Make It Count *NEW* ............................... 25

Preparing For Your Future *NEW* ........... 26

Eat Well Be Active *NEW* ........................ 27

 

Document Pack Page 136



Welcome  
 

Hello, 

After a very successful first semester, we are 
excited to invite new and existing students to 
enrol for our winter courses. 

During our first semester, we welcomed 87 
students to the college – the youngest was 
23 and the oldest 70 years old. This means 
we had a really diverse student mix within our 
classes, which has been great to see. 
 
We have had some excellent feedback and 
have been overwhelmed by the progress 
that our students are already making. We’re 
delighted that the college is making a real 
difference to people’s health and wellbeing. 

The winter semester will start on Monday 
9 January 2017 and end on Friday 7 April 
2017. You can enrol any time from Monday 
14 November 2016 up until Friday 6 January 
2017. Details about enrolment are provided  
on page 8. 
 
We’ve added some new and exciting courses 
to our college programme, meaning we now 
offer a good mix of mental and physical health 
topics and life skills. 
 
The courses aim to be fun and interactive and 
will vary in length and duration. We also offer 
a number of different learning styles, to ensure 
there is something for everyone. 
 

While our main campus remains in Oldham, 
we’re pleased to be able to offer some 
courses in Stockport. Further details are 
provided on page 5. 
 
We’re also working with our colleagues in 
Pennine Care’s low secure services to offer 
courses to some of our inpatients. 
 
We are thankful to all the students who have 
been involved in the college so far - their 
enthusiasm and keenness to learn has been 
infectious. We look forward to continuing to 
work with them and supporting them on their 
journey, whether they choose to enrol for 
another semester or graduate and take their 
next step. 

We welcome feedback about how we can 
improve the college and the courses we offer 
– please do share any ideas you have via the 
contact details on page 14. 

Also, if you’re part of a local organisation that 
is interested in working with us, we’d love to 
hear from you.  
 
We look forward to welcoming you to the 
college.

Katie George

3

Document Pack Page 137



4

What is the aim of the college?

The college aims to provide something very 
different for local people. We have moved 
away from the clinical focus offered by many 
traditional support services; instead we offer an 
educational approach designed to empower 
you to take control of your own health and 
wellbeing, while learning new skills, making 
friends and connecting with others. 
 
Our recovery-focused courses can support you 
to recognise your potential and make the most 
of your talents and resources, through self-
management. In turn, this can help you to deal 
with any health challenges you may experience 
and achieve the things you want in life. 
 

Who is the college for?

The college is open to anyone aged over 18 
years who lives in: 

• Heywood, Middleton or Rochdale
• Bury
• Oldham
• Stockport
• Tameside or Glossop
 
You are welcome regardless of whether you 
have an existing health condition or challenge, 
or you simply want to improve your health and 
wellbeing. 

We also welcome those who care for someone 
– including friends, family and loved ones, as 
well as any staff working for Pennine Care. 

About the college  
 

Where is the college?

Oldham campus (main campus)

Currently, the main college campus 
is at Maple House, Whitney Court, 
Southlink Business Park, Hamilton 
Street, Oldham, OL4 1DB. 
 
Free parking is available. There is also 
a bus stop and metro station located 
at Oldham Mumps, which is a short 
walk away.  

Maple House
Southlink 
Business Park Hamilton Street

Greengate Street

G
lodw

ick R
oad

So
ut

hl
in

k

Southlink

Hamilto
n Stre

et

Southlink

Document Pack Page 138



5

Stockport campus

This semester we are pleased  
to offer some courses at our  
new Stockport campus  
which is based at  
Stockport College,  
Wellington Road South,  
Stockport, SK1 3UQ. 

Please enter the main  
college entrance on  
Wellington Road South  
where you will be asked  
to sign in. Please explain  
that you are attending  
a course with the Health  
and Wellbeing College. You will  
then be given a visitor pass and  
the course facilitator will take you  
to your session at Vernon Tower.

Pay and display parking is available 
behind the campus. There is a bus  
stop immediately outside of the 
college and the train stop within 
walking distance.

Future plans

We are hoping to move our main campus 
site to a bigger venue in the future and to 
deliver more courses at borough-based 
campus sites. Watch this space!

W
ellington R

d S
outh

A6

A6

Ratcliffe Street

Mottram Street

M
illbrook Street

O
liver Street

Royal G
eorge Street

Gre
ek

 S
tre

et

Frances Street

Blackshaw Street

Thomson Stre
et

St Thomas’s Place

Union Stre
et

Stockport College
Main entrance

Document Pack Page 139



6

When is the college open?

The main college site (Oldham) is open from 
10am to 4pm, Monday to Friday. (The Stockport 
site will only be open when courses are being 
delivered.) 
 
This semester we’re pleased to be able to 
offer some early evening courses and we’re 
hoping to be able to offer more as the college 
develops. Full details and times of each course 
are provided on pages 16 to 27.

How often would I need to attend?

The amount of time that you will attend the 
college will depend on which courses you  
sign up for. 
 
To make sure you get the absolute most out 
of your time at the college, we advise that you 
attend 100 per cent of the courses you have 
chosen. You must attend a minimum of 75 
per cent of your courses to receive your 
certificate.

We understand that there may be times when 
you can’t attend for a number of reasons. We 
simply ask that you let us know if you are not 
able to attend.

If attendance becomes a real struggle, there is 
always the option for you to defer until the next 
semester – just come and talk to a member of 
the college team. 

How long can I be a student for?

The college runs over a full academic year, 
which is broken down into three semesters – 
autumn semester (September to December), 
winter semester (January to April) and spring 
semester (April to July).  

You can choose to attend the college for a 
maximum of one full academic year (three 
semesters) or just attend for one or two 
semesters.

What can I expect from the college?

To make the most of your time at the college, 
you will develop an individual learning plan that 
sets out your specific goals and aspirations. 
This will help to identify which courses will be 
most beneficial to you. 

Don’t worry if you’re not sure what you want to 
achieve at this point, we will work with you on 
this. 

Towards the end of each term, we will talk 
to you about what you want to do next and 
provide any advice and support you need. You 
could decide to stay on for another semester 
(up to a maximum of three semesters in 
total), or move on from the college to take 
your next steps such as adult education, paid 
employment, or a volunteering opportunity. 

 

Document Pack Page 140



7

At the end of each term we hold a graduation 
ceremony to celebrate our students’ 
achievements and successes. 

What if I need extra support?

We operate an open door policy to students. 
Both the Oldham and Stockport campuses 
offer full disabled access. 

When you enrol, please speak to us and we 
will do whatever we can to provide the support 
you need; we want to ensure you can achieve 
success during your time with the college. 
 
We encourage you to attend the college 
independently where possible; however 
a supportive friend, family member or 
professional may come with you initially. 
 
We can offer you the support of a study buddy, 
who can meet with you before you start at the 
college and attend some sessions with you, if 
you wish. 

You are more than welcome to call in to our 
main college campus in Oldham to have a look 
around and ask any questions you have. If you 
would like to have a look around our Stockport 
campus, please get in touch first and we can 
arrange a mutually convenient time. 

And remember, if you currently receive support 
from a healthcare professional, or service, they 
will still be around to support you in the normal 
way outside of the college.

We can offer you the 
support of a study 
buddy, who can meet 
with you before you 
start at the college and 
attend some sessions 
with you, if you wish.

“ “

Document Pack Page 141



8

New students
Enrolment

Before starting one of our courses, you’ll need  
to enrol with the college. Enrolment for the winter 
semester will begin on Monday 14 November 
and run until Friday 6 January 2017. 

Enrolment simply involves us collecting some 
basic information from you, such as your name, 
address and contact details. 

You can enrol by telephone, email, or you can 
call in to the college. You’ll soon be able to enrol 
online – please keep checking our website for 
further details. Contact details and our website 
address are provided on page 14. 

Once you have enrolled, you will need to book  
on an introductory workshop.

Introductory workshop

All new students must attend a one-off 
introductory workshop titled: ‘Making The Most 
Of Your Study And Developing Your Individual 
Learning Plan’. 

The first part of the session will provide you 
with an introduction to the college. During the 
second part, you will have an opportunity to 
think about your goals and aspirations and 
which courses you might like to choose.
 
When you have decided what courses you want 
to do, you will fill out a course choices form. You 
can either do this during the workshop, or go 
away to think about it and pop in with your form 
at a later date. 

The workshop will be offered at both our 
Oldham and Stockport campuses as follows  
(full address details are provided on page 4  
and 5). 

How do I get started? 
 

Document Pack Page 142



9

Oldham campus workshop details:

Date Time

Tuesday 6 December 2016 10.00am to 
12.00pm

Wednesday 7 December 2016 1.30pm to 
3.30pm

Thursday 8 December 2016 10.00am to 
12.00pm

Thursday 8 December 2016 1.30pm to 
3.30pm

Monday 12 December 2016 1.30pm to 
3.30pm

Tuesday 13 December 2016 10.00am to 
12.00pm

Tuesday 13 December 2016 1.30pm to 
3.30pm

Wednesday 14 December 
2016

1.30pm to 
3.30pm

Monday 19 December 2016 1.30pm to 
3.30pm

Tuesday 20 December 2016 10.00am to 
12.00pm

Stockport campus workshop details: 

Date Time

Friday 9 December 2016 10.00am to 
12.00pm

Friday 9 December 2016 1.00pm to 
3.00pm

Note: Even if you enrol at the Oldham 
campus you can still choose to attend  
a course at the Stockport campus – and  
vice versa.

Current students:

If you are a current student and you want to 
choose one or more courses for the winter 
semester, you can book your place/s between 
Monday 14 November and Friday 25 November. 

Just drop into the college’s admin office at 
Maple House. We’re open Monday to Friday, 
between 10am and 4pm.

Document Pack Page 143



10

In my own words
In this section you can find out more about what it’s really like at the college from the people 
who work and study here.

Staff profile
Lucy Rae
22, Peer Support 
Trainer  
 
What does your role 
involve?

My role is to be an 
expert by experience, 
which means I co-teach 
classes with someone 

with professional expertise. I use my lived 
experience to help engage students from a  
less clinical perspective. 

A big part of my role is just talking to the 
students, whether in group activities or just 
at break times. I find a lot of learning is done 
outside the classroom. I also co-produce 
courses within the college and attend meetings 
and promotional events.

Why did you choose to become a Peer 
Support Trainer?

I have struggled with my mental health for a 
long time. After I graduated from university I 
was looking for some volunteer work within 
mental health services, I felt I was ready and 
passionate about giving something back.

When I saw the job description I thought it 
was perfect for me! I couldn’t miss out on 
the opportunity. As I have gone through the 
process I have learned a lot more about what
the role is. I feel it’s perfect for someone like me 
who wants to give back. I really enjoy every day 
that I am here. 

What is the most rewarding aspect of  
your job?

I enjoy all aspects of my job. The job 
is incredibly rewarding. I have seen so 
many changes in people already. I feel so 
appreciated and wanted. I have received  
so many compliments and thanks just for  
being me. 

It’s unbelievably rewarding to know I am 
making a difference in people lives through my 
own experiences and understanding. That is 
the most important thing to me, to help people 
and make a difference.
 
What is the hardest thing?

The hardest thing for me is seeing so many 
people suffering and knowing I can’t help 
them all individually. I am naturally very caring 
and empathetic, sometimes I just want to help 
everybody but I know that’s not possible.  

Document Pack Page 144



11

Another challenge I face is that sometimes I get 
asked a lot of questions about how I did it.  
This is a hard question to answer as I am also 
on my own recovery journey. I try to give the 
best advice I can and let students know they 
aren’t alone. 
 
What have you learned so far?

I have learned how lived experience can help 
people so much more and also give people 
a better understanding. I have done things I 
never thought I could do, so I have learned a 
lot about myself through this experience.

How do others who are interested get 
involved?

If students are interested in getting involved, 
we get them to study through the college first. 
Once they have graduated there may be some 
volunteering opportunities available through the 
college. Some examples of the roles available 
are study buddy, ‘meeter and greeter’ and 
admin. Sometimes there might be vacancies 
within the college that people can apply for. 

What’s next for you and the college?

I am setting up an art group for all the  
students to be involved with, focusing on 
making artwork for the college. It will focus  
on the hope, control and opportunity theme.  
I am really excited about it, as my background 
is in art. It’s a great way for people to express 
themselves and to engage and connect  
with others.

We are open to feedback at the college and 
want to give students the option to help  
co-produce the courses or any other activities 
that could be helpful or enjoyable. I would 
advise people to speak to a member of the 
college team for more information.

 I am setting up an art group 
for all the students to be involved 
with, focusing on making artwork 
for the college. It will focus on 
the hope, control and opportunity 
theme. I am really excited about it, 
as my background is in art. It’s a 
great way for people to express 
themselves and to engage and 
connect with others.

“

“

Document Pack Page 145



12

Kamran Hadi
27, student from Radcliffe  
 
I am a student at the Health 
and Wellbeing College.  
I found staff really helpful  
and polite. They let you work 
at your own pace and relieve 
any pressures you may have 
as they help you feel relaxed. 
 

I enjoyed learning about things such as anxiety, 
depression and anger management. I found it really 
useful to understand issues in simple terms we can 
all understand and this knowledge has helped me 
overcome certain mental health issues. 
 
I have recommended the college to all my friends 
so they can benefit as well as I have. These courses 
help you become more confident and understand 
what’s going on. 
 
Lastly I would like to thank all the staff for making  
me feel welcome and comfortable. I hope  
everyone on the course enjoys the same  
success as I have. 

Student profile

I have recommended 
the college to all my 
friends so they can 
benefit as well as I 
have. These courses 
help you become 
more confident and 
understand what’s 
going on. 

“

“

Document Pack Page 146



13

What else is available at the college?

College Bake Off

In October 2016 we held a Bake Off event 
to highlight World Mental Health Day. 
Students, staff, families and the wider 
public were invited to bake something of 
their choice and bring it along to a special 
event. A judging panel chose a winner and 
several runners up based on the taste and 
appearance of the entry.

One of our students took home first prize  
for her lemon drizzle cake. 

Activities and events

In addition to our educational courses, we offer 
a range of activities and events – such as the 
Bake Off event explained below. These aim 
to enrich your time at the college by offering 
you the opportunity to try something new and 
different. 

Where possible we link the activities into 
relevant local and national health and wellbeing 
campaigns, such as Self-Care Week, or into 
seasonal themes such as Christmas or Eid.

Our activities and events will be advertised 
throughout the year, so look out for details. 
You will be able to get involved in anything that 
interests you.

If you have any ideas about the types of 
activities we could offer, who we could link in 
with, or if you would like to work with us, please 
contact us at the details on page 14.

Document Pack Page 147



14

If you would like to know more about the college, or to enrol, please get in touch or visit our 
website or Facebook page:

Contact us 

hwcollege.penninecare@nhs.net
www.mhmc.penninecare.nhs.uk/HWCollege 

@PennineCareNHS

0161 716 2666

Health and Wellbeing College

Volunteer and paid employment opportunities

There will be various volunteering and paid job opportunities available within the college for 
students and those who have graduated. 
 
These will be advertised, but please do speak to a member of the college team if you are 
interested in finding out more.

Document Pack Page 148



15

The following pages provide details about the 
courses we will be offering during the winter 
semester (January to April 2017). We will 
discuss these with you in more detail during 
the initial workshop (explained on page 8).
 
About the courses

Some courses will run more than once during 
the term – but all are exactly the same. You can 
choose to book on to any of the courses, but 
you must attend all dates within that course 
(i.e. you can’t swap between courses).

You should aim to arrive a few minutes before 
the start time of your session. Pens, paper and 
other course materials will be provided.

Hot and cold drinks will be provided. However, 
if you are attending a morning and afternoon 
session, you will need to bring your own lunch.

Should you wish to buy your lunch, a sandwich 
shop is located a short walk from the Oldham 
campus. There is a coffee shop selling 
sandwiches at the Stockport campus.

A little note about co-production 

All of our courses in the college are fully  
co-produced (written and delivered) by experts 
by profession (people who have professional 
knowledge in a particular subject area) and 
experts by experience (people who have 
personal experience of a particular health 
challenge).

Our experts by experience are known as our 
peer trainers. Read more about this role on 
page 10. 

Course information

Document Pack Page 149



16

Believe and Achieve 

This course aims to celebrate your everyday and long-term achievements, step towards believing 
in yourself and achieving your journey. The possibilities are endless if you believe.

Course length: Four sessions

Number of courses available: Four

Number of places available per course: 16

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Tuesday 10 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Tuesday 17 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Tuesday 24 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Tuesday 31 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Tuesday 17 January 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Session 2 Tuesday 24 January 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Session 3 Tuesday 31 January 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Session 4 Tuesday 7 February 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Our courses 
 

Course 3

Session 1 Wednesday 8 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Wednesday 15 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Wednesday 22 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Wednesday 1 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Document Pack Page 150



17

Curtains To Sleepless Nights 

This course looks at the importance of getting a good night’s sleep, how we can improve  
sleep and our sleeping habits. It will equip you with tools to try and end the struggle with 
sleepless nights.

Course length: Two sessions

Number of courses available: Four

Number of places available per course: 16
 
Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Wednesday 11 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Wednesday 18 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Friday 3 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Stockport campus

Session 2 Friday 10 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Stockport campus
  

Course 3

Session 1 Tuesday 21 February 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Session 2 Tuesday 28 February 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Course 4

Session 1 Monday 13 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Monday 20 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Course 4

Session 1 Friday 10 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 2 Friday 17 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 3 Friday 24 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 4 Friday 31 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Document Pack Page 151



18

Out Of The Blues 

The course aims to develop an understanding of how depression affects people and aims to help 
you deal with low mood. It looks at the impact of lifestyle on depression and how to build positive 
thinking and activity in to our lives.

Course length: Six sessions

Number of courses available: Two 

Number of places available per course: 16

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Tuesday 10 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Tuesday 17 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Tuesday 24 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Tuesday 31 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Tuesday 7 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Tuesday 14 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Thursday 2 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Thursday 9 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Thursday 16 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Thursday 23 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Thursday 30 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Thursday 6 April 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Document Pack Page 152



19

I Am In Control
The course aims to help you manage and overcome anxieties. You will learn tools and techniques to 
recognise and deal effectively with different types of anxiety and explore how you can feel in control.

Course length: Six sessions 

Number of courses available: Three 

Number of places available per course: 16 

Dates and times: 
Course 1

Session 1 Friday 13 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 2 Friday 20 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 3 Friday 27 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 4 Friday 3 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 5 Friday 10 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 6 Friday 17 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Course 2

Session 1 Wednesday 15 February 2017 10am to 12pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Wednesday 22 February 2017 10am to 12pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Wednesday 1 March 2017 10am to 12pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Wednesday 8 March 2017 10am to 12pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Wednesday 15 March 2017 10am to 12pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Wednesday 22 March 2017 10am to 12pm Oldham campus

Course 3

Session 1 Thursday 2 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Thursday 9 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Thursday 16 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Thursday 23 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Thursday 30 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Thursday 6 April 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Document Pack Page 153



20

Cool It! 
This course may interest you if you wish to develop your understanding of anger and look at ways 
to manage it. The course will help you to think about how your lifestyle and choices can make you 
feel angry and cause aggressive behaviour.

Course length: Six sessions

Number of courses available: Two

Number of places available per course: 16

Dates and times: 

Course 1

Session 1 Friday 13 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Friday 20 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Friday 27 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Friday 3 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Friday 10 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Friday 17 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Tuesday 28 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Tuesday 7 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Tuesday 14 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Tuesday 21 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Tuesday 28 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Tuesday 4 April 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Document Pack Page 154



21

Get Social Media Savvy
Do you want to learn how to use social media to connect with other people and improve your 
health and wellbeing? 
 
This course is a basic introduction to social media including: understanding what Facebook, 
Twitter and YouTube are, getting set up on the platforms, how you can use them to improve your 
health and wellbeing or to develop your social networks, and tips on using social media safely.
 
Please note: while this is an introduction to social media, it’s expected that students will 
have a basic understanding of using a computer and browsing the internet.

Course length: One workshop

Number of courses available: Three

Number of places available per course: 16

Dates and times: 

Course 1

Friday 27 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Friday 17 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 3

Tuesday 14 March 2017 6.00pm to 8.00pm Stockport campus

Document Pack Page 155



22

This Is My Moment
Come and learn how to be aware of your feelings, acknowledge and accept your thoughts and 
gain an understanding of how to use your senses to allow yourself to be in the moment and 
appreciate your life. 

Course length: One workshop

Number of workshops available: Three

Number of places available per workshop: 16

Course 1

Friday 27 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Stockport campus

Course 2

Wednesday 15 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Course 3

Monday 27 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Document Pack Page 156



23

Writing Our Stories
Co-produced with Richmond Fellowship (*)

Are you interested in unlocking the creative potential of storytelling? This course will look at 
storytelling as a form of escapism – looking at things in a different way and reflecting on your own 
experiences.
 
The session will involve reading stories (fictional or real life) and talking about them. We will look 
at simple techniques that have shaped these stories. Following this, there will be activities that will 
ease you in to the art of writing and there will be a chance to share your writing with others, if you 
wish.

Course length: Eight sessions 

Number of courses available: One 

Number of places available: 16 

Dates and times: 

Session 1 Wednesday 11 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Wednesday 18 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Wednesday 25 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Wednesday 1 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Wednesday 8 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 6 Wednesday 15 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 7 Wednesday 22 February 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 8 Wednesday 1 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

(*) To find out more about the mental health charity Richmond Fellowship visit www.richmondfellowship.org.uk. 

Document Pack Page 157



24

This course aims to increase your awareness about the difference between healthy and unhealthy 
relationships. You will be encouraged to explore your own social circle and consider the 
influences within it, while also reviewing your personal boundaries. 
 
You will be introduced to some skills to support you to develop healthy relationships, and receive 
information about where you can gain additional support.

Course length: Four sessions 

Number of workshops available: Two 

Number of places available per workshop: 16 

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Tuesday 10 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Tuesday 17 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Tuesday 24 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Tuesday 31 January 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Friday 3 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 2 Friday 10 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 3 Friday 17 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Session 4 Friday 24 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Stockport campus

Healthy Relationships *NEW*

Document Pack Page 158



25

This course aims to help you explore how you can prepare for change and deal with stressful 
situations.

Course length: Four sessions 

Number of workshops available: One 

Number of places available per workshop: 16 

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Tuesday 7 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Tuesday 14 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Tuesday 21 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Tuesday 28 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Coping with change *NEW*

This course will help you to develop basic budgeting skills, including prioritising and planning 
spending. 

You will receive tips on building up savings, understanding where your main outgoings are, 
how to successfully manage money and how the state of your finances links to your health and 
wellbeing.

Course length: Two sessions 

Number of workshops available: Two 

Number of places available per workshop: 16 

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Wednesday 18 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Wednesday 25 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Thursday 16 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Thursday 23 March 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Make It Count *NEW*

Document Pack Page 159



26

This course aims to help you recognise your skills and how you can make the most of these to 
reach your full potential and move forward with your life. 

You will learn how to write a CV, complete application forms, search for jobs and learn basic 
interview techniques.

Course length: Four sessions 

Number of workshops available: Two 

Number of places available per workshop: 16 

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Monday 23 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Monday 30 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Monday 6 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Monday 13 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Tuesday 14 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Tuesday 21 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Tuesday 28 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Tuesday 4 April 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Preparing For Your Future *NEW*

Document Pack Page 160



27

This course is for anyone wishing to live a healthier lifestyle and make better choices about the 
food they eat and their level of activity.

It will help you to develop your understanding about how you can improve and maintain good 
health and wellbeing. 

Course length: Five sessions 

Number of workshops available: Two 

Number of places available per workshop: 16 

Dates and times:

Course 1

Session 1 Thursday 12 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Thursday 19 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Thursday 26 January 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Thursday 2 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Thursday 9 February 2017 10.00am to 12.00pm Oldham campus

Course 2

Session 1 Wednesday 8 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 2 Wednesday 15 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 3 Wednesday 22 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 4 Wednesday 29 March 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

Session 5 Wednesday 5 April 2017 1.00pm to 3.00pm Oldham campus

(*) To find out more about Oldham Lifelong Learning Service visit www.oldham.gov.uk/lifelong

Eat Well Be Active *NEW*
Co-produced with Oldham Lifelong Learning Service (*)

Document Pack Page 161



28

hwcollege.penninecare@nhs.net
www.mhmc.penninecare.nhs.uk/HWCollege 

@PennineCareNHS

0161 716 2666

Health and Wellbeing College

Find out more:

Date of publication: November 2016 | Reference: 4846 | © Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust

Patient Advice and Liaison Service
The Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) acts on behalf of service users, families and 
carers to negotiate prompt solutions and help bring about changes in the way that services 
are developed. As well as providing a confidential advice and support service, PALS will help 
guide you through the different services available from the NHS.  
Tel: 0161 716 3178

Comments and complaints
We want to learn from comments and complaints about our services. If you have any, 
please speak with a member of staff. Every effort will be made to resolve any concerns and 
complaining will not cause any difficulties in your care with us. You can also contact the Trust’s 
Complaints Department via post at Trust Headquarters, 225 Old Street, Ashton-under-Lyne, 
OL6 7SR.  
Tel: 0161 716 3083  
Email: complaints.penninecare@nhs.net

Become a member of our Trust
You can be the voice of your community by electing or becoming a governor, find out more 
about your local mental health and community services, and receive updates, comment on our 
plans and get invitations to health events.  
Tel: 0161 716 3960  
Email: ftmembership.penninecare@nhs.net

Alternative formats
If you need help to understand this information, require it in another format such as large print, 
spoken (on CD) or Braille, or require it in a different language, speak to a member of staff.

Document Pack Page 162



Page | 1

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Healthwatch Bury Update 

Date 9th March 2017

Contact Officer Joanne Horrocks

HWB Lead in this 
area

Barbara Barlow

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Information
x

Discussion Decision

Why is this report being brought to the 
Board?

To update Board Members on the following 
recent activity at Healthwatch Bury:
 The 360 degree review & response
 Appointment of the new Chief Officer
 Governance review
 New office site
 Website development

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy priorities the 
report relates to. (See attached Strategy)

Refreshed Health 
and Wellbeing Board Strategy (Branded Version).pdf

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment priorities the 
report relates to. (See attached JSNA)

Bury JSNA - Final for 
HWBB 3.pdf

Key Actions for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board to address – what action is needed 
from the Board and its members? Please 
state recommendations for action.

The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked 
to comment and note the actions outlined in 
the report.

What requirement is there for internal or 
external communication around this area?
Assurance and tracking process – Has the 
report been considered at any other 
committee meeting of the Council/meeting of 
the CCG Board/other stakeholders....please 
provide details.

Document Pack Page 163 Agenda Item 11



Page | 2

2. Introduction / Background

The purpose of this report is to update HWB on the following recent activity at Healthwatch 

Bury:

 The 360 degree review
 Appointment of the new Chief Officer
 New office
 Website update

3. key issues for the Board to Consider

In October 2016 Healthwatch Bury undertook a 360 survey inviting their stakeholders to 

express their view on Healthwatch Bury.  Twenty three stakeholders from across health and 

social care responded to the survey.

The key messages were:

 Strategic context and relationships
The vast majority of stakeholders understood the rationale behind Healthwatch Bury’s 

priorities and most also felt they were collaborative, added value and contributed to local 

decision making.  There were a small number though who were less sure about 

Healthwatch Bury’s involvement in local decision making.

 Community, voice and influence
Broadly speaking, stakeholders agreed Healthwatch Bury bases it’s insight on the views 

of local people, adds value by doing so and is an organisation that they could confidently 

promote.  While the majority of stakeholders felt that Healthwatch Bury involved local 

people some felt that Healthwatch Bury could do more to work with seldom heard groups 

and local groups.  Stakeholders acknowledged capacity issues within Healthwatch Bury.   

 Making a different locally
The overall picture indicated that stakeholders weren’t always aware of the extent that 

Healthwatch Bury made a difference with their reports.   Stakeholders in the main also 

felt Healthwatch Bury did not involve them in the production of their reports.

 Information and signposting
Stakeholders felt more could be done to develop and promote this side of its service.

This was followed up by a workshop with Healthwatch Bury and eight stakeholders to agree 

the findings and actions based on the survey responses.

Document Pack Page 164



Page | 3

The outcome from the workshop was:

 Strengths

It was felt that Healthwatch Bury has good and largely productive relationships with their 

stakeholders, particularly with the Pennine Acute NHS Trust and Pennine Care 

Foundation Trust including Community Services.   

Involving local people was recognised as a strength of Healthwatch Bury especially:

• Representing the public’s views on key issues and working to base their insight on 

the views of local people

• Attendance at key meetings e.g. Health and Wellbeing Board

• Representing an independent view

• Areas for Improvement

Healthwatch Bury has been without a Chief Officer (CO) and key staff recently and the 

impact this has had on their capacity was recognised, especially with regards to 

reporting findings to key stakeholders to bring about change.  The appointment of a new 

CO was seen as critical and there was general recognition that they need to extend their 

reach and target new relationships with stakeholders at all levels.  

The governance of Healthwatch Bury was discussed as an area that would benefit from 

a review. 

Healthwatch Bury’s work with seldom heard groups and the local voluntary sector was 

discussed as an area for improvement.  The development and promotion of the 

information and signposting activity was also identified as an area to work on.

The key recommendations from the report were:

a) Overall there was agreement that Healthwatch Bury needs to build their 

leadership capacity by appointing a new CO as soon as possible.  Relatedly, 

Bury Council invited Healthwatch Bury to participate in their system 

leadership/manager training programmes.  It was further suggested that 

Healthwatch Bury should look to establish clarity around the roles and 

responsibilities of board members and members of staff.  

b) Healthwatch Bury Board to review, strengthen and agree their governance 

arrangements and publish decision making policies on their website.    

Document Pack Page 165



Page | 4

c) Healthwatch Bury should engage more with local voluntary groups and it was 

suggested that it could do this by getting involved with the voluntary action sub 

group that Bury Council has set up.  In addition it was recommended that they 

extend their reach and target new relationships with key stakeholders at all 

levels.

The Healthwatch Board is pleased the report recognises that we value our independence 

and work hard to gather feedback from the local community, in order to reflect their views on 

key issues.

The Board fully appreciates the need to continue discussions with further ‘seldom heard’ 

groups, especially as our recent contact with the seven groups (96 people – face to face) 

during the ‘conversations’ funded by GMCVO gave valuable insight into their specific 

problems.

Steps are already in place to start to take forward the recommendations from the review in 

particular bullets a) and b):

 New Chief Officer

Joanne Horrocks, joined Healthwatch Bury as Chief Officer on January 30th 2017, after 

a career in local government across Greater Manchester. Having previously held 

management positions in policy, governance, complaint management and 

commissioning, Joanne brings a wealth of experience that will help Healthwatch Bury 

move forward.  One of Joanne’s key tasks will be to address the recommendations from 

the 360 review and to support the Board to develop a strong Healthwatch organisation 

for the people of Bury.

 Governance Review

In line with the recommendation to review, strengthen and agree our governance 

arrangements, Healthwatch Bury has engaged Peter Stone Consulting to undertake the 

review.  The organisation was felt to have the right experience having worked with over 

3000 voluntary and community sector organisations across the country and 

demonstrated a strong understanding of what was needed.  The review is expected to be 

completed shortly and will include Board development training.

Although it has been recognised that the Healthwatch Board requires new Board 

Members it was deemed sensible to defer their recruitment until the after the completion 

of this review so that it can be conducted in line with the new governance arrangements. 

Document Pack Page 166



Page | 5

Healthwatch Bury has also recently moved to new offices in St John’s House, the Rock, a 

central location and an ideal base to enable the organisation to move forward.  The office 

space is shared with partners from CAB and Bury Law Centre.  

To help in the re-energising of Healthwatch Bury, the website has been re-developed and 

will be going live in the spring.  Feedback has been sought from Healthwatch members who 

have responded positively to the new site.  We have also contacted Holy Cross College who 

are collating views from their students.  They have kindly agreed to providing photographs 

taken by the students to use on the web site.

The new web site also includes Browsealoud which will enhance its accessibility through 

easy speech, reading and translation tools.  The site has been designed to be flexible and 

simple to develop alongside the needs of the organisation.

4. Recommendations for action

The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to comment and note the actions outlined in the 
report.

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please seek advice from the Council Monitoring Officer Jayne 
Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 151 Officer Steve Kenyon 
(S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

N/A

6. Equality/Diversity Implications. Please attach the completed Equality and 
Analysis Form. 

No implications

Document Pack Page 167

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


Page | 6

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer:       Joanne Horrocks

Telephone number: 0161 253 6300

 E-mail address:     joanne.horrocks@healthwatchbury.co.uk 

 Date: 17th February 2017

Document Pack Page 168



Page | 1

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Work plan for the Integrated Health and Social Care 
Partnership Board– Priority 4, Ageing Well of the Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy
Date 09th March 2017

Contact Officer Pat Jones-Greenhalgh

HWB Lead in this 
area

Pat Jones-Greenhalgh

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Information Discussion
X

Decision

Why is this report being brought to the 
Board?

For the Health and Wellbeing board to 
note the content of the progress 
report.

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

priorities the report relates to. (See 
attached Strategy)

Living_well_in_Bury_
Making_it_happen_together_Version_8-4.pdf

Priority 4- Ageing Well

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment priorities 
the report relates to. (See attached 

JSNA)

Bury JSNA - Final for 
HWBB 3.pdf

The report links directly and indirectly 
to the JSNA.

Key Actions for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to address – what 

action is needed from the Board and its 
members? Please state 

recommendations for action.

For the Health and Wellbeing board to 
note the content of the progress 
report.

What requirement is there for internal 
or external communication around this 

area?

N/A

Assurance and tracking process – Has 
the report been considered at any 
other committee meeting of the 

Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please 

provide details.

N/A

Document Pack Page 169 Agenda Item 12



Page | 2

2. Introduction / Background

It has been agreed that the Bury Integrated Health and Social Care Partnership 
Board will own and oversee the successful delivery Priority 4 – Ageing Well.

The Health and Wellbeing Board Terms of Reference state;

“The Board will oversee and receive reports from a set of sub groups which will 
focus on the delivery of key targeted areas of work. The sub groups will report 
directly to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Provisions that apply to the HWB 
would also apply to any sub groups of the HWB.” 

In order to ensure effective governance and accountability for delivering priority 
4, it was agreed that:

 The minutes from the Bury Integrated Health and Social Care Partnership 
Board will made available to the Health & Wellbeing Board and will be 
circulated for information on a regular basis.  As the Health & Wellbeing 
Board is a public meeting and therefore all documents are available to the 
public.

 The Terms of Reference for Bury Integrated Health and Social Care 
Partnership Board will include the statement that the boards will:

‘Oversee and monitor progress of Priority 4 of the Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy. Bury Integrated Health and Social Care Partnership Board will 
report directly to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Minutes of the 
meetings of Bury Integrated Health and Social Care Partnership Board will 
be circulated for information to all members of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.’

 A work plan has been created detailing key workstreams to deliver against 
each action of the priority and a set of indicators developed to measure 
progress against the actions. Please see below for the high level info 
graphic produced to cover this priority.

Document Pack Page 170



Page | 3

Document Pack Page 171



Page | 4

Document Pack Page 172



Page | 5

 Exception reports to the Health & Wellbeing Board would be submitted as and 
when required.

No exemption reports have been submitted 

3. Key issues for the Board to Consider

Key issues for the board to consider are:

 The content of the info graphic provided  

4. Recommendations for action

For the Health and Wellbeing board to note the content of the progress report.

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please seek advice from the Council Monitoring Officer Jayne 
Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 151 Officer Steve 
Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

No financial or legal implications.

6. Equality/Diversity Implications. Please attach the completed Equality and 
Analysis Form. 

Please remember that all officers are responsible for ensuring that an appropriate equality analysis is carried 
out on any new or changed policy, procedure or working practice. An equality analysis has been carried out on 
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, but it is likely that individual initiatives will require a more detailed and 
specific equality analysis. Should you have any queries, please contact Helen Smith to discuss.

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer: Chloe McCann      

E-mail address:      

C.McCann@bury.gov.uk 

Date: 09th March 2017

Document Pack Page 173

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk
mailto:C.McCann@bury.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page | 1

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Work plan for the Carbon Reduction and Climate Change 
Board and The Housing Strategy Programme Board– 

Priority 5 of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Date 09th March 2017

Contact Officer Sharon Hanbury, Neil Long and Lorraine Chamberlin 

HWB Lead in this 
area

Pat Jones-Greenhalgh

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Information Discussion
X

Decision

Why is this report being brought to the 
Board?

For the Health and Wellbeing board to 
note the content of the progress 
report.

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

priorities the report relates to. (See 
attached Strategy)

Living_well_in_Bury_
Making_it_happen_together_Version_8-4.pdf

Priority 5- Healthy Places

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment priorities 
the report relates to. (See attached 

JSNA)

Bury JSNA - Final for 
HWBB 3.pdf

The report links directly and indirectly 
to the JSNA.

Key Actions for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to address – what 

action is needed from the Board and its 
members? Please state 

recommendations for action.

For the Health and Wellbeing board to 
note the content of the progress 
report.

What requirement is there for internal 
or external communication around this 

area?

N/A

Assurance and tracking process – Has 
the report been considered at any 
other committee meeting of the 

Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please 

provide details.

N/A

Document Pack Page 175



Page | 2

2. Introduction / Background

It has been agreed that the Carbon Reduction & Climate Change Board and the 
Housing Strategy Programme Board jointly own and oversee the successful 
delivery Priority 5 - Healthy Places.

The Health and Wellbeing Board Terms of Reference state;

“The Board will oversee and receive reports from a set of sub groups which will 
focus on the delivery of key targeted areas of work. The sub groups will report 
directly to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  Provisions that apply to the HWB 
would also apply to any sub groups of the HWB.” 

In order to ensure effective governance and accountability for delivering priority 
5, it was agreed that:

 The minutes from the Carbon Reduction & Climate Change Board and the 
Housing Strategy Programme Board will made available to the Health & 
Wellbeing Board and will be circulated for information on a regular basis. 
 As the Health & Wellbeing Board is a public meeting and therefore all 
documents are available to the public.

 The Terms of Reference for the Carbon Reduction & Climate Change Board  
and the Housing Strategy Programme Board will include the statement 
that the boards will:

‘Oversee and monitor progress of Priority 5 of the Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy. The Carbon Reduction and Climate Change Board and the 
Housing Strategy Programme Board will report directly to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  Minutes of the meetings of the Carbon Reduction and 
Climate Change Board and the Housing Strategy Programme Board will be 
circulated for information to all members of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.’

 A work plan has been created detailing key workstreams to deliver against 
each action of the priority and a set of indicators developed to measure 
progress against the actions. Please see below for the high level info 
graphic produced to cover this priority.

Document Pack Page 176



Document Pack Page 177



Document Pack Page 178



Document Pack Page 179



Document Pack Page 180



 Exception reports to the Health & Wellbeing Board would be submitted as and 
when required.

No exemption reports have been submitted 

3. Key issues for the Board to Consider

Key issues for the board to consider are:

 The content of the info graphic’s provided.

4. Recommendations for action

For the Health and Wellbeing board to note the content of the progress report.

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please seek advice from the Council Monitoring Officer Jayne 
Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 151 Officer Steve 
Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

No financial or legal implications.

6. Equality/Diversity Implications. Please attach the completed Equality and 
Analysis Form. 

Please remember that all officers are responsible for ensuring that an appropriate equality analysis is carried 
out on any new or changed policy, procedure or working practice. An equality analysis has been carried out on 
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, but it is likely that individual initiatives will require a more detailed and 
specific equality analysis. Should you have any queries, please contact Helen Smith to discuss.

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer: Sharon Hanbury, Neil Long & Lorraine Chamberlin      

E-mail address:      

 S.Hanbury@bury.gov.uk

N.Long@bury.gov.uk

L.Chamberlin@bury.gov.uk

Date: 09th March 2017

Document Pack Page 181

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Hanbury@bury.gov.uk
mailto:N.Long@bury.gov.uk
mailto:L.Chamberlin@bury.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page | 1

Bury Health and Wellbeing Board

Title of the Report Update on the “Friends Together” service for older people, 
currently provided by Age UK Bury.

Date 21/02/2017

Contact Officer Richard Ward 

HWB Lead in this 
area

Pat Jones-Greenhalgh

1. Executive Summary

Is this report for? Informati
on
√

Discussi
on

Decisio
n

Why is this report being brought to the Board? To update the board on some 
recent changes to an older 
people’s service which were 

implemented in order to 
increase effectiveness 

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy priorities the report 

relates to. (See attached Strategy)
www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeing

board

Priority 4 (ageing well). 

Please detail which, if any, of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment priorities the report relates 

to. (See attached JSNA)
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/ho

me.page
Key Actions for the Health and Wellbeing Board 

to address – what action is needed from the 
Board and its members? Please state 

recommendations for action.

None at present. The service 
was extended for 12 months 

April 2017-March 2018. 
During this period the service 

will undergo the same 
contract monitoring as other 

similar services. 
What requirement is there for internal or 
external communication around this area?

None at present. 

Assurance and tracking process – Has the report 
been considered at any other committee 

meeting of the Council/meeting of the CCG 
Board/other stakeholders....please provide 

details.

A service review carried out 
and presented to the 

Commissioning Operations 
Group. The decision was 

made to extend the service 
with minor changes to 

improve service performance 
and outcomes.

Document Pack Page 183 Agenda Item 16

http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://www.theburydirectory.co.uk/healthandwellbeingboard
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page
http://jsna.theburydirectory.co.uk/kb5/bury/jsna/home.page


Page | 2

2. Introduction / Background

This service has been in place since 2000. It started as a day care service, 
though it now provides a low level, early intervention service aimed at tackling 
social isolation in Older People (over 65s) who are at the early stages of 
developing social care needs. 

3. key issues for the Board to Consider

The service has been extended for 12 months from April 2017 to March 2018. 
During this time, the majority of the service will be running as in previous years. 
Most importantly, Bury Council has agreed with the provider to merge two 
existing days which have a low attendance and set up a new centre in Radcliffe. 

The centre in Radcliffe will differ in that it will require the provider to recruit local 
volunteers and offer consultation with customers to ensure the service offers 
what local people state that they want from the service. The service being run in 
co-production with local older people is a positive step forwards. 

During the next twelve month period, commissioners from Bury Council will 
continue to robustly monitor service performance and outcomes, and will use the 
information gathered to help inform future commissioning decisions.

4. Recommendations for action

None. This report is for information/update only. 

5. Financial and legal implications (if any)
If necessary please seek advice from the Council Monitoring 
Officer Jayne Hammond (J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk) or Section 
151 Officer Steve Kenyon (S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk ).

None. 

6. Equality/Diversity Implications. Please attach the completed 
Equality and Analysis Form if required. 

None needed. 

CONTACT DETAILS: 

Contact Officer: Richard Ward      

Telephone number: 0161 253 6008

 E-mail address:    R.Ward@bury.gov.uk   

 Date: 21/02/2017

Document Pack Page 184

mailto:J.M.Hammond@bury.gov.uk
mailto:S.Kenyon@bury.gov.uk


ttp://self-compassion.org/

Bury Children’s Trust
Minutes of the Trust Board meeting held on 10 November 2016

Attendance:
Mark Carriline Executive Director Children, Young People & Culture (Chair)
Cllr Eammon O’Brien Deputy Cabinet Member Children & Families
Lesley Jones Director of Public Health, Council Communities & Wellbeing
Ann Noi Strategy Planning & Development Lead, Council Communities 

& Wellbeing
CI Jo Marshall-Bell Greater Manchester Police, Bury Division
Maria Worthington Business Manager Neighbourhoods, Six-Town Housing
Klare Rufo Assistant Director Learning & Culture, CYP & Culture
Catherine Tickle Commissioning Programme Manager, Bury CCG
Dr Bin Low Consultant Paediatrician, Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust
Maxine Lomax Head of Safeguarding/Designated Nurse Child Protection 

Bury CCG
Jackie Gower Assistant Director Social Care, CYP & Culture
Kim Marshall Operational Manager, Bury Healthy Young Minds, PCFT
Dr Louise Holly Lead Consultant Psychiatrist, Bury Healthy Young Minds, 

PCFT
Tim Marsh Fairbridge Programme Manager – N Manchester, Princes 

Trust, for Bury CYP & Families 3rd Sector Forum
Kathryn Krinks Interim Divisional Director Paediatrics, PAHT
Heather Walton Youth Participation Officer, Council CYP & Culture
Lindsay Dennis Children’s Trust Development Officer, Council CYP & Culture
Karen Young Council Communities & Wellbeing, attending for item 3.5

1. Introductions and Apologies (M Carriline)
MC welcomed everyone to the meeting.  Apologies were received from Charlie 
Deane (Bury College), Helen Chadwick (BAPH), Tom Gledhill (BASH) and Anne Gent 
(DWP).  Ann Noi attended on behalf of Tracy Minshull; and Tim Marsh attended in 
place of Vicky Maloney for the CYP & Families 3rd sector Forum.

2. June Minutes, Actions and Matters Arising
June Minutes were approved.
  
In addition to information provided in the Summary of Actions or included as 
agenda items, the following points were raised 

2.1 Actions: Item 1 and 2:  Commissioning Principles and Workforce 
Strategy
The next meeting will include partners’ feedback on implementation of the 
Commissioning Principles, Workforce Strategy and Participation Strategy in their 
agencies.

                          Action:  LD/Board members

1

Document Pack Page 185 Agenda Item 17



2.2 Actions:  Item 4 Ofsted Report – Care Leavers (M Worthington)
(Paper provided) 
MW confirmed she has worked with David Lamb to develop a Protocol to improve 
information sharing, so that Care Leavers in STH can be supported to sustain their 
tenancies.   In addition MC advised that an Accommodation Sufficiency Review 
paper will be taken to Council Snr Leadership Team on 14 November with regard to 
improving support for Care Leavers.  

2.3 Actions:  Item 9 CYP Forum (TM)
In June, VM fed back that in response to concerns raised by the 3rd sector, 
Communities & Wellbeing had agreed to hold a 3rd sector development workshop.  
TM advised that this took place in October and a small working group has since met 
to develop the findings from the event, including re funding for infrastructure 
support (£30k from Council).  CYP Forum has asked that they be sent a copy of  the 
working group minutes.  MC suggested that the Trust Board would also like to 
receive the Minutes.

Action:  LD to speak to Heather Crozier

3. Key Strategic Issues
3.1 Schools Landscape (KR) paper provided
KR presented a model of system leadership that she is developing with schools in 
Bury.  This will transform the way that schools work together into formal alliances 
which will share ownership of the outcomes of all schools in the group, sharing data, 
good practice and potentially resources to drive improvement for all children and 
young people (ie, inclusive agenda).  It aims to reduce reliance on diminishing 
Council services and build resilience from within the schools structure.  The 
governance structure for the model has an overarching Strategic Priorities Board 
which KR proposed will report to the Safeguarding Board and Children’s Trust 
Board.  The Strategic Priorities Board will be chaired by Mark Carriline and 
established before Christmas.  The school groupings are not yet decided, but will 
need to ensure that across the borough there is an inclusive approach to improving 
educational outcomes for all children and young people.  

In response to questions from the Board, KR advised that she is attending the Bury 
Governors Association on 17 November; and that Academies will be included in the 
groupings to ensure that all schools and academies work together.   The voice of 
pupils and parents is an important element, and it was noted that Circles can feed 
into this.  KR added that the System Leadership model provides an opportunity to 
test and develop improvements, eg, looking at how early help/prevention and 
intervention can be strengthened working through the groups.

3.2 GM Devolution (MC)
MC advised that with regard to the Children’s Services Review across 7 themes, a 
DfE response to the business cases that were submitted in April is still awaited.  
These make the case for £30m over 3 years to be devolved for services across 10 
local authorities.  The next set of funding announcements will be in the Autumn 
Statement due on 23 November.

With regard to GM Health & Social Care, LJ updated that the GM Population Health 
Plan has been drafted.  This includes proposals to improve data sharing through the 

2

Document Pack Page 186



GM-Connect data and information programme and address barriers such as 
information governance and different systems.  It is proposed to test this through 
the implementation of the Early Years delivery model, where data sharing has been 
a barrier to progress, and Bury could potentially be a test area.  

Action:  LJ will send draft paper for CT Board and CT Ops Group

3.3 Local Care Organisations (LCOs) and One Commissioning 
Organisations (OCOs) (ML)  Papers provided
ML and LJ outlined that as part of Integration of Health & Social Care (and as part of 
GM Devolution) all localities have to develop a Locality Plan to meet needs and 
improve health outcomes in all localities.  They are also encouraged to develop 
Local Care Organisations to bring providers together to ensure that care provision is 
integrated.  The LCO’s can be based around different issues, eg, ‘safety out of 
hospital’ which brings providers together to support safe and timely hospital 
discharges. Locally the LCO has the following PAHT, PCFT, GP Federation, BARDOC 
and Adults Social Care.

The Integration of Health & Social Care includes the development of a One 
Commissioning Organisation, ie an alliance of health and social care 
commissioners.  The OCO is responsible for developing a health and social care 
system which will integrate commissioning and service delivery, aligned to the 
Locality Plan.

3.4 Locality Working (KY and JM-B)
KY explained that locality (or neighbourhood) working is the delivery arm of the 
Local Care Organisations.  KY’s role has been in developing locality hubs in order to 
enable place-based integration of services.  The trail-blazer areas have been Bury 
East and Radcliffe. 

Bury East hub, which opened in Castle Buildings on 19 September holds regular 
zone meetings where agencies come together to improve outcomes against 
priorities (domestic violence and crime) and to work together on individual cases, 
sharing information and resolving problems.  KY gave examples of progress through 
the hubs (eg work with rough sleepers), and staff have fed back that the zone 
meetings enable problems and referrals which previously took up a lot of time to be 
resolved speedily and satisfactorily.

The Radcliffe hub opened in October and a front-face (for the public) should open in 
the next 2-3 weeks.

There have been community events ‘Love Bury East’ and ‘Love Radcliffe’ to engage 
with residents about the good things about the area where they live and where they 
can work together (with services) to make improvements.

As part of developments, there is a conversational tool to enable a holistic and asset 
based approach when talking to individuals and families.  This will be available 
electronically by December linking to the Bury Directory for  information, advice and 
support. 

3

Document Pack Page 187



In response to a question from the Board, KY advised that the aim is to involve 
volunteers in the hubs. 

3.5 Bury CYP Integrated Commissioning Framework (LJ) paper provided
LJ explained as part of the Integration of Health & Social Care (and GM Devolution), 
work is being undertaken to identify which services would be better commissioned 
through an integrated commissioning framework (with pooled budget).  This will 
have a strong focus on prevention and outcomes.  Work to be complete by the end 
of March 2017 includes mapping of provision, a comprehensive assessment of need 
and development of a Single Outcome Framework.  LJ is working with HW to ensure 
young people’s participation.  The work is being overseen by the Health & Wellbeing 
Board.

3.6 Single Outcomes Framework (LJ)
To evidence impact and making a difference a Team Bury Single Outcomes 
Framework is being developed.   This follows the Outcomes Based Accountability 
Approach (used by Children’s Trust).  The framework is being developed using Team 
Bury priorities and outcomes, identifying performance measures for Early Years, 
Younger People, Working Age and Older People’s life courses, and top tier indicators 
to enable Team Bury to monitor improvements.  Turn the curve discussions will be 
held understand the story behind the data and find ways to make improvements.  
Software has been purchased to support this approach and plot progress.

3.7 Changes to Safeguarding Board (MC)
MC advised that one of the proposals in the Children & Social Care bill currently 
going through Parliament, is that Safeguarding Boards become non-statutory and 
that a new statutory framework be introduced giving local partners the freedom to 
decide how they operate to improve outcomes.  The 3 key partners will be local 
authorities, police and the CCG, who will be required to make and publish a local 
safeguarding plan.  MC stressed the importance of Bury Safeguarding Board not 
losing its current range of partners.  The Safeguarding Board recently held a 
development day (including young people) where the view was Board should keep 
its current structure but look at the way it works and rationalise the number of sub 
groups; also to look at what can be done at GM level.

ML added that the bill enables areas to work together in clusters, but still requires 
independent oversight (ie, independent Chair).  ML also noted that an amendment 
to the Bill is being sought so that all agencies are responsible for corporate 
parenting.

4. Youth Cabinet and Circles (HW) 
HW advised that Friday 18 November is take-over day, when young people take 
over public services for the day.  This year young people are looking at how they 
would spend the money if they held the Council’s purse strings.  They are also 
‘taking over’ the IRO (Independent Reviewing Officers) Service.

A comprehensive Circles report has been sent to Board members and the report will 
go to the Local Transformation Plan/Children’s Trust Operational sub group and HW 
also wishes to take it to BASH.  Some examples of work that responds to what 
young people said (in the You Said , We Did section of the report), is that a young 

4

Document Pack Page 188



people’s advisory group will help to ensure that the Bury Directory is young people 
friendly, and that an e-safety day for pupils (and separately for teachers) is being 
planned.

With regard to the issues around public transport, it was noted that this is a regular 
theme where it is hard to make progress.  EM recommended that the information be 
passed to Cllr Jamie Walker and Cllr Noel Bailey and to ask Cllr Walker to assist in 
flagging up these issues to the new Mayor of Manchester, with a view to a possible 
travel conference. 

Actions:  Circles of Influence report to BASH (HW/MC)
CofI report to CT Ops/LTP Stg Gp (HW/LD)

CofI transport issues to Cllrs walker and Bailey (HW/EM)

5. Children & Young People’s Plan – updates
5.1 Alcohol & Substance Workshop (LD) papers provided
LD explained that the August CT Ops Group was held as a Turn the Curve workshop 
to look at how to make progress against Priority 3, and coming up with good ideas 
to make improvements.  A small working group is taking forward the ideas, and 
reporting into Children’s Trust Operational Group.  

The main proposal is to run a second Turn the Curve workshop for schools, police, 
etc.  This will be aligned to Bury East hub (and involve primary and secondary 
schools in Bury East) early in 2017.  Examples of other ideas being taken forward is 
that Trading Standards  are reinforcing the message about the law around proxy 
sales; work through Purple Flag to increase vigilance re the age of young people 
purchasing alcohol; and to produce a short film involving children/young people 
(possibly via Holding Families).  A strong theme for the second workshop is how to 
involve young people in addressing the issue.   

There was some discussion, and LJ noted that difficulties in addressing national 
issues around minimum price and making the 9.30pm watershed for advertising 
earlier.  She suggested that this could be something that young people and adults 
could lobby government to address.

5.2 Emotional Health & Wellbeing (CT) papers provided
In addition to information in the report, CT advised that Michael Hargreaves has 
been appointed as Project Manager, taking over the LTP work from Pauline Roberts.  
A major area of work is to refresh the Local Transformation Plan.  A GM approach 
was taken to the refresh due by 31 October, with a GM wide document 
incorporating information from each CCG area.  However a full local Refresh has to 
be complete by 31 March 2017, clearly setting out where we are now, where we 
need to get to and how we will evidence we are making a difference and including 
baseline data, workforce and finance projections.   MH is setting up a task & finish 
group to work on this, which will report into LTP Steering/CT Ops Group. 

CT was asked how it will be decided what is done locally and what at GM level and 
how will this affect funding.  CT attends a GM CCG group and explained that this is 
being looked at there and that some of the funding will be used to pump-prime 
activity. Governance arrangements are also being clarified.

5

Document Pack Page 189



5.3 Network activity to meet Priorities (LD)
LD advised to improve communications, she has introduced Children’s Trust weekly 
e-mails which summarise information that has come through, relevant to all 
organizations working with children and young people. This was partly in response 
to the gap left by B3SDA, who used to send out a weekly information news-sheet to 
all 3rd sector organisations but the CT weekly e-mail is only for cyp information.  It 
has been received well, especially by 3rd sector organisations. 

LD provided a breakdown of attendances at lunchtime learning sessions over the 
past 12 months, amounting to more than 500 people from a wide range of 
organisations.  Sessions are generally very well attended, and repeated where they 
over-subscribed. LD gave a breakdown of the numbers attending from CT partner 
agencies.  With regard to low police attendance, JM provided LD with a named 
contact to help increase engagement.   An early morning session will be trialled in 
January (a repeat of the Self Harm session) in response to a suggestion by schools.  

6. Ofsted Action Plan (JG)
JG advised that Ofsted are coming in January/February 2017 to monitor progress 
against the Osted Action Plan.  There has been some good progress, and plans for a 
Through Care Team which will improve transition support have been approved.  As 
part of this work, young people from age 14 will have the same worker – this could 
be up to the age of 25.

Progress around Leaving Care includes the development of an Independent Zone at 
the new Kershaw Centre to support young people to gain the skills they need.  Lack 
of suitable accommodation continues to be an issue where more work needs to be 
done.

Post Meeting note:  Anne Gent e-mailed good news that that the Care Leavers 
Protocol Agreement between Jobcentre Plus and Bury Children’s Social Care/Bury 
Extra Mile is now in place.  This document should confirm the close working 
partnership and ensure the Care Leavers receive a joined-up, wrap around service.
 
7. Open Forum and Any Other business
7.1 Bury Commission of Life Chances (MC)
MC noted that the Commission was set up in September, chaired by Phil Collins, 
Times columnist and former Bury man.  The Commission aims to ensure that 
schools, colleges and companies work together so that young people can maximize 
their potential and employment opportunities.  A number of open sessions have 
been arranged, and currently in talks about how to involve young people.  A report 
on progress is due in February.  Further information is included in CT weekly e-mail 
sent out 10.11.16.

7.2 Any other issues
There were no other issues.

8. Close of meeting
The next meeting will be at 3pm on 2 March, in Room 0.1,3 Knowsley Place.  

6

Document Pack Page 190



1

Please note that on distribution (12/07/2016) this documentation had not been ratified by 
the Independent Chair.

MEETING NOTES SAFEGUARDING ADULTS STRATEGIC BOARD MEETING

HELD ON Tuesday 17January  2017 14:00- 16:00 3 Knowlsey Place, Duke 
Street, Bury

Present: David Hanley (DH) Independent Chair 
Stuart Richardson (SR) Pennine Care
Sharon McCambridge (SM) Six Town Housing
Pat Greenhalgh Jones (PJG) Bury Council 
Dr Cathy Fines (CF) Clinical Commissioning Group
Julie Gonda (JG) Bury Council
Nisha Bakshi (NB) National Offender Management
Tyrone Roberts (TR) Pennine Acute Hospital Trust
Mandy Symes (MS) Facilitator 

Apologies: Maxine Lomax Clinical Commissioning Group
Rick Jackson Greater Manchester Police
Jo Marshall-Bell (JMB) Greater Manchester Police
Chris Sykes Greater Manchester Police

Distribution Board Members and representing PA’s, Jax Effiong- GMFRS

ACTION
1.0 INTRODUCTIONS

DH welcomed members and apologies given as above. Tyrone Roberts 
welcomed as new Board member.

2 Minutes of last meeting and matters arising
Minutes agreed 

3 Main Item update on the strategic plan and work stream areas 

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Making it Happen Group
Update: SM went through circulated update document and reported good 
progress is being made against the action plan. 

In March the Group will be reflecting in more detail on how progress 
against the strategic plan is developing. Report will be brought to the 
April Board. DH underpinned the need to reflect regularly on progress – 
and the need to ensure such reflection is embedded into the Board’s 
forward plan. 

DH also commented that the Board will need to look at capturing how 
the strategic plan is informed by the community and HealthWatch.

SM advised that a communication plan is being worked on – and one of 
the elements is to gain community feedback about the safeguarding 
adults agenda via a survey at community events.

SM

BURY SAFEGUARDING ADULTS 
PARTNERSHIP

Document Pack Page 191



ACTION

2

3.5

3.6

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

DH advised that Board may also want to think about resurrecting the 
Annual Events. 

TR asked to have a list of who was involved in which work streams. MS 
to send. 

Risk register:
SM advised that the risk register draft had been put together via a 
working group. 

Discussion around how names had been allocated to risk. No changes 
made. 

SM advised that this was intended to be a dynamic document which 
would be monitored by the Making It Happen Group. 

Discussion around how risks were to be included, how to add or take 
risks off the document. Board agreed the following:

 The Making it Happen Group would monitor and track all risks. 
 Only risks with a score of 12 or over would be brought to each 

Board. 
 The Making it Happen Group may identify potential risks – 

however these would come as a recommendation to the Board 
before being added onto the risk register. 

 The risk register will become a standing agenda item. 
 Any recommended changes or amends will be brought on an 

exceptions basis. 
 Date risk added to the risk register to be added to the document. 

New Policy and Procedures
SR formally presented the new Policy and Procedures document and 
advised that the document had been through a multi agency working 
group. Public Health are working with MS also now to produce guidance 
around safeguarding and pressure ulcers – an issue which has previously 
caused confusion for practitioners. This will, with Board approval, when 
complete be added to the guidance section of the document. 

Board acknowledged the document and agreed to implement. No 
changes made.

Agreed that document will go onto the Bury Directory Board Webpage 
which is being developed by the Making It Happen Group. This will 
ensure that practitioners/customer will have access to the most up to 
date version. 

Web link to the new document will be sent out by MS to all Board 
members as soon as it is available. Board member organisations will 
then use this link to signpost customers/patients/staff. 

Discussed implementation. All Board members to report back to April’s 
Board with regard to how implementation is progressing within their own 
organisations. 

MS

SM to 
oversee

Document Pack Page 192



ACTION

3

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

SM advised that the Making It Happen Group will also be looking at a 
cross-organisational implementation plan. 

DH advised the importance of ensuring that not just practitioners are 
aware of the changes, but that this is taken to the most senior officers 
within each organisation. 

 CF advised that she would take to CCG Governing Body. 

 PJG advised she would arrange to take the Team Bury meetings 
and the Health and Wellbeing Board.

 JG advised she would take to the 3rd sector meeting.

MS to check that local authority contractual clauses ensure that 
providers have signed up to ensuring they abide by current local adult 
safeguarding policies and procedures. 

NB advised that the CRC need to also be made aware of this. Noted – 
MS to ensure the CRC Board member is aware.

SM advised that the Making It Happen Group has also put together a 
complex case management protocol. Which will be used to manage the 
situation around adults with capacity who are putting themselves and 
others at risk by their behaviour and where front line practitioner 
intervention has failed or is failing. The plan is to work this model into 
practice using the locality hubs as a starting point. 
The protocol will be tested using a case. Reports will be brought back to 
the Board. 

Board agreed that this was a positive piece of work. 

Benchmarking – JG advised that the performance report format has been 
agreed and will come to Board twice a year. 
The North West performance group are more or less ready to produce a  
benchmarking report which will come to Board and will be overseen and 
monitored by the Making It Happen Group. 

Self Assessment/ Assurance tool – MS presented on behalf of JMB. Full 
report as below: 

Brief outline given. The assessment was conducted by 2 practitioners, 1 
from Six Town and 1 from Bury Council. Over all experience was very 
positive and encouraging. There are some actions which have come out 
of the report – of which the Making It Happen Group will progress. 

SM advised that the next assessment would be undertaken by Six Town 
Housing. The Making It Happen Group members will train to deliver the 
assessments so that we have some consistence and capacity around 

CF

PJG

JG

MS

MS

SM

SM

Document Pack Page 193



ACTION

4

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

3.38

continuing with the assessments. 

DH encouraged all Board members to take part in the assessment as it 
allows testing of existing processes/procedures and how they are 
implemented. 

NB advised that she would like NOMS to take part approximately 6-9 
months post implementation of the new Policy and Procedures. 

SM noted that where organisations such as Six Town Housing do not 
have specific inspection regimes which concentrate on safeguarding – 
this would prove to be a beneficial process. 

Original assurance tool used for the self assessment as below. 

Communication Strategy – update given as part of Making It Happen 
Group section.

Case Review Group – CF advised that there is now and agreed terms of 
reference. 

1 learning review is underway however there have been some issues in 
it’s completion. MS advised that she had spoken to the lead reviewer this 
morning, issues have been resolved the report should be imminent. 
However, agree that learning re: process is needed – to be discussed by 
the Case Review Group. 

Scoping meeting has been held for a potential Safeguarding Adults 
Review, recommendations have been forwarded to DH for final decision. 

Discussion held with regard to adult learning reviews and the right to 
request information from organisations where a formal SAR is not 
instigated. MS advised that clear legislation is in place for information 
supply and SAR’s (Care Act) and where and adult consents information 
can be shared. However, queries arise when consent is not given - 
however it is still felt that a learning review is needed – it is thought this 
can still be taken forward using alternative legislation ie. Crime and 
Disorder Act, Data Protection, common law etc. However, MS is seeking 
definitive advice from legal services and will report back to the Case 
Review Group. 

NB

MS

4 Police and Crime Commissioner Funding for Safeguarding Adults Board
4.1

4.2

DH advised that a meeting of the independent Chairs is due in the next 
week, where discussion will be held about a way forward. 

Currently the proposal is that £15k will be given to the Board however 
there are conditions on the money which would take away some 
autonomy of local Boards. The independent Chairs on the whole do not 
agree with the conditions. The proposal however is that the money does 

Document Pack Page 194



ACTION

5

not come over until 2017-2018. DH will update. DH

5 Chair’s Report
5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

This is David’s last meeting as Board Chair. 

David advised that there have been a lot of changes over the last few 
years. The Board is much smaller than it was previously which David 
feels has been of benefit as it has focussed effort. David acknowledged 
that a lot of the progress has been made due to the individuals involved 
in the Board – their willingness to work together has ensured positive 
development. David encouraged the Board to reflect on this and how to 
build on these positive developments in a resource scarce environment. 

However there are still some issues that haven’t yet been addressed 
such as 3rd sector and user representation and the Board’s response to 
tackling issues such as human trafficking and FGM – however caution 
advised re: extending the Board to a point where there it becomes 
unfocussed. 

David asked the Board to continue to promote positive challenge.

David also asked the Board to consider who they should be accountable 
to as currently there is no accountability framework and, this can be 
seen as a weakness as there is no overall lens on Board performance. 
However, it is important that which ever body is approached that they 
have a statutory role. 

On behalf of the Board SR thanked David for his contributions over the 
last few years and wished him well in his future endeavours. 
Next Meeting dates

Please note new meeting dates below:
All meetings will be held from 2pm to 4pm.

18th April 2017 – Bury Town Hall Lancashire Fusiliers
11th July 2017 – Bury Town Hall, Irwell Room 
10th October 2017 – Bury Town Hall, Meeting Room A
16th January 2018 – Bury Town Hall, Meeting Room A

Document Pack Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



          

BURY INTEGRATED HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP BOARD

MINUTES

Thursday 26 January 2017
9.30am – 11.30am

Meeting Room A, Bury Town Hall

Present:

Minutes:

Pat Jones-Greenhalgh - Chair (PJG, David Boulger (DB), Julie Gonda (JG), Lesley Jones (LJo), Fiona 
Meadowcroft (FM), Margaret O’Dwyer (MO’D), Steve Taylor (ST), Keith Walker (KWa), Karen Whitehead 
(KWh)

Gillian Cohen (GC)

Apologies: Debra Lyon

Item Agenda Item Discussion Action 
Agreed By 
Whom

By When

1 Welcome & 
Apologies

PJG welcomed everyone to the meeting; apologies were received from Debra 
Lyon.

2 Minutes and Matters The minutes of the meeting held on the 24th November 2016 were approved as 

1

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 197



          

Arising from 
previous meeting - 
24th November 2016

an accurate record.

3 Action Log – 24th 
November 2016

All items completed; action log updated and attached.

4 ITEMS FOR DECISION / DISCUSSION

4.1 Locality Plan Update GM TRANSORMATION FUND UPDATE - DAVID BOULGER

DB shared a report in relation to the refresh of the Bury Locality Plan and the 
development of an Investment Proposal for GM Transformation Funding.

It has been confirmed by the GM Health & Social Care Partnership Team that 
Bury have provisionally been awarded £995,271 in Development Funding.  
This is subject to the signing of a formal Investment Agreement.  Funding will 
be held by Bury CCG and will form part of the Return of Investment calculation 
within our final Transformation Funding submission.

PWC workshop sessions are currently ongoing.  Meeting on Monday 30th 
January with PWC around the financials of the plan in terms of ensuring they 
are at right starting point.  Some concerns were raised around the reporting of 
figures and how they are reported.  Hopeful that the financial position will be 
signed off w/c 30th January 2017. 

ACTION 1: DB reported that PWC have tried to get a meeting with Primary Steve Taylor ASAP

2

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 198



          

Acute, but so far have been unsuccessful.  ST to chase up finance at Pennine 
Acute to meet with PWC..

Lots of investment in time and energy to meet very tight timescales; this must 
be a priority for all over the next 4 weeks. It is planned to progress with the 
following timelines:

 Locality Plan Refresh by 28th February 2017 
 Completion of Transformation Propositions by 28th February 2017 
 Demand & Finance Modelling by 9th March 2017 
 Cost Benefit Analysis by 23rd March 2017 
 Sign Off and Governance by 30th March 2017 
 Submission for GM Transformation Funding by 31st March 2017

KWa advised that he had been sent the NE Sector Transformation Fund for 
comments.  Primary Care have not been involved in the development.  Is their 
a linkage with our Locality Plan and the fund of the North West Sector 
Transformation Fund and the PMO.   DB stated that this is not as joined up as 
it could be.  Need to ensure it is all dovetailed with the Clinical Care 
Transformation proposals, which have not been shared by everyone.  

ACTION 2:  KWa to send this document out for comments.

ACTION 3:  PJG to email Katie Calvin 

KWa asked that key pieces of Mental Health transformation are present within 
the Locality Plan.  There are linkages in the GM Programme for Mental Health.  
It is important that this is developed as an all age approach.

ACTION 4:  At the next Joint Commissioning Group meeting, to look at how the 

Keith Walker

Pat Jones-
Greenhalgh

David 

ASAP

ASAP

21/02/17

3

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 199



          

Integrated Neighbourhood Approaches, system-wide access and navigation, 
system-wide 'Home First' model, system-wide Self Care, Integrated Children & 
Young People system, preventing LTCs.  Need to look at how this all hangs 
together as a system.  See what this means and is it right for Bury.

FM said that there is lots of anxiety with GP's around where this all sits in the 
system.  There is a workshop on the 30th January 2017, where perhaps some 
anxieties will be relayed.  

ACTION 5:  Gill to send out DB's report to the Board 

C&YP COMMISSIONING PROJECT UPDATE - LESLEY JONES 

LJo updated the Board on the development of Bury's Children & Young 
People's Integrated Health & Wellbeing Service.  Services have been mapped. 
Advice and guidance has been sought by respective legal and procurement 
departments within both Bury Council and Bury CCG.  The first draft of the 
HNA is due to be completed by the end of January 2017.  

The 0-4 year old (Early Years) Outcomes Framework has been finalised and 
signed off by the Starting Well Partnership Board,  the 5-18 year old (school 
age) and the 19-25 year old Outcome Frameworks are being development and 
governance arrangements considered.  

A full engagement plan is currently in process, involving a survey and a series 
of workshops.  Feedback from the survey and the workshops will be 
considered and used to inform the HNA, the service model design and the bid 
for Transformation monies.

Boulger

Gill Cohen ASAP

4

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 200



          

The project is currently on track and the final suite of documents will be brought 
through the governance process for approval at the end of March 2017.

4.2 One Commissioning 
Organisation Update 
(Pat Jones-
Greenhalgh) 

PJG shared the Programme Initiation Document (PID) around the One 
Commissioning Organisation, which has been signed off by Mike Owen and 
Stuart North.  Briefings will follow across both organisations to look at who is 
doing what and who will be leading key areas.  

ACTION 6:  KWa was advised that it was okay to share this document with his 
Senior Leadership Team.

 

Keith Walker ASAP

4.3 Locality Care 
Organisation Update 
(Pat Jones-
Greenhalgh)

PJG shared a short report around Bury's Locality Care Organisation (LCO) as 
a Provider Alliance from 1st April 2017.  The LCO has produced formal Terms 
of Reference and an interim Memorandum of Understanding.  An independent 
Chair and a governance structure are still required.  The Board discussed 
'quick wins', with having a 'can do' culture looking at what we can do now and 
then move to the transformational stage.  

MO'D stated that at a Greater Manchester level, they are looking to develop an 
Active Learning network.  There will be expectations that there will be an 
Executive Director level input at the LCO and we need to think who that is 
going to be.

ACTION 7:  DB stated that there is an email that came around regarding this, 
and he will send this email to KWa.

David 
Boulger

ASAP

4.4 Staying Well Update
(Lesley Jones)

LJo updated the Board in relation to the Staying Well Project and asked to 
secure agreement from the Board that the project can now move from its 
development phase to its implementation phase.  This includes sign off of the 
Staying Well service specification, information governance arrangements and 

5

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 201



          

funding.

Considerable discussions have been held about information governance for 
Staying Well across the Locality Authority and the CCG, including Clinical 
Cabinet; all parties are now satisfied with the arrangements.  This includes 
approval by the senior Information Governance Officer  at Bury CCG and Bury 
Council.

LJo advised that Clinical Cabinet approved this in December 2016 and the 
JCG approved it at their 6th December 2016 meeting.

The Board were in agreement to sign this off and for it to move to the 
implementation stage to be developed through the Locality Care Organisation.

ACTION 8:  To bring this back in 3-4 months time to see how it is working in 
line with the neighbourhood working approach.

Lesley 
Jones

April / May 
2017

5 STANDING ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

5.1 Feedback JCG Meeting
No update, January 2017 meeting cancelled.

GM Meetings 
 GM Population Health Plan updated iteration has been produced.

 GM propositions being worked up to bring resources into local areas.

 LJo attended the GM Primary Care Implementation Group on behalf 
of GM DPH.  The programme of work within their action plan is as 

6

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 202



          

follows:
o GM Primary Care Strategy
o Programme of Primary Care Reform – GP resilience programme, 

7 day access, review of 24/7 urgent primary care provision & 
primary care estates

o GM Primary Care Standards
o Commissioning for outcomes
o New models of care – sharing best practice
o Patient engagement

 PJG advised that the Adult Social Care Strategic Plan went to GM 
executives, looking at a standard framework across GM.  Looking at 
building in capacity to drive this forward.

ACTION 9:  PJG to bring the Adult Social Care Strategic Plan to a future 
meeting.

 MO’D will Chair the Population Plan Group; PJG represents DASS at 
this group.

Portfolio Board Update 15.12.16
Notes attached to agenda for information.

Urgent Care Delivery Board (NE Sector)

ACTION 10:  KWa will give feedback from the workshop scheduled for 27th 
January 2017.

Pat Jones-
Greenhalgh

Keith Walker

Feb / March 
2017

23/02/17

7

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 203



          

5.2 AOB MO’D advised that the Primary Care Health & Wellbeing Strategy has been 
signed off in December.

MO’D asked if the Council would like their logo to go on the strategy.

ACTION 11:  PJG will check with SLT and advise MO’D, to ensure it has gone 
through due process.

Pat Jones-
Greenhalgh

ASAP

5.3 Date & Time of Next 
Meeting

23rd February 2017, 10am – 12pm, Committee Room A, Bury Town Hall
.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

8

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 204



Climate Change and Carbon 
Reduction Board Minutes
Date: Tuesday 31st January 2017

Time: 1pm – 2.30pm

Venue: Lancashire Fusiliers Room, First Floor, Town Hall

Present: Lorraine Chamberlin (LC) - Chair
Chris Horth (CH)
Clinton Judge (CJ) 
Chris Wilkinson (CW)

In Attendance:  Alistair Dalzel-Job and Rebecca Chedd  - Business Growth Hub

Minutes: Gill Cohen (GC)

Minutes

1
APOLOGIES 

Paul Cooke, Sharon Hanbury, Alex Holland,  Jason Kelly, Neil Long, Keith Watson, 
Paul Webb

2

MINUTES AND ACTION LOG FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON THE 30th 
NOVEMBER 2016

The minutes were agreed to be a true and accurate record.

MATTERS ARISING 
Steve Kenyon was unable to attend this meeting; arranged for him to attend the July 
meeting to discuss digital working and IT.

3

CARBON REDUCTION PLAN

CH shared the updated version of the Carbon Reduction Plan.

CH has met with Chris Woodhouse (Improvement Advisor, Corporate Policy) to ensure that 
this plan has an OBA (Outcome Based Accountability) thread throughout the themes and 
approaches.     For each category there will be subcategories and for each of these, there 
will be a defined performance measure and shown progress to date.  There will be a live 
action table at the end of the document, which will be kept up to date with live information.

ACTION 1:  CW to have a look and advise CH around what measures can be used 
around Green Space.

1

Document Pack Page 205



CJ advised that the figures for reducing the council’s omissions need to reference if they 
are reduced by buildings being shut down, or how much is actually being reduced by 
council activity.

ACTION 2:  CJ to send CH the data.

Adapting to climate change will need to be added to this plan, along with an indicator.  
Suggestions around ‘reducing the number of people living in flood zone 3’ and ‘how many 
newly developed properties have been lifted out of flood zone 3’.

ACTION 3:  Any further comments on this document to CH.

4

BUILDING PROJECTS

CH met with Steve Kenyon regarding the NDEE scheme and the future of the project.  
Steve advised that due to the uncertainty over the future of buildings, it would be better to 
carry out smaller projects to install measures with quick paybacks, rather than doing a large 
project to install a range of measures in all the buildings at the same time.  

Prices are being sough for LED lighting at Castle Town Hall and in the Bury Market.  There 
is also a draft business case for new add on to voltage optimisation units at the Town Hall, 
Bury Market and Castle Leisure Centre.  They are suggesting a payback of 4 years by 
dropping voltage to a steady 220 volts.

Also looking at software that allows us to control usage very quickly to reduce or increase 
usage – which has a value to the national grid and could provide an income.  

The next stage is to have a more detailed check of onsite voltage and site survey to obtain 
a definite quote.  Aiming to progress these a business case can be presented.  Potential to 
pay using the ELF.

5

 CYCLE BOOM - CYCLE BY PRESCRIPTION SCHEME

CH advised that he has had teleconferences with various interested parties.  The aim of the 
GM wide project would be:

 To make GM a better region to cycle for older people
 To make a bid into a Knowledge Exchange Grant so that we can host a series of 

events to share and develop learning from the cycle boom project for the first 6 
months or so of 2017.

 Focus on supporting activity to develop participation amongst older people and to 
support infrastructure work at GM level.

 Support future research bids at a GM level

Looking at holding events to build partnerships and support and to engage old people and 
give opportunities to try electric bikes.  

For Bury, we intend to develop the Cycling by Prescription project in Radcliffe working with 
the Nationwide Cycling Academy.  CH will start to look into this in more detail in terms of 
how this could work.

2

Document Pack Page 206



Cycle Hubs

Proposed at Knowsley Place and Radcliffe Primary Care Centre.  TfGM will be able to fund 
most of this.  A survey will need to be undertaken at the two buildings to show a need and 
that the scheme will make a difference. 

6

AIR QUALITY STEERING GROUP UPDATE

TfGM are now co-ordinating GM air quality and will be producing the reports with input from 
each of the councils.  Councils are required to have a Steering Group to drive actions of the 
GM Air Quality Action Plan locally and co-ordinate a joined up approach.

It was felt that this group should host the Steering Group as most air quality actions also 
benefit carbon and removes the need to set up a separate group.  

CH pointed out that some actions in the GM Air Quality Action Plan will require us to take 
action. These include – charging for workplace parking, encouraging low emissions vehicle 
take up, and revising the car allowance system to reduce carbon. 

ACTION 4: Membership of this Steering Group will be discussed at the March meeting.
 

7

LOW CARBON HUB ENVIRONMENT LIAISON GROUP MEETING

ACTION 5: LC attended this meeting in January 2017, the minutes of which will be shared 
with the group; together with a link to the New Economy website. 

Main points were presentation on a Low Carbon Deep dive report carried out by New 
Economy in which LA specific information will be made available at a later date, Local Area 
Energy Planning – Catapult have produced a GM Spatial Energy plan – enclosed and an 
update on Low carbon activity around GM.
 

GM Spatial Energy 
Report Summary.pdf

GMCA_Spatial_Energ
y_Plan_FINAL_2016_10_25.pdf

8

HEAT NETWORK UPDATE

CH has received the final version.  He will look at this report and see how we can progress 
with it.
 

9

GREEN GROWTH CARBON REDUCTION EVENTS

Alasdair Dalzel-Job and Rebecca Chedd from the Business Growth Hub attended this 
meeting to highlight the grants available for SMEs.  

They  are planning to deliver an introductory workshop in each of the 10 GM local 
authorities.  Business Growth Hub will lead on organising, promoting and recruiting SMEs 
to register on these workshops. They  are asking the local authorities to support them with 

3

Document Pack Page 207



this, and help them identify suitable SMEs to invite.  

There is no grant linked to the workshops and they will not be raising this point through any 
of the promotion or workshop activities. The limited funding  they do have is not accessible 
via an open call.  However, there is a Carbon Trust grant available that any SME business 
can apply for: www.carbontrust.com/client-services/programmes/green-business-fund/

The introductory workshops will be followed by a number of specialist masterclasses on a 
broad range of subjects. These specialist masterclasses will either be technology focused 
e.g. lighting, HVAC, or general energy management focused e.g. financing your energy 
project, engaging your workforce.  Businesses can attend as many of the masterclass 
workshops as they like.  They will also be looking to support the businesses that have 
attended the events with some 1-2-1 support from our advisors to help the SME develop an 
action plan to save energy.

A brief on these events will be sent out this week to all Local Authorities. 

LC and the group were supportive of the events, however resources within the council is an 
issue.

10

ENERGY PATH

Bury have been chosen to be GM’s pilot for the Energy Path project.  This project is being 
lead by the Energy Systems Catapult, which is a leading technology and innovation centre 
set up to help the UK navigate the likely transformation of our whole energy system and 
capture new commercial opportunities created.

The pilot project will use a modelling tool to show what Bury domestic energy supply and 
usage will look like as the energy supply grid aims for decarbonisation by 2050.  It will show 
what types of heating systems will be more appropriate and where we should target energy 
efficiency retrofit schemes.  It will also look at what the implications will be for the energy 
supply companies in terms of the impact on their distribution network.  

We will end up with a few options for how our domestic energy use and supply could 
develop to 2050, which should be very useful in planning actions in the community.  

There was an initial meeting on the 23rd January with the Energy Systems Catapult and the 
Gas and Electric DNOS to introduce the project and to provide information on what will be 
returned from the council.

11

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETINGS

2017

28th March 
30th May
19th July
20th September
28th November

4

Document Pack Page 208

http://www.carbontrust.com/client-services/programmes/green-business-fund/


5

ACTION LOG 31st JANUARY 2017

No Action Progress

1

CARBON REDUCTION PLAN

CW to have a look and advise CH around what measures can 
be used around Green Space

2

CJ advised that the figures for reducing the council’s omissions 
need to reference if they are reduced by buildings being shut 
down, or how much is actually being reduced by council activity.

CJ to send CH the data.

3 Any further comments on this document to CH.

4

AIR QUALITY STEERING GROUP UPDATE

Membership of this Steering Group will be discussed at the March 
meeting.

On March agenda.

5

LOW CARBON HUB ENVIRONMENT LIAISON GROUP 
MEETING

LC attended this meeting in January 2017, the minutes of which 
will be shared with the group; together with a link to the New 
Economy website. 

LC cannot find the New Economy report on ‘Low Carbon deep 
dive’ but there will be a local version being circulated at some 
point in the future and LC will then share with the group.

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 209



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

        ACTION
1.0 Apologies:

1.1

1.2

1.3

Sharon McCambridge - Chief Executive of Six Town Housing SMc 

Pat Jones Greenhalgh - Executive Director of Communities and Wellbeing PJG 

Cllr Sandra Walmsley – Cabinet Member for Strategic Housing and Support 
Services SW

2.0 Minutes of 30th November 2016 Meeting:

2.1 The minutes of the meeting, held on Wednesday 30th November 2016 were 
approved as a correct record and that these would be provided to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.

3.0 Matters Arising:

3.1 None - all matters arising will be picked up on the agenda.

4.0 New Items:

4.1 No Items

5.0 Existing Items:

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

Estate Regeneration

Exploring opportunities and bids for regeneration funds.

Proposed Capital Programme 2017/18

HSPB approved report subject to SK discussing with Cllr SW. SK

MINUTES OF HOUSING STRATEGY PROGRAMME BOARD
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 26th JANUARY 2017

Present: Steve Kenyon - Interim Director of Resources and Regulation SK (Chair)
Emma Joos – Administrative Support Officer, Communities and Wellbeing EJ (Minutes)
Marcus Connor - Corporate Policy Manager, Department of Communities and Wellbeing 
MCC
Sharon Hanbury - Head of Urban Renewal, Department of Communities and Wellbeing 
SH (arrived at item 3)
Karen Young – Strategic Lead, Department of Communities and Wellbeing KY
John Merrick - Director of Neighbourhoods, Six Town Housing JM
Emma Richman - Director of Assets, Six Town Housing ER
Tracey Hunt - Financial Services Business Manager, Six Town Housing TH

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES & 
WELLBEING

Document Pack Page 211



   ACTION

2

6.0 Standard Items:

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

Housing Operation Board (HOB) Action Plan to HSPB

SH provided HSPB with a summary of items discussed at the last HOB.

Feedback from GM Providers Group

SMc provided HSPB with a summary of what was discussed at the GM providers 
meeting.  No actions required from HSPB.

7.0 Date of Next Meeting 

Thursday 23rd February 2017, 1pm – 2pm, Lancashire Fusiliers Room, 1st Floor, 
Town Hall

Document Pack Page 212


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of previous meeting
	7 Groundwork Ambition For Ageing (10 minutes)
	AfA Bury (Partner Update)

	8 Locality Plan Update (10 minutes)
	9 Local Transformation Plan - Child Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) (10 minutes)
	CYP LTP-refreshed plan- draft - v0.7PR

	10 Pennine Care Health and Wellbeing College (10 minutes)
	Health and Wellbeing College Prospectus 1st semester (sept 2016)
	Health and Wellbeing College prospectus winter semester 2016-17 FINAL 111116

	11 Healthwatch Update (10 minutes)
	12 Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority Updates (15 minutes)
	Priority 5 - Healthy Places Update Report

	16 For information - Update on the Friends Together Service
	17 Sub Group Minutes ***For information
	Bury Safeguading Adults Board Meeting Notes Jan 17th 2017 (2)
	Bury Integrated Health and Social Care Partnership Board 20172601-Minutes
	Carbon Reduction and Climate Change Board 20173101-CC Minutes
	Item 3.0 HSPB Minutes for 26.01.2017 - HWB


